
e... 
City of 
Chesterfield 

AGENDA REVIEW MEETING 
CHESTERFIELD CITY COUNCIL 

Monday, August 17, 2015 
6:30PM 

1. Appointment — — Mayor Bob Nation 

A. Architectural Review Board 

2. Planning and Public Works Committee — Chairperson Connie Fults, Ward IV 

A. Bill No. 3049 - P.Z. 04-2015 Arbors at Wilmas Farm (17508 Wild Horse Creek Road) 
(FIRST READING) 

B. Bill No. 3050 - P.Z. 05-2015 Arbors at Wilmas Farm (17508 Wild Horse Creek Road) 
(FIRST READING) 

C. Bill No. 3045 — Authorizes Grant of Easement to Monarch-Chesterfield Levee District 
(SECOND READING) 

D. Bill No. 3047 — Approves Amendments to Stop/Yield Control Schedules — Model Traffic 
Ordinance (SECOND READING) 

E. Bill No. 3048 — Approves Boundary Adjustment Plat re: Upper Kehrs Mill (SECOND 
READING) 

F. Bill No. 3051 — Approves Record Plat - Arbors at Kehrs Mill - Plat 1 (FIRST AND 
SECOND READINGS) 

G. Bill No. 3052 — Approves Record Plat - Arbors at Kehrs Mill - Plat 2 (FIRST AND 
SECOND READINGS) 

H. Bill No. 3053 - Approves Fire Hydrant - Highcroft Elementary School (FIRST AND 
SECOND READINGS) 

I. Next meeting - Thursday, August 20 (5:30pm) 



3. Report from the City Administrator — Michael G. Herring 

4. New Business —Mayor Bob Nation 

5. Adjourn — 

NOTE: City Council will consider and act upon the matters listed above and such other matters as 
may be presented at the meeting and determined to be appropriate for discussion at that time. 

Notice is hereby given that the City Council may also hold a closed meeting for the purpose of 
dealing with matters relating to one or more of the following: legal actions, causes of action, 
litigation or privileged communications between the City's representatives and its attorneys (RSMo 
610.021(1) 1994; lease, purchase or sale of real estate (RSMo 610.021(2) 1994; hiring, firing, 
disciplining or promoting employees within employee groups (RSMo 610.021(3) 1994; bidding 
specification (RSMo 610.021(11) 1994; and/or proprietary technological materials (RSMo 
610.021(15) 1994. 



P"--14  C if of 
hesterfield 

AGENDA 
CHESTERFIELD CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

Chesterfield City Hall 
690 Chesterfield Parkway West 

Monday, August 17, 2015 
7:00PM 

I. 	CALL TO ORDER — Mayor Bob Nation 

II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE — Mayor Bob Nation 

III. MOMENT OF SILENT PRAYER — Mayor Bob Nation 

IV. ROLL CALL —City Clerk Vickie Hass 

V. APPROVAL OF MINUTES — Mayor Bob Nation 

A. City Council Meeting Minutes — August 3, 2015 

VI. INTRODUCTORY REMARKS — Mayor Bob Nation 

A. Labor Day — Monday, September 7 (City Hall Closed) 

B. Next City Council Meeting — Wednesday, September 9 

VII. COMMUNICATIONS AND PETITIONS — Mayor Bob Nation 



VIII. APPOINTMENT - Mayor Bob Nation 

A. Appointment — Architectural Review Board 

IX. COUNCIL COMMITTEE REPORTS 

A. Planning and Public Works Committee — Chairperson Connie Fults, Ward IV 

1. Bill No. 3049 - P.Z. 04-2015 Arbors at Wilmas Farm (17508 Wild Horse Creek 
Road) (FIRST READING) 

2. Bill No. 3050 - P.Z. 05-2015 Arbors at Wilmas Farm (17508 Wild Horse Creek 
Road) (FIRST READING) 

3. Bill No. 3045 — Authorizes Grant of Easement to Monarch-Chesterfield Levee District 
(SECOND READING) 

4. Bill No. 3047 — Approves Amendments to Stop/Yield Control Schedules — Model 
Traffic Ordinance (SECOND READING) 

5. Bill No. 3048 — Approves Boundary Adjustment Plat re: Upper Kehrs Mill 
(SECOND READING) 

6. Bill No. 3051 — Approves Record Plat - Arbors at Kehrs Mill - Plat 1 (FIRST AND 
SECOND READINGS) 

7. Bill No. 3052 - Approves Record Plat - Arbors at Kehrs Mill - Plat 2 (FIRST AND 
SECOND READINGS) 

8. Bill No. 3053 - Approves Fire Hydrant - High Croft Elementary School (FIRST 
AND SECOND READINGS) 

9. Next meeting - Thursday, August 20 (5:30pm) 

X. REPORT FROM THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR - Michael G. Herring 

A. 

XI. OLD BUSINESS - Mayor Bob Nation 

XII. NEW BUSINESS - Mayor Bob Nation 



XIII. LEGISLATION 

A. BILL NO. 3045 - AUTHORIZES THE GRANT OF A PERMANENT EASEMENT TO 
THE MONARCH-CHESTERFIELD LEVEE DISTRICT (SECOND READING; 
PLANNING/PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE RECOMMENDS APPROVAL) 

B. BILL NO. 3047 - REPEALS AND REPLACES SCHEDULE VI, INTERSECTION 
STOPS, AND SCHEDULE VII, YIELD INTERSECTIONS, OF THE CITY OF 
CHESTERFIELD CODE OF ORDINANCES (SECOND READING; 
PLANNING/PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE RECOMMENDS APPROVAL) 

C. BILL NO. 3053 - APPROVES THE INSTALLATION OF A FIRE HYDRANT AT 
HIGHCROFT RIDGE ELEMENTARY SCHOOL, WITHIN THE CITY OF 
CHESTERFIELD (FIRST AND SECOND READINGS; PLANNING/PUBLIC 
WORKS COMMITTEE) 

XIV. LEGISLATION PLANNING COMMISSION 

A. BILL NO. 3048 - PROVIDES FOR THE APPROVAL OF A BOUNDARY 
ADJUSTMENT PLAT FOR LOTS 1 AND 2 OF 1600 KEHRS MILL ROAD FOR A 10.3 
ACRE TRACT OF LAND ZONED "NU", NON-URBAN DISTRICT, AND LOCATED 
EAST OF KEHRS MILL ROAD AND NORTH OF STRECKER ROAD (19U530446) 
(SECOND READING; DEPT. OF PUBLIC SERVICES RECOMMENDS 
APPROVAL) 

B. BILL NO. 3049 - AMENDS THE ZONING ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF 
CHESTERFIELD BY CHANGING THE BOUNDARIES OF AN "NU" NON URBAN 
DISTRICT TO AN "E-1" ESTATE ONE ACRE DISTRICT FOR A 50.5279 ACRE 
TRACT OF LAND LOCATED ON THE SOUTH SIDE OF WILD HORSE CREEK 
ROAD WEST OF ITS INTERSECTION WITH LONG ROAD AND EAST OF ITS 
INTERSECTION WITH ARBOR GROVE COURT. (P.Z. 04-2015 ARBORS AT 
WILMAS FARM {17508 WILD HORSE CREEK ROAD} 18V330035) (FIRST 
READING; PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDS APPROVAL) 

C. BILL NO. 3050 -AMENDS THE ZONING ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF 
CHESTERFIELD BY CHANGING THE BOUNDARIES OF AN "E-1" ESTATE ONE 
ACRE DISTRICT TO A "PUD" PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT FOR A 50.5279 
ACRE TRACT OF LAND LOCATED ON THE SOUTH SIDE OF WILD HORSE 
CREEK ROAD WEST OF ITS INTERSECTION WITH LONG ROAD AND EAST OF 
ITS INTERSECTION WITH ARBOR GROVE COURT. (P.Z. 05-2015 ARBORS AT 
WILMAS FARM {17508 WILD HORSE CREEK ROAD} 18V330035) (FIRST 
READING; PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDS APPROVAL) 

D. BILL NO. 3051 - REPEALS CITY OF CHESTERFIELD ORDINANCE NUMBER 2848 
PROVIDING FOR THE APPROVAL OF A RECORD PLAT AND ESCROW 
AGREEMENTS FOR THE ARBORS AT KEHRS MILL PLAT 1, A 27.055 ACRE 
TRACT OF LAND ZONED "PUD" PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
LOCATED NORTH OF THE INTERSECTION OF STRECKER ROAD AND CHURCH 
ROAD (FIRST AND SECOND READINGS; PLANNING COMMISSION 
RECOMMENDS APPROVAL) 



E. BILL NO. 3052 - REPEALS CITY OF CHESTERFIELD ORDINANCE NUMBER 2849 
PROVIDING FOR THE APPROVAL OF A RECORD PLAT AND ESCROW 
AGREEMENTS FOR THE ARBORS AT KEHRS MILL PLAT 2, A 31.093 ACRE 
TRACT OF LAND ZONED "PUD" PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
LOCATED NORTH OF THE INTERSECTION OF STRECKER ROAD AND CHURCH 
ROAD (FIRST AND SECOND READINGS; PLANNING COMMISSION 
RECOMMENDS APPROVAL) 

XV. ADJOURNMENT 

NOTE: City Council will consider and act upon the matters listed above and such other 
matters as may be presented at the meeting and determined to be appropriate for discussion at that time. 

Notice is hereby given that the City Council may also hold a closed meeting for the purpose of dealing 
with matters relating to one or more of the following: legal actions, causes of action, litigation or 
privileged communications between the City's representatives and its attorneys (RSMo 610.021(1) 
1994; lease, purchase or sale of real estate (RSMo 610.021(2) 1994; hiring, firing, disciplining or 
promoting employees with employee groups (RSMo 610.021(3) 1994; bidding specification (RSMo 
610.021(11) 1994; and/or proprietary technological materials (RSMo 610.021(15) 1994. 



AGENDA REVIEW — Monday, August 17 — 6:30PM 

Please note that an AGENDA REVIEW meeting has been scheduled for 6:30pm, on Monday, August 17, 
2015. The enclosed AGENDA contains a list of those items to be discussed, by City Council, at this 
meeting. 

As always, if you have any questions regarding any of the items contained within said AGENDA, 
please let me know. Additionally, if there is anything that you would like ADDED to said AGENDA, 
please contact either Mayor Nation, or me, prior to Monday's meeting. 



UPCOMING MEETINGS/EVENTS  

Monday, August 17 	 HAPPY BIRTHDAY COUNCILMEMBER MIKE CASEY! 

Thursday, August 20 	 Planning & Public Works Committee (5:30pm) 

Monday, August 24 	 Planning Commission (7pm) 

Monday, September 7 	 LABOR DAY (CITY HALL CLOSED) 

Wednesday, September 9 	Next City Council meeting (7pm) 



jk= --T. 	-  -----,  
= 	 ..±7___ 

A' City of 
t•I'mS Chesterfield 

RECORD OF PROCEEDING 

MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF CHESTERFIELD 

AT 690 CHESTERFIELD PARKWAY WEST 

AUGUST 3, 2015 

The meeting was called to order at 7 p.m. 

Mayor Bob Nation led everyone in the Pledge of Allegiance and followed with a moment 
of silent prayer. 

A roll call was taken with the following results: 

PRESENT 	 AB SENT  

Councilmember Bruce DeGroot Mayor Bob Nation 
Councilmember Barry Flachsbart 
Councilmember Nancy Greenwood 
Councilmember Bridget Nations 
Councilmember G. Elliot Grissom 
Councilmember Mike Casey 
Councilmember Dan Hurt 
Councilmember Connie Fults 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

The minutes of the July 20, 2015 City Council meeting were submitted for approval. 
Councilmember Grissom made a motion, seconded by Councilmember Greenwood, to 
approve the City Council minutes. A voice vote was taken with a unanimous affirmative 
result and the motion was declared passed. 

1 



INTRODUCTORY REMARKS 

Mayor Nation announced that the next meeting of City Council has been scheduled for 
Monday, August 17, at 7 p.m. 

COMMUNICATIONS AND PETITIONS 

Mr. Mike Doster, DosterUllom, LLC, 16090 Swingley Ridge, representing adjacent 
property owners, requested an opportunity to review Bill No. 3048 (Approves Boundary 
Adjustment Plat re: Upper Kehrs Mill) before it is approved. 

Mr. Gregory Calame, 1600 Kehrs Mill Road, explained the reason for his request for 
boundary adjustment related to Bill No. 3048 (Approves Boundary Adjustment Plat re: 
Upper Kehrs Mill) and agreed to having the second reading delayed until the next 
scheduled City Council meeting. 

APPOINTMENTS 

Mayor Nation nominated Ms. Allison Harris, 36 Shady Valley Drive (Ward I), to serve as 
a member of the Planning Commission. He noted that, per City Council policy, Ms. 
Harris was interviewed by the P/PW Committee of City Council and that Committee, 
along with the Ward 1 Councilmembers, had unanimously endorsed her appointment. 
Councilmember Flachsbart made a motion, seconded by Councilmember Greenwood, to 
approve this appointment. A voice vote was taken with a unanimous affirmative result 
and the motion was declared passed. Ms. Harris' initial term will expire June 3, 2018. 

Mayor Nation nominated Mr. Doug LeLong, DeLong Landscape Architecture, LLC, to 
serve as a member of the Architectural Review Board. Councilmember Greenwood 
made a motion, seconded by Councilmember Nations, to table this appointment until the 
August 17 City Council meeting in order to allow time to have some questions answered, 
regarding other possible nominees and the number of current vacancies on the ARB. A 
voice vote was taken with an affirmative result (Councilmember Casey voted No) and the 
motion was declared passed. 

Mayor Nation nominated Mr. Kenneth Voigt, 16778 Benton Taylor Drive (Ward IV), for 
re-appointment to the Police Personnel Board. Councilmember Fults made a motion, 
seconded by Councilmember Flachsbart, to approve this re-appointment. A voice vote 
was taken with a unanimous affirmative result and the motion was declared passed. Mr. 
Voigt's new three-year term will expire August 15, 2018. 

COUNCIL COMMITTEE REPORTS  

Finance and Administration Committee  

Councilmember Barry Flachsbart, Chairperson of the Finance and Administration 
Committee, reported that Bill No. 3043 (Broadmoor Condominium Neighborhood 

2 



Improvement District NIDD will be considered for adoption under the "Legislation" 
portion of the agenda. 

Councilmember Flachsbart reported that Bill No. 3042 (Re-Adopts requirements re: 
Conflict of Interest) will be considered for adoption under the "Legislation" portion of 
the agenda. 

Councilmember Flachsbart made a motion, seconded by Councilmember Grissom, to 
extend the current contract for auditing services with Daniel Jones & Associates for three 
additional years, at the current annual price of $21,580. A voice vote was taken with a 
unanimous affirmative result and the motion was declared passed. 

Councilmember Flachsbart announced that the next meeting of this Committee has been 
scheduled for Monday, August 24, at 5:30 p.m. 

Planning/Public Works Committee 

Councilmember Connie Fults, Chairperson of the Planning/Public Works Committee, 
made a motion, seconded by Councilmember Flachsbart, to approve the amended City 
Hall Rental and Use Policy. A voice vote was taken with a unanimous affirmative result 
and the motion was declared passed. 

Councilmember Fults made a motion, seconded by Councilmember Flachsbart, to 
approve T.S.P. 51-2015 (Verizon [724 Straub Road]). A voice vote was taken with a 
unanimous affirmative result and the motion was declared passed. 

Councilmember Fults made a motion, seconded by Councilmember Casey, to approve a 
new City Policy re: Development Review Process for Ordinance Amendments. A voice 
vote was taken with a unanimous affirmative result and the motion was declared passed. 

Councilmember Fults reported that Bill No. 3045 (Authorizes Grant of Easement to 
Monarch-Chesterfield Levee District) will be read for the first time under the 
"Legislation" portion of the agenda. 

Councilmember Fults reported that Bill No. 3046 (Authorizes Establishment of Show Me 
PACE Clean Energy District) is scheduled for both first and second reading approval 
under the "Legislation" portion of the agenda. 

Councilmember Fults reported that Bill No. 3047 (Approves Amendments to Stop/Yield 
Control Schedules — Model Traffic Ordinance) will be read for the first time under the 
"Legislation" portion of the agenda. 

Councilmember Fults made a motion, seconded by Councilmember Flachsbart, to 
authorize the City Administrator to execute a contract with Powers Bowersox regarding 
the final design of Veteran's Honor Park. A voice vote was taken with a unanimous 
affirmative result and the motion was declared passed. 

3 



Councilmember Fults made a motion, seconded by Councilmember Flachsbart, to 
approve the transfer of $155,000, to the General Fund, from General Fund - Fund 
Reserves, previously set-aside for the Veteran's Honor Park. A voice vote was taken 
with a unanimous affirmative result and the motion was declared passed. 

Councilmember Fults reported that Bill No. 3041 (P.Z. 03-2015 — Sachs Properties [The 
Grove in Chesterfield]) will be considered for adoption under the "Legislation — Planning 
Commission" portion of the agenda. 

Councilmember Fults reported that Bill No. 3048 (Approves Boundary Adjustment Plat 
re: Upper Kehrs Mill) will be read for the first time under the "Legislation — Planning 
Commission" portion of the agenda. 

Councilmember Fults announced that the next meeting of this Committee has been 
scheduled for Thursday, August 6, at 5:30 p.m. 

Committee-of-the-Whole 

President Pro Tem Connie Fults reported that Bill No. 3044 (Establishes rules/regulations 
re: City Council Committees) will be considered for adoption under the "Legislation" 
portion of the agenda. 

REPORT FROM THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR 

Based upon review of information provided by Public Works Director/City Engineer Jim 
Eckrich, Mr. Herring joined with him in recommending award of a contract to Air 
Masters Corporation in an amount not to exceed $749,000, for replacement of the HVAC 
system, at City Hall. Due to the previously-approved transfer of funds from General 
Fund — Fund Reserves, adequate funds exist within the FY2015 Budget to cover this 
entire expense. Councilmember Casey made a motion, seconded by Councilmember 
Flachsbart to approve this recommendation. A voice vote was taken with a unanimous 
affirmative result and the motion was declared passed. 

OLD BUSINESS  

There was no old business. 

NEW BUSINESS  

There was no new business. 

LEGISLATION  

BILL NO. 3043 ESTABLISHES THE BROADMOOR CONDOMINIUMS 
NEIGHBORHOOD IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT (SECOND 

4 



READING - FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDS APPROVAL) 

Councilmember Flachsbart made a motion, seconded by Councilmember Greenwood, for 
the second reading of Bill No. 3043. A voice vote was taken with a unanimous 
affirmative result and the motion was declared passed. Bill No. 3043 was read for the 
second time. A roll call vote was taken for the passage and approval of Bill No. 3043 
with the following results: Ayes — Casey, Fults, Nations, Flachsbart, Grissom, Hurt and 
Greenwood. Nays — None. Whereupon Mayor Nation declared Bill No. 3043 approved, 
passed it and it became ORDINANCE NO. 2857. 

BILL NO. 3042 RE-ADOPTS THE PROCEDURE ESTABLISHED IN 
ORDINANCE NO. 605 OF THE CITY OF CHESTERFIELD AS 
THE PROCEDURE FOR DISCLOSURE OF CONFLICTS FOR 
CERTAIN MUNICIPAL OFFICIALS (SECOND READING - 
FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE 
RECOMMENDS APPROVAL) 

Councilmember Flachsbart made a motion, seconded by Councilmember Greenwood, for 
the second reading of Bill No. 3042. A voice vote was taken with a unanimous 
affirmative result and the motion was declared passed. Bill No. 3042 was read for the 
second time. A roll call vote was taken for the passage and approval of Bill No. 3042 
with the following results: Ayes — Casey, Hurt, Flachsbart, Nations, Greenwood, 
Grissom and Fults. Nays — None. Whereupon Mayor Nation declared Bill No. 3042 
approved, passed it and it became ORDINANCE NO. 2858. 

BILL NO. 3044 REPEALS ORDINANCE NUMBER 467, AMENDING 
ORDINANCE NO. 12 IN PART, AND SUBSTITUTING A NEW 
ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING NEW RULES AND 
REGULATIONS IN REGARDS TO THE CITY OF 
CHESTERFIELD'S STANDING COMMITTEES (SECOND 
READING — COMMITTEE-OF-THE-WHOLE 
RECOMMENDS APPROVAL) 

Councilmember Fults made a motion, seconded by Councilmember Casey, for the second 
reading of Bill No. 3044. A voice vote was taken with a unanimous affirmative result 
and the motion was declared passed. Bill No. 3044 was read for the second time. A roll 
call vote was taken for the passage and approval of Bill No. 3044 with the following 
results: Ayes — Casey, Grissom, Hurt, Fults and Nations. Nays — Flachsbart and 
Greenwood. Whereupon Mayor Nation declared Bill No. 3044 approved, passed it and it 
became ORDINANCE NO. 2859. 

BILL NO. 3045 AUTHORIZES THE GRANT OF A PERMANENT EASEMENT 
TO THE MONARCH-CHESTERFIELD LEVEE DISTRICT 
(FIRST READING; PLANNING/PUBLIC WORKS 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDS APPROVAL) 

5 



Councilmember Fults made a motion, seconded by Councilmember Flachsbart, for the 
first reading of Bill No. 3045. A voice vote was taken with a unanimous affirmative 
result and the motion was declared passed. Bill No. 3045 was read for the first time. 

BILL NO. 3046 ENABLES THE CITY OF CHESTERFIELD, MISSOURI TO JOIN 
SHOW ME PACE, PURSUANT TO SECTIONS 67.2800 TO 
67.2835, RSMO, THE "PROPERTY ASSESSED CLEAN 
ENERGY ACT," AND STATING THE TERMS UNDER WHICH 
THE CITY WILL CONDUCT ACTIVITIES AS A MEMBER OF 
SUCH DISTRICT (FIRST AND SECOND READINGS; 
PLANNING/PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE 
RECOMMENDS APPROVAL) 

Councilmember Fults made a motion, seconded by Councilmember Flachsbart, for the 
first reading of Bill No. 3046. A voice vote was taken with a unanimous affirmative 
result and the motion was declared passed. Bill No. 3046 was read for the first time. 

Councilmember Fults made a motion, seconded by Councilmember Nations, for the 
second reading of Bill No. 3046. A voice vote was taken with a unanimous affirmative 
result and the motion was declared passed. Bill No. 3046 was read for the second time. 
A roll call vote was taken for the passage and approval of Bill No. 3046 with the 
following results: Ayes — Greenwood, Grissom, Fults, Hurt, Flachsbart, Nations and 
Casey. Nays — None. Whereupon Mayor Nation declared Bill No. 3046 approved, 
passed it and it became ORDINANCE NO. 2860. 

BILL NO. 3047 REPEALS AND REPLACES SCHEDULE VI, INTERSECTION 
STOPS, AND SCHEDULE VII, YIELD INTERSECTIONS, OF 
THE CITY OF CHESTERFIELD CODE OF ORDINANCES 
(FIRST READING; PLANNING/PUBLIC WORKS 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDS APPROVAL) 

Councilmember Fults made a motion, seconded by Councilmember Flachsbart, for the 
first reading of Bill No. 3047. A voice vote was taken with a unanimous affirmative 
result and the motion was declared passed. Bill No. 3047 was read for the first time. 

LEGISLATION — PLANNING COMMISSION 

BILL NO. 3041 AMENDS THE ZONING ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF 
CHESTERFIELD BY CHANGING THE BOUNDARIES OF A 
"C8" PLANNED COMMERCIAL DISTRICT TO A "UC" URBAN 
CORE DISTRICT FOR A 3.6 ACRE TRACT OF LAND 
LOCATED SOUTHEAST OF THE INTERSECTION OF 
CHESTERFIELD PARKWAY WEST AND JUSTUS POST ROAD 
(P.Z. 03-2015, SACHS PROPERTIES (THE GROVE IN 
CHESTERIFIELD - 19S431691 AND 19S430579) (SECOND 

6 



READING - PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDS 
APPROVAL) 

Councilmember Fults made a motion, seconded by Councilmember Greenwood, for the 
second reading of Bill No. 3041. A voice vote was taken with a unanimous affirmative 
result and the motion was declared passed. Bill No. 3041 was read for the second time. 
A roll call vote was taken for the passage and approval of Bill No. 3041 with the 
following results: Ayes — Nations, Flachsbart, Greenwood, Grissom, Fults, Casey and 
Hurt. Nays — None. Whereupon Mayor Nation declared Bill No. 3041 approved, passed 
it and it became ORDINANCE NO. 2861. 

BILL NO. 3048 PROVIDES FOR THE APPROVAL OF A BOUNDARY 
ADJUSTMENT PLAT FOR LOTS 1 AND 2 OF 1600 KEHRS 
MILL ROAD FORA 10.3 ACRE TRACT OF LAND ZONED 
"NU", NON-URBAN DISTRICT, AND LOCATED EAST OF 
KEHRS MILL ROAD AND NORTH OF STRECKER ROAD 
(19U530446) (FIRST READING; DEPT. OF PUBLIC 
SERVICES RECOMMENDS APPROVAL) 

Councilmember Fults made a motion, seconded by Councilmember Flachsbart, for the 
first reading of Bill No. 3048. A voice vote was taken with a unanimous affirmative 
result and the motion was declared passed. Bill No. 3048 was read for the first time. 

ADJOURNMENT 

Mayor Nation recognized a Boy Scout in attendance and invited him to stay after the 
meeting, to ask any questions he may have. 

There being no further business to discuss, Mayor Nation adjourned the meeting at 7:49 

P.m. 

Mayor Bob Nation 

ATTEST:  

Vickie J. Hass, City Clerk 

7 



APPOINTMENT 

As detailed in the enclosed MEMO, prepared by City Clerk Vickie Hass, Mayor Nation has confirmed 
his intent to nominate the following individual to serve as a member of the Architectural Review 
Board (ARB): 

Doug DeLong - 2-year term, expiring 8-17-17 

If you have any questions, please contact Mayor Nation prior to Monday's meeting. 



=Chesterfield 
of 

=Chesterfield 

MEMORANDUM  

DATE: 	August 12, 2015 

TO: 	Michael G. Herring, City Administrator 

FROM: 	Vickie Hass, City Clerk 

SUBJECT: Appointment to Architectural Review Board 

Mayor Nation intends to nominate the following individual for appointment to the 
Architectural Review Board at the August 17, 2015 City Council meeting: 

Doug DeLong 
DeLong Landscape Architecture, LLC 
7620 West Bruno Avenue 
St. Louis, MO 63117 
New two-year term expires 8/17/17 

Please list this appointment on the August 17 City Council agenda. 



RECOMMENDATIONS — PLANNING/PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE (P/PW) 

As detailed in the enclosed MINUTES, prepared by Mike Geisel, Director of Public Services, the P/PW 
Committee met on Thursday, August 6, 2015. 

The following is a list of those items discussed/acted upon, by this Committee, which are being 
forwarded to City Council for consideration/action at Monday's meeting: 

IIIA. Bill No. 3049 - P.Z. 04-2015 Arbors at Wilmas Farm (17508 Wild Horse Creek Road) (FIRST 
READING) 

IIIB. Bill No. 3050 - P.Z. 05-2015 Arbors at Wilmas Farm (17508 Wild Horse Creek Road) (FIRST 
READING) 

Bill No. 3045 — Authorizes Grant of Easement to Monarch-Chesterfield Levee District 
(SECOND READING) 

Bill No. 3047 — Approves Amendments to Stop/Yield Control Schedules — Model Traffic 
Ordinance (SECOND READING) 

Bill No. 3048 — Approves Boundary Adjustment Plat re: Upper Kehrs Mill (SECOND 
READING) 

Bill No. 3051 — Approves Record Plat - Arbors at Kehrs Mill - Plat 1 (FIRST AND 
SECOND READINGS) 

Bill No. 3052 - Approves Record Plat - Arbors at Kehrs Mill - Plat 2 (FIRST AND 
SECOND READINGS) 

Bill No. 3053 - Approves Fire Hydrant - High Croft Elementary School (FIRST AND 
SECOND READINGS) 

Next meeting - Thursday, August 20 (5:30pm) 

As is always the case, please contact Chairperson Connie Fults, any other member of this Committee, 
Mike Geisel or me, PRIOR to Monday's meeting, if you have any questions. 



4e4 
ii 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: 
	

Michael G. Herring, City Administrator 

FROM: 
	

Mike Geisel, Director of Public Services 

SUBJECT: 
	

Planning & Public Works Committee Meeting Summary 
Thursday, August 6, 2015 

A meeting of the Planning and Public Works Committee of the Chesterfield City Council was held 
on Thursday, August 6, 2015 in Conference Room 101. 

In attendance were: Chair Connie Fults (Ward IV), Councilmember Bridget Nations (Ward II) 
and Councilmember Dan Hurt (Ward III). 

Also in attendance were: Mayor Bob Nation; Harry O'Rourke, Interim City Attorney; Planning 
Commission Chair Stanley Proctor; Mike Geisel, Director of Public Services; Jim Eckrich, Public 
Works Director/City Engineer; Aimee Nassif, Planning & Development Services Director; Jessica 
Henry, Project Planner; and Kathy Juergens, Recording Secretary. 

The meeting was called to order at 5:32 p.m. 

I. APPROVAL OF MEETING SUMMARY 

A. Approval of the July 23, 2015 Committee Meeting Summary. 

Councilmember Hurt made a motion to approve the Meeting Summary of 
July 23, 2015. The motion was seconded by Councilmember Nations and passed by a voice 
vote of 3-0. 

-k 77) 	ifev,r,s ner 	et),q— tiry- e3t),()e14-  /11 

II. OLD BUSINESS - None. 

III. NEW BUSINESS 

P.Z. 04-2015 Arbors at Wilmas Farm (17508 Wild Horse Creek Road): A request 
for a zoning map amendment from an "NU" Non-Urban District to an "E-1" Estate 
One-Acre District for 50.5279 acres located on the south side of Wild Horse Creek 
Road west of its intersection of Long Road and east of its intersection with Arbor 
Grove Court (18V330035). 

STAFF REPORT  
Jessica Henry, Project Planner, stated the Petitioner is requesting to zone the property "E-1" as 
the first step of a two-step zoning process followed by an additional petition for a zoning map 
amendment to obtain "PUD" zoning. The Petitioner has submitted an outboundary survey that 
meets all City Code requirements. A Public Hearing was held on June 22, 2015 at which time no 
issues were raised. A vote was taken at the July 27, 2015 Planning Commission meeting where 
a motion to approve was unanimously passed. 



B. P.Z. 05-2015 Arbors at Wilmas Farm (17508 Wild Horse Creek Road): A request 
for a zoning map amendment from an "E-1" Estate One-Acre District to a "PUD" 
Planned Unit Development for 50.5279 acres located on the south side of Wild Horse 
Creek Road west of its intersection of Long Road and east of its intersection with 
Arbor Grove Court (18V330035). 

STAFF REPORT  
Jessica Henry, Project Planner, stated that this petition is the second step of the zoning procedure 
in order to establish a "PUD" District. A Public Hearing was also held on June 22, 2015 and no 
issues were raised, therefore a vote was taken at the July 27, 2015 Planning Commission 
meeting. Ms. Henry stated a preliminary plan had been submitted. They are proposing two 
access points; the main entrance is off Wild Horse Creek Road and a secondary entrance off 
Deep Forest Drive. There will be 47 lots on 50.5 acres. The plan includes a large 7.82 acre 
greenspace preservation area and 39% common open space. Amenities include a walking trail, 
a multi-sports field, a playground and other recreational areas. 

At the July 27, 2015 Planning Commission vote meeting, Staff proposed that two amendments 
be included in the Attachment A. The first was to clarify that the paved portion of the walking trail 
would be permitted within the greenspace preservation area and the second was to clarify that a 
30 ft. cross access easement to the adjacent church property to the west would be shown both 
on the preliminary plan and within the Attachment A. A vote on a motion to approve the petition 
with the amendments to the Attachment A was unanimously approved. 

Staff is recommending approval of both requests. 

DISCUSSION 
Planning Commission Chair Stanley Proctor advised there were no concerns raised at the Public 
Hearing by Staff or the Planning Commission so an issues meeting was not required and the 
proposal was unanimously approved. 

Chair Fults recalled that a different developer had previously presented a plan for this site but the 
Planning Commission was not happy with it. Mr. Proctor concurred and stated the new Developer 
took into consideration the issues raised by the Planning Commission and has revised the plan 
considerably. Chair Fults stated she is very pleased with the amount of "community" areas 
incorporated in the project along with the new street configuration. 

Councilmember Hurt asked if the surrounding neighbors were in favor of the proposal. Chair Fults 
stated the residents know the land will be developed and are pleased with the current proposal. 
Mayor Nation pointed out the proposed plan is consistent with surrounding developments. 

Mayor Nation's noted his concern regarding the type of buffer utilized at a neighboring 
development, which he feels looks "unkempt". It was explained that there are "landscaped" buffers 
and "undisturbed" buffers, which can include a lot of native plantings. Ms. Aimee Nassif, Planning 
and Development Services Director, stated Staff has not yet had any discussions with the 
Developer on the details of the proposed plantings as this project is not at the site plan stage, 
however, there will be some "undisturbed" areas that will be preserved in their natural state. 

There was further discussion regarding the existing access points along Wild Horse Creek Road. 
Mr. Mike Geisel, Director of Public Services, pointed out that the location of the access off of Wild 
Horse Creek Road for the subject development is dictated by the water main that runs parallel to 

Planning & Public Works Committee Meeting Summary 	 2 
August 6, 2015 



Wild Horse Creek Road. As the area develops, Councilmember Hurt stated that the City should 
encourage keeping access points at least 500-600 feet apart along Wild Horse Creek Road. 

Councilmember Fults made a motion to forward P.Z. 04-2015 Arbors at Wilmas Farm (17508 
Wild Horse Creek Road to City Council with a recommendation to approve. The motion was 
seconded by Councilmember Hurt and passed by a voice vote of 3-0. 

Councilmember Fults made a motion to forward P.Z. 05-2015 Arbors at Wilmas Farm (17508 
Wild Horse Creek Road to City Council with a recommendation to approve. The motion was 
s conded by Councilmember Nations and passed by a voice vote of 3-0. s 

(----
[Please see the attached reports prepared by Aimee Nassif, Planning and Development 

) Services Director, for additional information on P.Z. 04- 2015 and P.Z. 05-2015 Arbors at 
Wilmas Farm (17508 Wild Horse Creek Road).] 

C. Compressed Natural Gas Fueling Station and Truck Conversions 

STAFF REPORT  
Jim Eckrich, Public Works Director/City Engineer, gave a brief history of Compressed Natural Gas 
(CNG) in Chesterfield and stated the following: 

❖ September 2013 — Parkway School District constructed a CNG station and purchased 
30 new CNG fueled buses utilizing federal grant funding. 

• Chesterfield began negotiations for future utilization of the CNG station to 
provide for early entry and trial conversions of PW CNG vehicles. 

❖ March 2014 — Chesterfield applied for Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality (CMAQ) 
grant to construct a CNG station and convert trucks. Grant was denied. 

❖ December 2014 — City Council authorized use of $125,000 to upgrade five vehicles 
for CNG and to enter into an agreement with Parkway for use of their CNG station. 

• Parkway agreed to allow the City to use their CNG station waiving original cost 
and to provide fuel at their direct cost. 

❖ Council concurred with long term strategy for the City to obtain a fueling facility and 
subsequent additional vehicle conversions. 

❖ March 2015 — City reapplied for CMAQ grant. In June, City is notified that grant is 
successful. 

Mr. Eckrich stated the grant is administered by MoDOT. The maximum grant amount available 
is 80% of costs and the City did qualify for 80%. The grant will fund 80% of costs for a new CNG 
station and the incremental cost to upgrade 13 trucks for CNG. Mr. Eckrich provided the following 
details of the grant: 

❖ Total project cost to construct the CNG facility and upgrade 13 vehicles is $1,400,030 of 
which $1,120,023 will be reimbursed through the grant. 

• $1,400,030 for City-owned CNG station — City cost is 20% or $209,606. 
• $352,000 for 13 vehicle upgrades to CNG — City cost is 20% or $70,400. 

TOTAL NET COST TO THE CITY IS $280,006. 

) Note: Two Bills, as recommended by the Planning Commission, will be needed for 
the August 17, 2015 City Council Meeting. See Bills # 3bLiO1 	36b 

Planning & Public Works Committee Meeting Summary 	 3 
August 6, 2015 



DISCUSSION 
In response to Committee questions, the following items were discussed and clarified. 

Grant Reimbursement: Progress pay requests will be submitted throughout the construction 
process and reimbursements are normally received within a few weeks of each request. 

Length of Protect: The project will begin later this year and continue through 2017 but the actual 
construction of the fueling station will take approximately one year. 

Net Cost to the City: Of the $280,006 cost to the City, $238,406 will come from the General Fund- 
Fund Reserves and $41,600 will come from the Capital Project Fund. 

Funding for Additional Trucks: The proposed project does not include the cost of purchasing 
additional CNG trucks. The proposed project only includes the cost to upgrade 13 new trucks. 
After these trucks are purchased, approximately half of the City's Street Maintenance fleet will be 
CNG. Starting in 2018, the City will need to purchase additional vehicles and they will most likely 
be diesel and gas vehicles as it is not the City's intent to convert all vehicles to CNG. 

Location of CNG Fueling Station: The fueling station will be located at the Public Works facility in 
the area west of the existing building. 

Economic Comparison of CNG Fuel versus Diesel and Unleaded: As CNG vehicles become 
more prevalent, the cost of conversion will become more economical. CNG fuel is about two- 
thirds of the cost of unleaded or diesel fuel. CNG fuel pricing has been relatively stable whereas 
the cost of diesel and unleaded fuel has been volatile. Further savings will be realized with CNG 
vehicles due to the EPA's diesel emission requirements. Each new diesel vehicle requires 
emissions technology that increases the actual vehicle acquisition cost. In addition, the 
secondary market for CNG vehicles has been increasing at a very rapid pace. 

Effect on General Fund-Fund Reserves Account: The current General Fund-Fund Reserve above 
the 40% Policy Expense is $2,403,211. It was noted that this is the net figure after the allocation 
for the Chesterfield Parkway pedestrian bridge over Highway 40 has been deducted. After the 
CNG project, the balance will be $2,164,805. 

Agreement with Parkway School District Fueling Station: The City's CNG vehicles will continue 
to access the Parkway Station at certain times and Chesterfield will offer reciprocal services of its 
fueling station to the Parkway School District. 

Cost differential between CNG and Standard Vehicles: There is currently about a $40,000 
difference on larger trucks and $12,000 on smaller trucks. There may be a higher capital cost, 
but there is a much lower operational cost in the long run. It is in the City's best interest, both 
financially and strategically, to utilize multiple fuel sources. 

Mr. Eckrich summarized Staff's request as follows: 
1. Recommend the City enter into a program agreement with MoDOT for administration 

of a grant to construct a CNG facility and upgrade 13 vehicles. 
2. Recommend to City Council that funding be appropriated as follows: 

• Delay the purchase of two 2.5 ton trucks already approved and funded within the 
2015 budget. Funds appropriated for these purchases ($380,000) will be 
incorporated into the 2016 Capital Projects fund budget request. The two trucks 

Planning & Public Works Committee Meeting Summary 	 4 
August 6, 2015 



will subsequently be purchased in conjunction with the 13 truck purchase 
detailed within the CMAQ Grant. 

• Accelerate the purchase of five trucks that are currently planned and scheduled 
for replacement in 2017. These trucks would actually be purchased in 2016 and 
temporarily funded by a transfer from the General Fund-Fund Reserves in the 
amount of $729,000. 

• The 2016 Capital Projects Fund budget should provide for the normal planned 
and scheduled purchase of six CNG trucks in 2016. 

• Fund approximately $1,048,030 for the design and construction of the new CNG 
Fueling Station at the Public Works Facility through a 2016 fund transfer from 
the General Fund-Fund Reserves. 

Staff anticipates presenting this matter to Council in September after the grant is formally 
approved and the program agreement is received. 

Councilmember Hurt made a motion to approve and forward to City Council Staff's 
recommendations to enter into a program agreement with MoDOT for administration of a 
grant to construct a CNG facility and upgrade 13 vehicles. The motion was seconded by 
Councilmember Nations and passed by a voice vote of 3-0. 

D. Snow Removal for Private Driveways within Public Right of Way 

STAFF REPORT 
Jim Eckrich, Public Works Director/City Engineer, stated since last year's implementation of the 
Snow Removal for Private Driveway program, there were only two events in which Chesterfield 
received in excess of two inches of snow. During these two events, Public Services maintenance 
personnel spent approximately 30-40 man hours removing snow from the private driveway aprons 
of residents qualifying for the program. Because there were only two events and because these 
snowfalls were relatively low, Staff is unable to determine if this program should be continued on 
an annual basis. Therefore, Staff is recommending that the program be implemented for one 
additional year on a trial basis. After the 2015/2016 winter season, the program will again be 
assessed and a recommendation will be made as to whether the program should be continued. 

Councilmember Hurt made a motion to extend the Snow Removal for Private Driveways 
within Public Right of Way program for one additional year on a trial basis. The motion was 
seconded by Councilmember Nations and passed by a voice vote of 3-0. 

Relating to snow removal, Councilmember Hurt stated the City reimburses subdivisions for private 
street snow removal based on a formula, however, the formula does not apply to gated 
communities. Councilmember Hurt questioned whether the opinions of former City Attorneys 
Beech and Heggie were still valid, and asked that this matter be looked at again by current City 
Attorney O'Rourke. Councilmember Hurt  stated he feels that all private streets, whether gated or 
not, should be part of the reimbursement program and would like for current legal counsel to 
further research the issue. 

Councilmember Hurt made a motion to direct the Interim City Attorney to research snow 
removal on private streets and report back to the Committee as to whether this 
reimbursement could be applied to gated communities. The motion was seconded by 
Councilmember Nations and passed by a voice vote of 3-0. 

Planning & Public Works Committee Meeting Summary 	 5 
August 6, 2015 



IV. PROJECT UPDATES 
Due to time constraints, Ms. Aimee Nassif, Planning and Development Services Director, stated 
she will email the Project Update report to the Committee. 

V. OTHER 

VI. ADJOURNMENT 

The meeting adjourned at 6:15 p.m. 

Planning & Public Works Committee Meeting Summary 
August 6, 2015 



City Council Memorandum 
Department of Public Services 

To: 	Michael Herring, City Administrator 

From: 	Aimee Nassif, Planning and Development Services Director 

Date: 	August 10, 2015 

CC Date: August 17, 2015 

RE: P.Z. 04-2015 Arbors at Wilmas Farm (17508 Wild Horse Creek 
Road): A request for a zoning map amendment from an "NU" Non- 
Urban District to an "E-1" Estate One-Acre District for 50.5279 acres 
located on the south side of Wild Horse Creek Road west of its 
intersection of Long Road and east of its intersection with Arbor Grove 
Court (18V330035). 

Wilmas Farm, LLC, by: McBride 86 Son Acquisitions, LLC, is requesting a zoning map 
amendment from the City of Chesterfield to change the zoning of a tract of land 
currently zoned "NU" Non-Urban District to "E-1" Estate One-Acre District. The 
property was originally zoned "NU" Non-Urban District by St. Louis County and has 
been primarily used for agricultural purposes. The petitioner is requesting to zone 
the property "E-1" Estate One-Acre District as part of a two-step zoning process in 
order to obtain entitlements to develop this tract of land as a single-family residential 
subdivision. The second step of this process is to file an additional petition for a 
zoning map amendment' to obtain "PUD" Planned Unit Development zoning, which 
the Petitioner has done (P.Z. 05-2015). 

A Public Hearing relative to this petition was held at the June 22 nd, 2015 Planning 
Commission meeting. No issues were identified at this time and subsequently a 
Planning Commission Vote Meeting was held on July 27 th, 2015 where a motion to 
approve the petition was passed by a vote of 9-0. 

This petition was reviewed by the Planning and Public Works Committee on August 
6th,  2015. A motion to forward P.Z. 04-2015 Arbors at Wilmas Farm (17508 Wild 
Horse Creek Road) to City Council with a recommendation to approve was passed 
by a vote of 3-0. 

Attached to the legislation, please find a copy of the Outboundary Survey. 





Attached to the legislation, please find a copy of the Attachment A, Preliminary 
Plan and Project Narrative. 

1/1104-11 	 'ait I it ' oS-'0 

kifit/15' 

City Council Memorandum 
Department of Public Services 

To: 	Michael Herring, City Administrator 

From: 	Aimee Nassif, Planning and Development Services Director 

Date: 	August 10, 2015 

CC Date: August 17, 2015 

RE: P.Z. 05-2015 Arbors at Wilmas Farm (17508 Wild Horse Creek 
Road): A request for a zoning map amendment from an "E-1" Estate 
One-Acre District to a "PUD" Planned Unit Development for 50.5279 
acres located on the south side of Wild Horse Creek Road west of its 
intersection of Long Road and east of its intersection with Arbor Grove 
Court (18V330035). 

McBride 85 Son Acquisitions, LLC, is seeking a change of zoning to the "PUD" 
Planned Unit Development zoning district for this tract of land. The PUD petition 
(P2. 05-2015) is a separate request from the "E-1" Estate One-Acre District request 
(P.Z. 04-2015); however the applicant has submitted them concurrently in order to 
establish the density requirements for the PUD. As required for a "PUD" Planned 
Unit Development, a Preliminary Plan and Project Narrative are included for your 
consideration. 

The "PUD" request is for 47 lots which range in size from 22,000 square feet to 
28,637 square feet with an average lot size of 23,012 square feet. Additional 
development characteristics proposed include 39% Common Open Space, 30 foot 
eastern and western perimeter landscape buffers, an enhanced 50 foot landscape 
buffer and common open space area along the northern perimeter that fronts Wild 
Horse Creek Road, a 7.82 acre greenspace preservation area, and several community 
amenities such as a playground area, multi-sports field, and a walking tail. 

A Public Hearing relative to this petition was held at the June 22nd , 2015 Planning 
Commission meeting. No issues were identified at that time and subsequently a 
Planning Commission Vote Meeting was held on July 27 th, 2015. A motion to 
approve the petition as amended was passed by a vote of 9-0. 

This petition was then reviewed by the Planning and Public Works Committee on 
August 6 th,  2015. A motion to forward P.Z. 05-2015 Arbors at Wilmas Farm (17508 
Wild Horse Creek Road) to City Council with a recommendation to approve was 
passed by a vote of 3-0. 





City Council 
Memorandum 
Department of Public Services 

To: 	Michael Herring, City Administrator 

From: 	Aimee Nassif, Planning and Development Services Director 

Date: 	August 10, 2015 

CC Date: August 17, 2015 

Re: Arbors at Kehrs Mill - Plat 1: A Record Plat for a 27.055 acre tract of 
land zoned "PUD" Planned Unit Development District located north of 
the intersection of Strecker Road and Church Road 

On May 4th ,  2015, the City of Chesterfield City Council approved Ordinance 2848 
for this plat; however, the plan was not recorded within 60 days as required by the 
Unified Development Code therefore re-approval is required. The Sterling 
Company, on behalf of Arbors at Kehrs Mill, LLC., has re-submitted the exact 
same Subdivision Plat for a 27.055 acre tract which proposes twenty-six (26) new 
lots and interior streets as previously approved. The purpose of this plat is to 
establish the twenty-six (26) lots for development and to provide for necessary 
infrastructure. 

On July 27, 2015, the Planning Commission recommended re-approval of the 
Record Plat for the Subdivision of Arbors at Kehrs Mill Plat 1 with a vote of 9-0. 

Attached to the legislation, please find a copy of the Record Plat and Escrow 
Agreements. 

Ste 	I  



, 
Subject,Property.. 

City Council 
Memorandum 
Department of Public Services 

To: 	Michael Herring, City Administrator 

From: 	Aimee Nassif, Planning and Development Services Director 

Date: 	August 10, 2015 

CC Date: August 17, 2015 

Re: Arbors at Kehrs Mill - Plat 2: A Record Plat for a 31.093 acre tract of 
land zoned "PUD" Planned Unit Development District located north of 
the intersection of Strecker Road and Church Road 

On May 4th ,  2015, the City of Chesterfield City Council approved Ordinance 2849 
for this plat; however, the plan was not recorded within 60 days as required by the 
Unified Development Code therefore re-approval is required. The Sterling 
Company, on behalf of Arbors at Kehrs Mill, LLC., has re-submitted the exact 
same Subdivision Plat for a 31.093 acre tract which proposes eighteen (18) new 
lots and interior streets as previously approved. The purpose of this plat is to 
establish the eighteen (18) lots for development and to provide for necessary 
infrastructure. 

On July 27, 2015, the Planning Commission recommended re-approval of the 
Record Plat for the Subdivision of Arbors at Kehrs Mill Plat 2 with a vote of 9-0. 

Attached to the legislation, please find a copy of the Record Plat and Escrow 
Agreements. 

See 



LEGISLATION 

BILL NO. 3045 - AUTHORIZES THE GRANT OF A PERMANENT EASEMENT TO THE 
MONARCH-CHESTERFIELD LEVEE DISTRICT (SECOND READING; PLANNING/PUBLIC 
WORKS COMMITTEE RECOMMENDS APPROVAL) 

BILL NO. 3047 - REPEALS AND REPLACES SCHEDULE VI, INTERSECTION STOPS, AND 
SCHEDULE VII, YIELD INTERSECTIONS, OF THE CITY OF CHESTERFIELD CODE OF 
ORDINANCES (SECOND READING; PLANNING/PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE 
RECOMMENDS APPROVAL) 

BILL NO. 3053 - APPROVES THE INSTALLATION OF A FIRE HYDRANT AT HIGHCROFT 
RIDGE ELEMENTARY SCHOOL, WITHIN THE CITY OF CHESTERFIELD (FIRST AND 
SECOND READINGS; PLANNING/PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE) 



BILL. NO. 	
	

ORDINANCE NO. 	  

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE GRANT OF A PERMANENT 
EASEMENT TO THE MONARCH-CHESTERFIELD LEVEE DISTRICT 

WHEREAS, the Monarch-Chesterfield Levee District operates and maintains the 
Monarch-Chesterfield Levee in conformance with Public Law 84-99; and 

WHEREAS, the Monarch-Chesterfield Levee protects lives, properties, and 
improvements for Chesterfield Valley; and 

WHEREAS, The City of Chesterfield and the Monarch-Chesterfield Levee District 
require a cooperative relationship to ensure a uniform, coordinated and transparent 
response to river conditions; and 

WHEREAS, The Monarch-Chesterfield Levee District is desirous of maintaining a 
clear zone along the riverside toe of the Monarch-Chesterfield levee and to facilitate other 
future levee improvements; and 

WHEREAS, The Planning and Zoning Committee of City Council has reviewed and 
recommended the grant of permanent easement rights to the Monarch-Chesterfield Levee 
District for the afore described purposes; City of Chesterfield and the Monarch- 
Chesterfield Levee District requires a cooperative relationship to ensure a uniform, 
coordinated and transparent response to river conditions. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
CHESTERFIELD, ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. The City Administrator is hereby authorized to execute the easement to 
the Monarch-Chesterfield Levee District, a copy of which is attached hereto, marked as 
"Exhibit A". 

Section 2. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its 
passage and approval. 

Passed and approved this 	 day of 	 , 2015. 

MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

CITY CLERK FIRST READING HELD: V/ 3115 



BILL NO. 03 	 ORDINANCE NO. 

AN ORDINANCE REPEALING AND REPLACING SCHEDULE VI INTERSECTION 
STOPS AND SCHEDULE VII YIELD INTERSECTIONS OF THE CITY OF 
CHESTERFIELD CODE OF ORDINANCES. 

WHEREAS, the Department of Public Services has completed a comprehensive review 
of the current traffic postings; and 

WHEREAS, the Department of Public Services has also reviewed the existing Traffic 
Schedules of the City Code; and 

WHEREAS, a number of traffic postings are not in strict accordance with the City of 
Chesterfield Traffic Schedules of City Code; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council believes that enactment of the new ordinance will serve to 
protect the health, welfare and safety of the city's residents and motoring public. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF CHESTERFIELD AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. 	Schedule VI as it relates to Intersection Stops is hereby repealed and 
replaced with a new Schedule VI to read as follows: 

In accordance with section 300 of this Code [Code of the City of Chesterfield, Missouri], and 
when signs are erected giving notice thereof, traffic at the intersection listed in this schedule shall 
be required to stop as specified in this schedule. 

Traffic on Highway, Road, Street or Alley 
Intersection 	 Listed Below Shall Stop 
Amherst Green Court and Amherst Terrace 	All-Way stop 
Annasarra Court and White Lane Drive 	All-Way stop 
Appalachian Trail and Beaver Creek Road 	Beaver Creek Road (northbound) 
Appalachian Trail and Cedar Creek Road • 	Cedar Creek Court (northbound) 
Appalachian Trail and Duxbury Way 	Duxbury Way (northbound) 
Appalachian Trail and Eaglepass Drive 	Eaglepass Drive (westbound) 
Appalachian Trail and Harrisburg Court 	Harrisburg Court (eastbound and westbound) 
Appalachian Trail and Hidden Oak Drive 	All-Way stop 
Appalachian Trail and Hitchcock Road 	Hitchcock Road (eastbound) 
Appalachian Trail and Jonesborough Road 	Jonesborough Road (southbound) 
Appalachian Trail and Pickett Court 	Pickett Court (westbound) 



Appalachian Trail and Rutland Circle 
Appalachian Trail and Salt Box Drive 
Appalachian Trail and Still-House Creek Road 
Appalachian Trail and Ticonderoga Drive 
Appalachian Trail and Traverton Drive 
Appalachian Trail and Winema Drive 
August Hill Drive and Stonebrook Court and 
Willow Weald Path 

Baxter Crossing Lane and Westmeade Drive 
Baxter Road and Baxter Village Drive 
Baxter Road and Baxton Way 
Baxter Road and Chateau Village Drive 

Baxter Road and Claymont Estates Drive 
Baxter Road and Country Field Drive 
Baxter Road and Heathercroft Drive 
Baxter Road and Isleview Drive 
Baxter Road and Manor Creek Drive 
Baxter Road and Royalbrook Drive 
Baxter Road and Summer Lake Drive 

Baxter Road and Summer Ridge Drive 
Beagle Lane and Walfield Lane 
Beechcraft Avenue and Edison Avenue 
Bell Avenue and Edison Avenue 
Bent Tree Drive and Wilson Road 
Benton Taylor Drive and Benton Taylor Lane 
Blue Hill Road and Kehrs Mill Road 
Bow Tree Court and Clarkson Road 

Boxford Court and Saylesville Drive 
Bramblewood Court and Stablestone Drive 
Brittania Court and Brittania Drive 
Brittania Drive and Buckington Drive 
Brittania Drive and Gatemont Drive 
Brittania Drive and Oxborough Court 
Brittania Drive and Schoettler Road 

Brook Hill Court and Brook Hill Drive 
Brook Hill Drive and Brook Hill Ridge Drive 
Brook Hill Lane and White Lane Drive 
Burkhardt Place and Veterans Place Drive 
Carriage Crossing Lane and Wild Horse Creek 
Road 

Rutland Circle (northbound) 
Salt Box Drive (southbound) 
All-Way stop 
Ticonderoga Drive (westbound) 
Traverton Drive (northbound) 
All-Way stop 

All-Way stop 
Westmeade Drive (northbound and 
southbound) 
Baxter Village Drive (westbound) 
Baxton Way (eastbound) 
Chateau Village Drive (westbound) 
Claymont Estates Drive (eastbound and 
westbound) 
Country Field Drive (northbound) 
Heathercroft Drive (northbound) 
Isleview Drive (westbound & eastbound) 
Manor Creek Drive (southbound) 
Royalbrook Drive (westbound) 
Summer Lake Drive (westbound) 
Summer Ridge Drive (eastbound and 
westbound) 
Walfield Lane (northbound) 
Beechcraft Avenue 
Bell Avenue (northbound,southbound) 
Bent Tree Drive (westbound) 
Benton Taylor Lane (southbound) 
Blue Hill Road (southbound & northbound) 
Bow Tree Court (southbound) 

All-Way stop 
Bramblewood Court (northbound) 
Brittania Court 
Buckington Drive 
Gatemont Drive 
Oxborough Court 
Brittania Drive (westbound) 
Brook Hill Court (northbound and 
southbound) 
All-Way stop 
White Lane Drive 
Veterans Place Drive (northbound) 

Carriage Crossing Lane (northbound) 



Cedar Forest Court and Country Ridge Drive 

Cedarmill Drive and Clover Ridge Drive 
Cedarmill Drive and Country Ridge Drive 
Cedarmill Drive and Summer Ridge Drive & 
Summer Lake Drive (east of Baxter Road) 
Cedarmill Drive and Summer Ridge Drive 
(west of Baxter Road) 
Century Lake Drive and Old Baxter Road 
Cepi Drive and Chesterfield Airport Road 

Chamfers Farm Road and Wilson Road 
Chateaugay Lane and Heather Crest Drive 
Chequer Drive and Highcroft Drive 

Chermoore Drive and Schoettler Road 
Chesterfield Airport Road and Chesterfield 
Industrial Boulevard 
Chesterfield Airport Road and Goddard 
Avenue 
Chesterfield Commons Drive and Commons 
Frontage Road 
Chesterfield Commons Drive and THF 
Boulevard 
Chesterfield Commons East Road and THF 
Boulevard 
Chesterfield Commons East Road and 
Commons Frontage Road 
Chesterfield Estates Drive and Riverdale Circle 
Chesterfield Industrial Boulevard and Edison 
Avenue 
Chesterfield Mall North Entrance and 
Chesterfield Center 
Chesterfield Manor Drive and LeHigh 
Meadows Drive 
Chesterfield Trails Drive and Schoettler Road 
Chesterton Lane and Clayton Road 
Clarkson Road and Leiman Road 
Clarkson Road and Park Forest Drive 
Clarkson Road and Walden Pond Lane 
Clarkson Woods Drive and Woodlet Park 
Court 
Clarkwood Court and Windfall Ridge Drive 
Claymills Drive and Country Ridge Drive 
Claymont Estates Drive and Clayton Road 
Claymont Estates Drive and Denwoods Drive 

Cedar Forest Court (southbound) 
Clover Ridge Drive (Northbound and 
Southbound) 
All-Way stop 

All-Way stop 

All-Way stop 
Century Lake Drive (westbound) 
Cepi Drive (northbound) 
Chamfers Farm Road (westbound) 
Heather Crest Drive 
All-Way stop 
Chermoore Drive (northbound and 
southbound) 
Chesterfield Industrial Boulevard 
(northbound) 
Goddard Avenue (northbound and 
southbound) 

All-Way stop 

THF Boulevard (eastbound and westbound) 

THF Boulevard (eastbound) 

Commons Frontage Road (eastbound) 
All-Way stop 

All-Way stop 
Chesterfield Mall North Entrance 
(southbound) 

All-Way stop 
Chesterfield Trails Drive (westbound) 
Chesterton Lane (southbound) 
Leiman Road (westbound) 
Park Forest Drive (northbound) 
Walden Pond Lane (eastbound) 

All-Way stop 
Clarkwood Court 
Claymills Drive (southbound) 
Claymont Estates Drive (southbound) 
Denwoods Drive 



Claymont Estates Drive and Forsheer Drive 
Claymont Estates Drive and Redondo Drive 
Claymont Estates Drive and Woodsbluff Drive 
Claymoor Drive and Clayton Road 
Clayton Road and Wild Wood Parkway 
Clover Ridge Drive and Schoettler Valley 
Drive 
Cobble Hill Court and Green Trails Drive 
South 
Commons Frontage Road and RHL Drive 
Conway Road and Hunters Hill Drive 
Conway Road and Still House Creek Road 
Conway Road and Swingley Ridge Road 
Cooperstown Drive and Greentrails Drive S 
Cooperstown Drive and White Road 
Country Field Drive and Country Ridge Drive 

Country Field Drive and Golden Rain Drive 
Southbound Country Manor Parkway and 
Countryside Manor Place 
Country Mill Court and Summer Lake Drive 
Country Ridge Drive and Courtleigh Lane 
Country Ridge Drive and Fairway Bend 
Country Ridge Drive and Federal Way 
Country Ridge Drive and Honey Ridge Court 
Country Ridge Drive and Kempwood Drive 
Country Ridge Drive and Lake Clay Drive 
Country Ridge Drive and Parasol Drive 
Country Ridge Drive and Pheasant Hill Court 
Country Ridge Drive and Setters Hill Court 
Country Ridge Drive and Silverwood Lane 
Country Ridge Drive and Sunflower Court 
Country Ridge Drive and Sycamore Hill Court 
Country Ridge Drive and Valley Ridge Drive 
Country Ridge Drive and Vineyard Lane 
Country Ridge Drive and White Cedar Court 
Country Ridge Drive and Wide Oak Court 
Country Ridge Drive and Willow Forest Court 
Country Ridge Drive and Willow Lake Drive 
Country Ridge Drive and Winterhaven Court 
Country Ridge Drive and Woodland Field 
Court 
Countryside Manor Parkway and Countryside 
Forrest Court 

All-Way stop 
All-Way stop 
Woodsbluff Drive (eastbound) 
Clayton Road 
Wild Wood Parkway (westbound) 

All-Way stop 
Cobble Hill Court (eastbound and 
westbound) 
Commons Frontage Road 
Hunters Hill Drive (northbound) 
Still House Creek Road (southbound) 
Conway Road 
Cooperstown Drive (eastbound) 
Cooperstown Drive (westbound) 
Country Field Drive (southbound) 
Golden Rain Drive (Eastbound and 
Westbound) 

All-Way stop 
All-Way stop 
Courtleigh Lane (Northbound) 
All-Way stop 
All-Way stop 
Honey Ridge Court (northbound) 
Kempwood Drive (westbound) 
Lake Clay Drive (eastbound) 
All-Way stop 
Pheasant Hill Court (southbound) 
Setters Hill Court (southbound) 
Silverwood Lane (eastbound and westbound) 
Sunflower Court (southbound) 
Sycamore Hill Court (southbound) 
Valley Ridge Drive (westbound) 
Vineyard lane (southbound) 
White Cedar Court (northbound) 
Wide Oak Court (southbound) 
Willow Forest Court (southbound) 
Willow Lake Drive (northbound) 
Winterhaven Court 

Woodland Field Court 

All-Way stop 



Countryside Manor Parkway and Countryside 
Manor Court 
Countryside Manor Parkway and Countryside 
Manor Place 
Creve Coeur Mill Road and Amiot Court 
Creve Coeur Mill Road and Terra Vista Drive 
Crosstrails Drive and Ladue Road 

Crossway Court and Gatemont Drive 
Cypress Hill Drive and Stablestone Drive 
Deerhorn Drive and Greenleaf Valley Drive 
Denwoods Drive and Isleview Drive 
Dinsmoor Drive and Dungate Drive (east 
intersection) 
Dinsmoor Drive and Greentrails Drive South 
Dungate Drive and White Road 
Eads Avenue and Goddard Avenue 
Eagle Bluff Court and Riverdale Drive 
Eagle Winds Court and Riverdale Drive 

Edison Avenue and Goddard Avenue 
Edison Avenue and Spirit of St. Louis 
Boulevard 
Edison Avenue and Turbine Avenue 
Englewood Terrace and Sycamore Drive (2 
Stop Signs) 
Englewood Terrace and Terrimill Terrace 
Farm Valley Drive and Grantley Drive 
Forest Crest Drive and Forest Vale Drive & 
Calcutta Drive (west intersection) 
Forest Crest Drive and Forest Vale Drive (east 
intersection) 
Forest Crest Drive and Manson Drive 
Georgetown Road and Schoettler Road 
Glen Cove Drive and High Valley Drive (east 
intersection) 
Glen Valley Drive and Glen Hollow Drive 

Golden Rain Drive and Country Ridge Drive 
Grantley Drive and Hollowtree Court 
Grantley Drive and Schoettler Road 
Grantley Drive and Schoettler Valley Drive 
Grantley Drive and Sycamore Manor Drive 
Green Trails Drive South and West Manor 
Drive 
Green Trails Drive and Ladue Road 

All-Way stop 

All-Way stop 
Amiot Court (eastbound) 
Terra Vista Drive (eastbound) 
Crosstrails Drive (southbound) 

Crossway Court 
Cypress Hill Drive (westbound) 
All-Way stop 
All-Way stop 

Dungate Drive 
All-Way stop 
Dungate Drive (westbound) 
Eads Avenue 
All-Way stop 
All-Way stop 
Goddard Avenue (northbound and 
southbound) 

Spirit of St. Louis Boulevard 
Turbine Avenue 

All-Way stop 
All-Way stop 
Farm Valley Drive 

All-Way stop 

All-Way stop 
All-Way stop 
Georgetown Road (eastbound) 

Glen Cove Drive 
Glen Hollow Drive (northbound) 
Golden Rain Drive (eastbound and 
westbound) 
All-Way stop 
Grantley Drive (eastbound and westbound) 
Grantley Drive (westbound) 
All-Way stop 

West Manor Drive (westbound) 
All-Way stop 



Greenleaf Valley Drive and Schoettler Road 
Greentrails Drive North and Stablestone Drive 
Greentrails Drive South and Hartwell Court 
Greentrails Drive South and Minitree Court 
Greentrails Drive South and Tealcrest Drive 
Greentrails Drive South and Trailtop Drive 

Heather Crest Drive and Villar Hill Drive 

Heathercroft Drive and Highcroft Drive 
Heathercroft Drive and Summer Ridge Drive 
High Valley Drive and Olive Boulevard 
Highcroft Drive and Heffington Drive and 
driveway to Parkway Elementary School 
Highcroft Drive and Howehill Ct. 
Highcroft Drive and Old Baxter Road 
Highcroft Drive and Schoettler Road 
Highcroft Drive and Schoettler Valley Drive 
Hillcrest Meadow Drive and Somerset Field 
Drive 
Hunters Point and Schoettler Road 
Jeffrimill Circle and Wendimill Drive 
Judson Manor Drive and Land-O-Woods Drive 
Justus Post Road and Milbridge Drive 
Justus Post Road and Walpole Drive 
Kehrs Mill Road and Wendimill Drive 

La Barge Drive and Land-O-Woods Drive 
Ladue Bluffs Crossing Drive and New Holland 
Drive 
Ladue Road and Lake Trails Court 
Ladue Road and Palladian Court 
Ladue Road and Portico Drive 
Ladue Road and San Angelo Drive 
Ladue Road and Saylesville Drive 
Ladue Road and Seabrook Drive 
Ladue Road and Trailswest Drive (Both 
Intersections) 

Land 0 Woods Drive and Judson Manor Drive 
Long Castle Forest Court and Parasol Drive 
Markham Lane and Strawbridge Drive 
Markham&Marmont and Stablestone Drive 
Millbriar Circle and Westernmill Drive 

Greenleaf Valley Drive (eastbound) 
Greentrails Drive North 
Hartwell Court (northbound) 
Minitree Court (southbound) 
Tealcrest Drive (eastbound) 
Trailtop Drive northbound (2 stop signs) 
Villar Hill Drive (southbound and 
northbound) 
Judson Manor Drive (northbound and 
southbound) 
Summer Ridge Drive 
High Valley Drive (northbound) 
Heffington Drive and the driveway to 
Parkway Elementary School 
All-Way stop 
All-Way stop 
Highcroft Drive (eastbound) 
All-Way stop 

All-Way stop 
Hunters Point (southbound) 
All-Way stop 
All-Way stop 
All-Way stop 
All-Way stop 
Wendimill Drive (westbound) 
La Barge Drive (eastbound) and Land-0- 
Woods Drive (northbound) 

Ladue Bluffs Crossing Drive 
Lake Trails Court, (northbound) 
Palladian Court, (southbound) 
Portico Drive, (southbound) 
San Angelo Drive, (southbound) 
Saylesville Drive, (eastbound) 
Seabrook Drive, (southbound) 

Trailswest Drive 
Judson Manor Drive (eastbound and 
westbound) 
All-Way stop 
All-Way stop 
All-Way stop 
All-Way stop 



Missouri Central Railway crossing located 
west of Cepi Drive and east of Goddard 
Avenue 
Monterra Drive and Olive Boulevard 
New Bedford Court and Saylesville Drive 
Oak Post Lane and Old Baxter Road 
Oak Stand path, Oak Stand Court and Willow 
Weald path 

Oak Stand path and Pine Copse Path 
Old Baxter Road and Hedgeford Drive 
Old Baxter Road and Baxter Lane 
Old Baxter Road and Century Lake Drive 
Old Chesterfield Road and Santa Maria Drive 
Olive Boulevard and River Bend Drive 
Olive Boulevard and Sunbridge Drive 
Olive Boulevard and West Drive 
Olive Boulevard and Westbury Drive 
Olive Boulevard and. Westernmill Drive 
Olive Boulevard and White Plains Drive 
Parasol Drive and Shadyford Court 
Pine Copse Path and Willow Weald Path 
Public Works Drive and THF Boulevard and 
Chesterfield Valley Drive 
Rainey Lake Drive and White Road 
RHL Drive and THF Boulevard 
RI-IL Drive and Commons Frontage Road 
Ridge Trail Drive and River Valley Drive 
River Valley Drive and River Way Drive 
Rockmoor Drive and Schoettler Valley Drive 
Rogue River Drive and White Road 
Rogue River Drive and Winema Drive 
Royal Crest Court and South Outer Forty 
Santa Maria Drive and Wild Horse Creek Road 
Saylesville Drive and Wethersfield Terrace 
Court 
Schoettler Road and Summer Blossom Lane 
Schoettler Road and Sycamore Manor Drive 
Schoettler Road and Windsor Valley Court 
Schoettler Valley Drive and Squireway & Pine 
Run Drive 
Seven Gables Court and White Road 
South Outer Forty and Woodroyal East Drive 
South Outer Forty and Woodroyal West Drive 

Edison Avenue (eastbound and westbound) 
Monterra Drive (northbound) 
New Bedford Court (eastbound) 
Oak Post Lane (westbound) 

Oak Stand Court (northbound) 
Oak Stand Path (northbound and 
southbound) 
Hedgeford Drive (westbound) 
Baxter Lane (westbound) 
Century Lake Drive (westbound) 
Santa Maria Drive (northbound) 
River Bend Drive (southbound) 
Sunbridge Drive (southbound) 
West Drive (eastbound) 
Westbury Drive (northbound) 
Westernmill Drive (northbound) 
White Plains Drive (westbound) 
All-Way stop 
Pine Copse Path (eastbound) 
THF Boulevard (westbound); Chesterfield 
Valley Drive (eastbound) 
Rainey Lake Drive (westbound) 
THF Boulevard (eastbound, westbound) 
All-Way stop 
All-Way stop 
River Way Drive (westbound) 
Rockmoor Drive (eastbound) 
Rogue River Drive (southbound) 
All-Way stop 
Royal Crest Court (northbound) 
Santa Maria Drive (southbound) 

Wethersfield Terrace (eastbound) 
Summer Blossom Lane (southbound) 
Sycamore Manor Drive (southbound) 
Windsor Valley Court (westbound) 

All-Way Stop 
Seven Gables Court (eastbound) 
Woodroyal East Drive 
Woodroyal West Drive 



South Outer Forty and Yarmouth Point 

Springrun Drive and Still House Creek Road 
Stablestone Court and Stablestone Drive 
Stablestone Drive and Strawbridge Drive 

Stablestone Drive and Westernmill Drive 
Stablestone Drive and Windcreek Drive 
Stonebriar Manor Drive and Stonebriar Ridge 
Drive 
Straub Hill Lane and White Lane Drive 
Swingley Ridge Drive and Timbervalley Road 
Sycamore Drive and Terrimill Terrace 
Timberlake Manor Parkway and Timberbluff 
Drive 
White Birch Valley Lane and White Road 
White Lane Drive and Brookhaven Place 
White Road and Whitree Lane 
Wilson Farm Drive and Wilson Ridge Lane 
Wilson Farm Drive and Wilson Avenue 
Wilson Forest View Court and Wilson Avenue 
Wilson Manor Drive and Wilson Avenue 
Wilson Avenue and Wild Horse Creek Road 
Wilson Avenue and Wilson Woods Court 

Yarmouth Point 
Springrun Drive (westbound) 
Stablestone Court (eastbound) 
Strawbridge Drive (southbound) 
Westernmill Drive (eastbound and 
westbound) 
All-Way stop 

All-Way stop 
All-Way stop 
Timbervalley Road (westbound) 
All-Way stop 

Timberbluff Drive (northbound) 
White Birch Valley Lane (northbound) 
Brookhaven Place (southbound) 
Whitree Lane (northbound) 
All-Way stop 
Wilson Farm Drive (eastbound) 
Wilson Forest View Court (westbound) 
Wilson Manor Drive (eastbound) 
Wilson Avenue (northbound) 
Wilson Woods Court (westbound) 

Section 2. The existing Schedule VI Intersection Stops, shown below, is hereby deleted: 

In accordance with section 300 of this Code [Code of the City of Chesterfield, Missouri], and 
when signs are erected giving notice thereof, traffic at the intersection listed in this schedule shall 

be required to stop as specified in this schedule. 

Intersection 
Amherst Green Court and Amherst Terrace 
Annasarra Court and White Lane Drive 
Appalachian Trail and Beaver Creek Road 
Appalachian Trail and Cedar Creek Road 
Appalachian Trail and Duxbury Way 
Appalachian Trail and Eaglepass Drive 
Appalachian Trail and Harrisburg Court 
Appalachian Trail and Hidden Oak Drive 
Appalachian Trail and Hitchcock Road 
Appalachian Trail and Jonesborough Road 
Appalachian Trail and Pickett Court 
Appalachian Trail and Rutland Circle 

Traffic on Highway, Road, Street or Alley 
Listed Below Shall Stop 
All-Way stop 
All-Way stop 
Beaver Creek Road, (northbound) 
Cedar Creek Court, (northbound) 
Duxbury Way (northbound) 
Eaglepass Drive (westbound) 
Harrisburg Court (eastbound and westbound) 
All-Way stop 
Hitchcock Road, (eastbound) 
Jonesborough Road, (southbound) 
Pickett Court, (westbound) 
Rutland Circle, (northbound) 



Appalachian Trail and Salt Box Drive 
Appalachian Trail and Still-House Creek 
Road 
Appalachian Trail and Ticonderoga Drive 
Appalachian Trail and Traverton Drive 
Appalachian Trail and Winema Drive 
August Hill Drive and Stonebrook Court and 
Willow Weald Path 
Baxter Road and Baxter Village Drive 
Baxter Road and Baxton Way 
Baxter Road and Chateau Village Drive 

Baxter Road and Claymont Estates Drive 
Baxter Road and Country Field Drive 
Baxter Road and Heathercroft Drive 
Baxter Road and Isleview Drive 
Baxter Road and Manor Creek Drive 
Baxter Road and Royalbrook Drive 
Baxter Road and Summer Lake Drive 

Baxter Road and Summer Ridge Drive 
Beechcraft Avenue and Edison Avenue 
Bell Avenue and Edison Avenue 
Bent Tree Drive and Wilson Road 
Benton Taylor Drive and Benton Taylor 
Lane 
Blue Hill Road and Kehrs Mill Road 
Bow Tree Court and Clarkson Road 
Boxford Court and Saylesville Drive 
Bramblewood Court and Stablestone Drive 
Braumton Court and Buckington Drive 
Brittania Court and Brittania Drive 
Brittania Drive and Buckington Drive 
Brittania Drive and Gatemont Drive 
Brittania Drive and Oxborough Court 
Brittania Drive and Schoettler Road 
Brook Hill Court and Brook Hill Drive 
Brook Hill Drive and Brook Hill Ridge Drive 
Brook Hill Lane and White Lane Drive 
Carriage Crossing Lane and Wild Horse 
Creek Road 
Cedar Forest Court and Country Ridge Drive 

Cedarmill Drive and Clover Ridge Drive 

Salt Box Drive, (southbound) 

All-Way stop 
Ticonderoga Drive, (westbound) 
Traverton Drive, northbound 
All-Way stop 

All-Way stop 
Baxter Village Drive, (westbound) 
Baxton Way, (eastbound) 
Chateau Village Drive (westbound) 
Claymont Estates Drive, (eastbound and 
westbound) 
Country Field DriVe, (northbound) 
Heathercroft Drive, (northbound) 
Isleview Drive, (westbound) 
Manor Creek Drive, (southbound) 
Royalbrook Drive, (westbound) 
Summer Lake Drive, (westbound) 
Summer Ridge Drive, (eastbound and 
westbound) 
Beechcraft Avenue 
Bell Avenue (northbound,southbound) 
Bent Tree Drive, (westbound) 

Benton Taylor Lane, (southbound) 
Blue Hill Road, (southbound & northbound) 
Bow Tree Court, (southbound) 
All-Way stop 
Bramblewood Court, (northbound) 
Braumton Court, (northbound) 
Brittania Court 
Buckington Drive 
Gatemont Drive 
Oxborough Court 
Brittania Drive, (westbound) 
Brook Hill Court (northbound and southbound) 
All-Way stop 
White Lane Drive 

Carriage Crossing Lane, (northbound) 
Cedar Forest Court, (southbound) 
Clover Ridge Drive (Northbound and 
Southbound) 



Cedarmill Drive and Country Ridge Drive 
Cedarmill Drive and Summer Ridge Drive & 
Summer Lake Drive (east of Baxter Road) 
Cedarmill Drive and Summer Ridge Drive 
(west of Baxter Road) 
Century Lake Drive and Old Baxter Road 
Cepi Drive and Chesterfield Airport Road 

Chamfers Farm Road and Wilson Road 
Chateaugay Drive and Heather Crest Drive 
Chequer Drive and Highcroft Drive 

Chermoore Drive and Schoettler Road 
Chesterfield Airport Road and Chesterfield 
Industrial Boulevard 
Chesterfield Airport Road and Goddard 
Avenue 
Chesterfield Commons Drive and Frontage 
Road 
Chesterfield Estates Drive and Riverdale 
Circle 
Chesterfield Industrial Boulevard and Edison 
Avenue 
Chesterfield Manor Drive and LeHigh 
Meadows Drive 
Chesterfield Trails Drive and Schoettler 
Road 
Chesterton Lane and Clayton Road 
Clarkson Road and Leiman Road 
Clarkson Road and Park Forest Drive 
Clarkson Road and Walden Pond Lane 
Clarkson Woods Drive and Woodlet Park 
Court 
Clarkwood Court and Windfall Ridge Drive 
Claymills Drive and Country Ridge Drive 
Claymont Estates Drive and Clayton Road 
Claymont Estates Drive and Denwoods 
Drive 
Claymont Estates Drive and Forsheer Drive 
Claymont Estates Drive and Redondo Drive 
Claymont Estates Drive and Woodsbluff 
Drive 
Claymoor Drive and Clayton Road 
Claymoor Drive and Green Circle Drive 
Clayton Road and Wild Wood Parkway 
Clover Ridge Drive and Schoettler Valley 

All-Way stop 

All-Way stop 

All-Way stop 
Century Lake Drive, (westbound) 
Cepi Drive, (northbound) 
Chamfers Farm Road (westbound) 
Heather Crest Drive 
All-Way stop 
Chermoore Drive, (northbound and 
southbound) 
Chesterfield Industrial Boulevard, 
(northbound) 

Goddard Avenue (northbound and southbound) 
Chesterfield Commons Drive (North and 
Southbound) 

All-Way stop 

All-Way stop 

All-Way stop 

Chesterfield Trails Drive, (westbound) 
Chesterton Lane, (southbound) 
Leiman Road, (westbound) 
Park Forest Drive, (northbound) 
Walden Pond Lane, (eastbound) 

All-Way stop 
Clarkwood Court 
Claymills Drive, (southbound) 
Claymont Estates Drive, (southbound) 

Denwoods Drive 
All-Way stop 
All-Way stop 

Woodsbluff Drive (eastbound) 
Clayton Road 
All-Way stop 
Wild Wood Parkway, (westbound) 
All-Way stop 



Drive 
Cobble Hill Court and Green Trails Drive 
South 
Commons Frontage Road and RHL Drive 
Conway Road and Hunters Hill Drive 
Conway Road and Still House Creek Road 
Conway Road and Swingley Ridge Road 
Cooperstown Drive and Greentrails Drive S 
Cooperstown Drive and White Road 
Country Field Drive and Country Ridge 
Drive 

Country Field Drive and Golden Rain Drive 
Country Manor Parkway and Countryside 
Manor Place 
Country Mill Court and Summer Lake Drive 
Country Ridge Drive and Courtleigh Lane 
Country Ridge Drive and Fairway Bend 
Country Ridge Drive and Federal Way 
Country Ridge Drive and Honey Ridge Court 
Country Ridge Drive and Kempwood Drive 
Country Ridge Drive and Lake Clay Drive 
Country Ridge Drive and Parasol Drive 
Country Ridge Drive and Pheasant Hill Court 
Country Ridge Drive and Setters Hill Court 
Country Ridge Drive and Silverwood Lane 
Country Ridge Drive and Sunflower Court 
Country Ridge Drive and Sycamore Hill 
Court 
Country Ridge Drive and Valley Ridge Drive 
Country Ridge Drive and Vineyard lane 
Country Ridge Drive and White Cedar Court 
Country Ridge Drive and Wide Oak Court 
Country Ridge Drive and Willow Forest 
Court 
Country Ridge Drive and Willow Lake Drive 
Country Ridge Drive and Winterhaven Court 
Country Ridge Drive and Woodland Field 
Court 
Crosstrails Drive and Ladue Road 
Crossway Court and Gatemont Drive 
Cypress Hill Drive and Stablestone Drive 
Deerhorn Drive and Greenleaf Valley Drive 
Denwoods Drive and Isleview Drive 

Cobble Hill Court, (eastbound and westbound) 
Commons Frontage Road 
Hunters Hill Drive, (northbound) 
Still House Creek Road, (southbound) 
Conway Road 
Cooperstown Drive, (eastbound) 
Cooperstown Drive, (westbound) 

Country Field Drive, (southbound) 
Golden Rain Drive (Eastbound and 
Westbound) 

All-Way stop 
All-Way stop 
Courtleigh Lane (Northbound) 
All-Way stop 
All-Way stop 
Honey Ridge Court, (northbound) 
Kempwood Drive, (westbound) 
Lake Clay Drive, (eastbound) 
All-Way stop 
Pheasant Hill Court, (southbound) 
Setters Hill Court, (southbound) 
Silverwood Lane, (eastbound and westbound) 
Sunflower Court, (southbound) 

Sycamore Hill Court, (southbound) 
Valley Ridge Drive, (westbound) 
Vineyard lane, (southbound) 
White Cedar Court, (northbound) 
Wide Oak Court, (southbound) 

Willow Forest Court, (southbound) 
Willow Lake Drive, (northbound) 
Winterhaven Court 

Woodland Field Court 
Crosstrails Drive, (southbound) 
Crossway Court 
Cypress Hill Drive, (westbound) 
All-Way stop 
All-Way stop 



Dinsmoor Drive and Dungate Drive (east 
intersection) 
Dinsmoor Drive and Green Trails Drive 
South 
Dinsmoor Drive and Greentrails Drive South 
Dungate Drive and White Road 
Eads Avenue and Goddard Avenue 
Eagle Bluff Court and Riverdale Drive 
Eagle Winds Court and Riverdale Drive 
Edison Avenue and Goddard Avenue 
Edison Avenue and Spirit of St. Louis 
Boulevard 
Edison Avenue and Turbine Avenue 
Englewood Terrace and Sycamore Drive (2 
Stop Signs) 
Englewood Terrace and Terrimill Terrace 
Farm Valley Drive and Grantley Drive 
Forest Crest Drive and Forest Vale Drive & 
Calcutta Drive (west intersection) 
Forest Crest Drive and Forest Vale Drive 
(east intersection) 
Forest Crest Drive and Manson Drive 
Forest Trace Drive and Quail Meadows 
Drive 
Foxsprings Drive, (eastbound and 
westbound) and Timbervalley Road 
Georgetown Road and Schoettler Road 
Glen Cove Drive and High Valley Drive 
(east intersection) 

Golden Rain Drive and Country Ridge Drive 
Grantley Drive and Hollowtree Court 
Grantley Drive and Schoettler Road 
Grantley Drive and Schoettler Valley Drive 
Grantley Drive and Sycamore Manor Drive 
Green Trails Drive South and Westmanor 
Drive 
Green Trails Drive and Ladue Road 
Green Trails Elementary and Portico Drive 
(Manually operated) 
Green Trails Elementary and Portico Drive 
(Manually operated) 
Greenleaf Valley Drive and Schoettler Road 
Greentrails Drive North and Stablestone 
Drive 

Dungate Drive 

All-Way stop 
All-Way stop 
Dungate Drive, (westbound) 
Eads Avenue 
All-Way stop 
All-Way stop 
All-Way stop 

Spirit of St. Louis Boulevard 
Turbine Avenue 

All-Way stop 
All-Way stop 
Farm Valley Drive 

All-Way stop 

All-Way stop 
All-Way stop 

Forest Trace Drive, (westbound) 

Foxsprings Drive 
Georgetown Road, (eastbound) 

Glen Cove Drive 
Golden Rain Drive, (eastbound and 
westbound) 
All-Way stop 
Grantley Drive, (eastbound and westbound) 
Grantley Drive, (westbound) 
All-Way stop 

Westmanor Drive, (westbound) 
All-Way stop 

Portico Drive, (northbound) 

Portico Drive, (southbound) 
Greenleaf Valley Drive, (eastbound) 

Greentrails Drive North 



Greentrails Drive South and Hartwell Court 
Greentrails Drive South and Minitree Court 
Greentrails Drive South and Tealcrest Drive 
Greentrails Drive South and Trailtop Drive 
Gunston Hall Court and Ladue Road 

Heathercrest Drive and Villar Hill Drive 
Heathercroft Drive and Highcroft Drive 
Heathercroft Drive and Summer Ridge Drive 
High Valley Drive and Olive Boulevard 
Highcroft Drive and Heffington Drive and 
driveway to Parkway Elementary School 
Highcroft Drive and Howehill Ct. 
Highcroft Drive and Old Baxter Road 
Highcroft Drive and Schoettler Road 
Highcroft Drive and Schoettler Valley Drive 
Hillcrest Meadow Drive and Somerset Field 
Drive 
Hunters Point and Schoettler Road 
Jeffrimill Circle and Wendimill Drive 
Judson Manor Drive and Land-O-Woods 
Drive 
Justus Post Road and Milbridge Drive 
Justus Post Road and Walpole Drive 
Kehrs Mill Road and Wendimill Drive 

La Barge Drive and Land-O-Woods Drive 
Ladue Bluffs Crossing Drive and New 
Holland Drive 
Ladue Road and Lake Trails Court 
Ladue Road and Palladian Court 
Ladue Road and Portico Drive 
Ladue Road and San Angelo Drive 
Ladue Road and Saylesville Drive 
Ladue Road and Seabrook Drive 
Ladue Road and Trailswest Drive (Both 
Intersections) 
Long Castle Forest Court and Parasol Drive 
Maple Rise Path and Pine Copse Path 
Markham Lane and Strawbridge Drive 
Markham&Marmont and Stablestone Drive 
Millbriar Circle and Westernmill Drive 
Missouri Central Railway crossing located 
west of Cepi Drive and east of Goddard 
Avenue 

Hartwell Court, (northbound) 
Minitree Court, (southbound) 
Tealcrest Drive, (eastbound) 
Trailtop Drive, northbound (2 stop signs) 
Gunston Hall Court (southbound) 
Villar Hill Drive, (southbound and 
northbound) 
All-Way stop 
Summer Ridge Drive 
High Valley Drive, (northbound) 
Heffington Drive and the driveway to Parkway 
Elementary School 
All-Way stop 
All-Way stop 
Highcroft Drive (eastbound) 
All-Way stop 

All-Way stop 
Hunters Point, (southbound) 
All-Way stop 

All-Way stop 
All-Way stop 
All-Way stop 
Wendimill Drive, (westbound) 
La Barge Drive (eastbound) and Land-0- 
Woods Drive (northbound) 

Ladue Bluffs Crossing Drive 
Lake Trails Court, (northbound) 
Palladian Court, (southbound) 
Portico Drive, (southbound) 
San Angelo Drive, (southbound) 
Saylesville Drive, (eastbound) 
Seabrook Drive, (southbound) 

Trailswest Drive 
All-Way stop 
Maple Rise Path (northbound) 
All-Way stop 
All-Way stop 
All-Way stop 

Edison Avenue (eastbound and westbound) 



Monterra Drive and Olive Boulevard 
New Bedford Court and Saylesville Drive 
Oak Post Lane and Old Baxter Road 
Oak Stand path, Oak Stand Court and 
Willow Weald path 
Oak Stand path and Pine Copse Path 
Old Chesterfield Road and Santa Maria 
Drive 
Olive Boulevard and River Bend Drive 
Olive Boulevard and Sunbridge Drive 
Olive Boulevard and West Drive 
Olive Boulevard and Westbury Drive 
Olive Boulevard and Westemmill Drive 
Olive Boulevard and White Plains Drive 
Parasol Drive and Shadyford Court 
Pine Copse Path and Willow Weald Path 
Portico Drive at the crosswalk in front of the 
Green Trails Elementary School 
Rainey Lake Drive and White Road 
Ridge Trail Drive and River Valley Drive 
River Valley Drive and River Way Drive 
Rockmoor Drive and Schoettler Valley Drive 
Rogue River Drive and White Road 
Rogue River Drive and Winema Drive 
Royal Crest Court and South Outer Forty 

Santa Maria Drive (mid-block) 
Santa Maria Drive and Wild Horse Creek 
Road 
Saylesville Drive and Wethersfield Terrace 
Court 
Schoettler Road and Summer Blossom Lane 
Schoettler Road and Sycamore Manor Drive 
Schoettler Road and Windsor Valley Court 
Schoettler Valley and Squireway & Pine Run 
Seven Gables Court and White Road 
South Outer Forty and Woodroyal East Drive 
South Outer Forty and Woodroyal West 
Drive 
South Outer Forty and Yarmouth Point 

Springrun Drive and Still House Creek Road 
Stablestone Court and Stablestone Drive 
Stablestone Drive and Strawbridge Drive 

Monterra Drive, (northbound) 
New Bedford Court (eastbound) 
Oak Post Lane, (westbound) 

Oak Stand Court, (northbound) 
Oak Stand Path, (northbound and southbound) 

Santa Maria Drive, (northbound) 
River Bend Drive, (southbound) 
Sunbridge Drive, (southbound) 
West Drive, (eastbound) 
Westbury Drive, (northbound) 
Westemmill Drive, (northbound) 
White Plains Drive, (westbound) 
All-Way stop 
Pine Copse Path (eastbound) 
Portico Drive during school hours when 
manually operated signs are facing traffic 
Rainey Lake Drive, (westbound) 
All-Way stop 
River Way Drive, (westbound) 
Rockmoor Drive, (eastbound) 
Rogue River Drive, (southbound) 
All-Way stop 
Royal Crest Court, (northbound) 
Santa Maria Drive, five hundred (500) feet 
north of Wild Horse Creek Road, at 230 Santa 
Maria Drive 

Santa Maria Drive, (southbound) 

Wethersfield Terrace (eastbound) 
Summer Blossom Lane, (southbound) 
Sycamore Manor Drive, (southbound) 
Windsor Valley Court (westbound) 
All-Way stop 
Seven Gables Court, (eastbound) 
Woodroyal East Drive 

Woodroyal West Drive 
Yarmouth Point 

Springrun Drive, (westbound) 
Stablestone Court, (eastbound) 
Strawbridge Drive, (southbound) 



Stablestone Drive and Westernmill Drive 
Stablestone Drive and Windcreek Drive 
Stonebriar Manor Drive and Stonebriar 
Ridge Drive 
Straub Hill Lane and White Lane Drive 
Swingley Ridge Drive and Timbervalley 
Road 
Sycamore Drive and Terrimill Terrace 
Timbervalley Road and Woodpoint Drive 
White Birch Valley Lane and White Road 
White Road and Whitree Lane 
Wilson Farm Drive and Wilson Ridge Lane 
Wilson Farm Drive and Wilson Road 
Wilson Forest View Court and Wilson Road 
Wilson Manor Drive and Wilson Road.  
Wilson Road and Wild Horse Creek Road 
Wilson Road and Wilson Woods Court 

Westernmill Drive, (eastbound and westbound) 

All-Way stop 

All-Way stop 
All-Way stop 

Timbervalley Road, (westbound) 
All-Way stop 
Woodpoint Drive 
White Birch Valley Lane, (northbound) 
Whitree Lane, (northbound) 
All-Way stop 
Wilson Farm Drive (eastbound) 
Wilson Forest View Court (westbound) 
Wilson Manor Drive (eastbound) 
Wilson Road, (northbound) 
Wilson Woods Court (westbound) 

Section 3. 	Schedule VII as it relates to Yield Intersections is hereby repealed and 

replaced with a new Schedule VII to read as follows: 

In accordance with section 300 of this Code [Code of the City of Chesterfield, Missouri], and 

when signs are erected giving notice thereof, traffic at the intersection listed in this schedule shall 

be required to yield the right-of-way as specified in this schedule. 

Intersection 

Baxter Road and Old Baxter Road 
Big Timber Lane and Chesterfield Trails 
Drive 
Brittania Drive and Crossway Court 
Cedarmill Drive and Baxter Ridge Drive 
Cedarmill Drive and Ridge Lake Drive 
Chesterfield Parkway and Forest Trace 
Drive 

City Center Drive and Stemme Drive 
Clarkson Woods Drive and Federal Way 
Claymont Drive and Greenbriar Lane 
Cross Trails Drive and Parliament Drive 
(south intersection) 
Cross Trails Drive and Parliament Drive 
(north intersection) 

Traffic on Highway, Road, Street or Alley 
Listed Below Shall Yield 
Old Baxter Road (northbound) 

Big Timber Lane (southbound) 
Crossway Court (eastbound and westbound) 
Baxter Ridge Drive (northbound) 
Ridge Lake Drive (eastbound and westbound) 

Forest Trace Drive (southbound) 
Stemme Drive (eastbound), City Center Drive 
(westbound) 
Federal Way (northbound) 
Greenbriar Lane (northbound) 

Parliament Drive (southbound) 

Parliament Drive (northbound) 



Forest Crest Drive and Forest Vale Drive 
Glen Cove Drive and Westernmill Drive 
Main Circle Drive 
Monterra Drive and San Angelo Drive 
Nooning Tree Drive and Brightfield Manor 
Drive 
Old Baxter Road 
Park Circle Drive and Main Circle Drive 
Summer Ridge Drive and York Ridge 
Court 
Summer Ridge Drive and Sumter Ridge 
Court 
West Manor Drive and Penshurst Place, 
(western intersection) 
Yarmouth Point Drive and Candish Lane 

Forest Vale Drive (southbound) 
Westernmill Drive (northbound and southbound) 
Main Circle Drive at Roundabout (northbound) 
San Angelo Drive (northbound) 
Nooning Tree (northbound and southbound) 
Brightfield Manor Drive (westbound) 
Old Baxter Road at Roundabout (southbound) 
Park Circle Drive (westbound) 

York Ridge Court (eastbound and westbound) 

Sumter Ridge Court (eastbound and westbound) 

Penshurst Place (westbound) 
Candish Lane (northbound) 

Section 4. The existing Schedule VII Yield Intersections, shown below, is hereby deleted: 

In accordance with section 300 of this Code [Code of the City of Chesterfield, Missouri], and 

when signs are erected giving notice thereof, traffic at the intersection listed in this schedule shall 

be required to yield the right-of-way as specified in this schedule 

Intersection 

Baxter Ridge Drive, westbound 
Big Timber Lane, southbound 
Brittania Drive and Crossway Court 
Calcutta Drive, northbound 
Calcutta Drive, Forestvale Drive and Forest 
Crest Drive 
Cedarmill Drive and Baxter Ridge Drive 
Cedarmill Drive-Claymont Lake Drive, and 
Ridge Lake Drive 
Chesterfield Trails Drive and Big Timber Lane 
Clarkson Woods Drive and Federal Way 
Claymont Drive and Greenbriar Lane 
Claymont Estates Drive and Woodsbluff Drive 
Country Ridge Drive and Country Field Drive 
Cross Trails Drive and Parliament Drive 

Cross Trails Drive 

Crossway Court, eastbound 
Crossway Court, westbound 
Forest Trace Drive, southbound right turn 

Traffic on Highway, Road, Street or Alley 
Listed Below Shall Yield 
Cedarmill Drive 
Chesterfield Trails 
Crossway Court 
Forest Crest Drive 
Calcutta Drive, Forestvale Drive 

Baxter Ridge Drive 
Ridge Lake Drive 

Big Timber Lane 
Federal Way 
Northbound Greenbriar 
Woodsbluff Drive 
Country Field Drive 
Parliament Drive, northbound shall yield 
through traffic on Cross Trails 
Parliament Drive (eastbound at 14100 
Parliament Drive) 
Brittania Drive 
Brittania Drive 
Chesterfield Parkway 



Forest Drive, southbound 
Glen Cove Drive and Westernmill' Drive 
Glen Hollow Drive and Glen Valley Drive 
Greentrails Drive North, southbound 
Land-O-Woods Drive and Judson Manor Drive 
Markham Lane and Strawbridge Drive 
Monterra Drive and San Angelo Drive 
Old Baxter Road, northbound 
Ridge Lake Drive, eastbound 
Ridge Lake Drive, westbound 
San Angelo Drive, northbound 
Schoettler Valley Drive and Squires Way 
Still-House Creek Road and Springrun Drive 
Strawbridge Drive, southbound 
Summer Ridge Drive and York Ridge Court 
West Manor Drive and Penshurst Place, 
western intersection 
Westernmill Drive, northbound 
Westemmill Drive, southbound 
Woodsbluff Drive, eastbound 

Forest Crest Drive 
Westernmill Drive 
Glen Hollow Drive 
Stablestone Drive 
Judson Manor Drive 
Strawbridge Drive 
San Angelo Drive 
Baxter Road 
Cedarmill Drive 
Cedarmill Drive 
Monterra Drive 
Squires Way 
Springrun Drive 
Markham Drive 
York Ridge Court 
Penshurst Place (westbound) 

Glencove Drive 
Glencove Drive 
Claymont Estates Drive 

Section 5. In all other respects, Ordinance Number 35 is in full force and effect. 

Section 6. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and 

approval. 

Passed and approved this 	day of 	 , 20 

Mayor 

ATTEST: 

City Clerk 

FIRST READING HELD 



BILL NO.W:c3 	 ORDINANCE NO. 

APPROVES THE INSTALLATION OF A FIRE HYDRANT AT HIGHCROFT 
RIDGE ELEMENTARY SCHOOL WITHIN THE CITY OF CHESTERFIELD. 

WHEREAS, at a duly called meeting of the Board of Directors of the Monarch Fire 
Protection District, the placement of a certain fire hydrant was approved; and, 

WHEREAS, it is necessary for the authorization of the placement of said fire 
hydrants by ordinance. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF CHESTERFIELD, ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. The placement of the following fire hydrant at the exact location as 
specified by the Insurance Services Office of Missouri and as approved by the Board of 
Directors of the Monarch Fire Protection District is hereby approved by the City of 
Chesterfield for installation: 

1. One (1) fire hydrant at the southwest corner of the intersection of Highcroft 
Drive and the entrance drive of Highcroft Ridge Elementary School. 

Section 2. The Missouri American Water Company is authorized to install said fire 
hydrants at the aforesaid locations. 

Section 3. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage 
and approval. 

Passed and approved this 	day of 	 , 2015. 

MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

CITY CLERK 

FIRST READING HELD: - I 



LEGISLATION - PLANNING COMMISSION 

BILL NO. 3048 - PROVIDES FOR THE APPROVAL OF A BOUNDARY ADJUSTMENT PLAT 
FOR LOTS 1 AND 2 OF 1600 KEHRS MILL ROAD FOR A 10.3 ACRE TRACT OF LAND ZONED 
"NU", NON-URBAN DISTRICT, AND LOCATED EAST OF KEHRS MILL ROAD AND NORTH 
OF STRECKER ROAD (19U530446) (SECOND READING; DEPT. OF PUBLIC SERVICES 
RECOMMENDS APPROVAL) 

BILL NO. 3049 - AMENDS THE ZONING ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF 
CHESTERFIELD BY CHANGING THE BOUNDARIES OF AN "NU" NON URBAN 
DISTRICT TO AN "E-1" ESTATE ONE ACRE DISTRICT FOR A 50.5279 ACRE 
TRACT OF LAND LOCATED ON THE SOUTH SIDE OF WILD HORSE CREEK 
ROAD WEST OF ITS INTERSECTION WITH LONG ROAD AND EAST OF ITS 
INTERSECTION WITH ARBOR GROVE COURT. (P.Z. 04-2015 ARBORS AT 
WILMAS FARM {17508 WILD HORSE CREEK ROAD} 18V330035) (FIRST READING; 
PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDS APPROVAL) 

BILL NO. 3050 -AMENDS THE ZONING ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF CHESTERFIELD BY 
CHANGING THE BOUNDARIES OF AN "E-1" ESTATE ONE ACRE DISTRICT TO A "PUD" 
PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT FOR A 50.5279 ACRE TRACT OF LAND LOCATED ON THE 
SOUTH SIDE OF WILD HORSE CREEK ROAD WEST OF ITS INTERSECTION WITH LONG 
ROAD AND EAST OF ITS INTERSECTION WITH ARBOR GROVE COURT. (P.Z. 05-2015 
ARBORS AT WILMAS FARM {17508 WILD HORSE CREEK ROAD} 18V330035) (FIRST 
READING; PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDS APPROVAL) 

BILL NO. 3051 - REPEALS CITY OF CHESTERFIELD ORDINANCE NUMBER 2848 
PROVIDING FOR THE APPROVAL OF A RECORD PLAT AND ESCROW AGREEMENTS FOR 
THE ARBORS AT KEHRS MILL PLAT 1, A 27.055 ACRE TRACT OF LAND ZONED "PUD" 
PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT LOCATED NORTH OF THE INTERSECTION OF 
STRECKER ROAD AND CHURCH ROAD (FIRST AND SECOND READINGS; PLANNING 
COMMISSION RECOMMENDS APPROVAL) 

BILL NO. 3052 - REPEALS CITY OF CHESTERFIELD ORDINANCE NUMBER 2849 
PROVIDING FOR THE APPROVAL OF A RECORD PLAT AND ESCROW AGREEMENTS FOR 
THE ARBORS AT KEHRS MILL PLAT 2, A 31.093 ACRE TRACT OF LAND ZONED "PUD" 
PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT LOCATED NORTH OF THE INTERSECTION OF 
STRECKER ROAD AND CHURCH ROAD (FIRST AND SECOND READINGS; PLANNING 
COMMISSION RECOMMENDS APPROVAL) 



BILL NO.  3048 	 ORDINANCE NO. 	 

AN ORDINANCE PROVIDING FOR THE APPROVAL OF A BOUNDARY 
ADJUSTMENT PLAT FOR LOTS 1 AND 2 OF 1600 KEHRS MILL ROAD FOR 
A 10.3 ACRE TRACT OF LAND ZONED "NU" NON-URBAN DISTRICT AND 
LOCATED EAST OF KEHRS MILL ROAD AND NORTH OF STRECKER ROAD 
(19U530446). 

WHEREAS, Volz Inc., on behalf of Gregory E. Calame 85 Mary Jo Calame 
Revocable Trust, has submitted for review and approval a Boundary 
Adjustment Plat for the above referenced property located east of Kehrs Mill 
Road and north of Strecker Road; and, 

WHEREAS, the purpose of said Boundary Adjustment Plat is to 
consolidate excess right-of-way and adjust a common lot line; and, 

WHEREAS, the Department of Public Services has reviewed the 
Boundary Adjustment Plat in accordance with the Unified Development Code of 
the City of Chesterfield and has found it to be in compliance with all applicable 
ordinances and has forwarded said Boundary Adjustment Plat to the City 
Council; and, 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Chesterfield having considered 
the request, voted to approve said Boundary Adjustment Plat. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF CHESTERFIELD, ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. The Boundary Adjustment Plat which is attached hereto as 
"Exhibit 1" and made part hereof as if fully set out herein is hereby approved; 
the owner is directed to record the plat with the St. Louis County Recorder of 
Deeds Office. 

Section 2. The Mayor and City Clerk are authorized and directed to 
evidence the approval of the said Boundary Adjustment Plat by affixing their 
signatures and the official seal of the City of Chesterfield as required on the 
said document. 

Section 3. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after 
its passage and approval. 

Passed and approved this 	day of 	, 2015 

MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

CITY CLERK 



240164 9302 
2 : 41.'  

312.23600) 

OOLONG SEIBACX LIK5 (OR 
ZONE 'NO" NON • IRE1001 OSUMI 

110011 1.00 SO 1(11 
SOL non 00 r(fl 
RCM .1. .0 	10 rEcl 

Slot. Herne LIOOF ,C 	MD) 
ti>rtha 224151 168 
EasIng :3296346) 
CrA FecIa, Used lo/Pneci 38:613718 
16'4/0 •  • 22619333 •ret 

jV 

UPPE,11M1-1,n 

Department of Public Services 

,„...-............---,---, - 

Vol 

z • _ 	- 
0 

Incorporated 
10846 1910, Hen Po, 81x7 

SI Lo0s kloscol 0(132 
314 475 EL12 man • 314 L.00 i21.0.14. 

011701 VOLZINC COM 

13517,P. COM , L.,.111110.111.0:1 1011 022! 
Pt 10....LS DECOALE1131.,....C.0011..4.0 

4. 	1.0 MI/1M 1,ECC/SEC074 LP, LIMELP,43 

s291/0'sre 
13434. 

- 

04 00 f'5 

UPPER KEHRS MILL - LOTS 1 & 2 
BOUNDARY ADJUSTMENT PLAT 

A TRACT OF LAND BEING LOTS 2 & 3 OF 
UPPER KEHRS MILL AND PART OF VACATED KEHRS MILL ROAD 

IN U.S. SURVEY 886 AND SECTION 18 
TOWNSHIP 45 NORTH - RANGE 4 EAST 

CITY OF CHESTERFIELD, ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI 
ZONED "NU" NON-URBAN DISTRICT 

1 

1 
1 
1 
1 

CITY OF CHESTERFIELD 

EXHIBIT 1 

2,31,4,4:9 isle,/ 001. 000,11,0115 at re6ren,0010114 	C00,1 nap 
55kiin 1983 0.1:5131, Sall Z0/.0 6100 5.11¢61 0,70 410 •Lroli1 SLAT/ Led 
UL 11:00751411 Ni!Mtl 51101 410,X(00811a1) 	Rea:! P86161S 
talcs 	0'58dmraln88841..45 than Ifti  ants per 

To 0!.1¢0013: tering spIen111 galepIX. 510001. n11100001 10451.1 
rlockeLna 50/340 

counniy Pi ACS 
cuEsir 	 ,A7 

,'6; 1%1 r".9,4, AT nyo___ 

1785'17'24"E 
120.68' 

i 
kr 

50 
	

50 
	

103 
	

150 

86.49. 

1 
1 

988.50'07"E 
120.97' 

Sota In root 
Solo- 0'.50* 

141-- 
1,t%  

s69 	6 

rEV:r,B:E rnlJ5ru0425%Id4EEBOwr It, 3110: 

143.3111941-fig 

0 N 

-PP" 510•0i. 

Tao n n -,nls 1,n to Ls, 11 IL:. Po it 	rrr, 	 PLopiorl 
41, 04, 71,1,7,, , N. 111 ma, 	I r.,1•8.Cr,,! 	 c.,.;„. 	t, 

•0 • 1 31 Vatit, 311,0., 	, 
.1•.1. 21 ..,111v 01" :111011 11.11..:an111,11..0,,..15.1:1 

.411 Cll .  Col;11. 

0,1•1711., I 

• I a:: 0 VP IP 0) LC 1 :1 	01.0a 	a 	 is 1-0, 
,nrer• :301  

7e0r0hr..10 	- 0..1,01 4 rnl 0.t/  41 :-.1.149.11 
Woo, itOL•  ,r,sts p ea. 145 111.:to/ 

lioL1.,r9x 	sspo• re ..74.0 •  . tin Lot ...n; 
44. 

/4 Ito pop, .no irs 
a' 	Ill 1100 33 111i/ An! Ps 111.1 /I10-014, Pir.r0334 110 /.140. 2.11 
.21,

A,  
II n 	1104 CP.01/ 1.001 11,..../.01201, 5.1 Lori: CV.1•1, 

' 0 .0-  
• Poto 	 1114; nit Po torsz flat Ira 0 I:Ort 	11... III•; 
."1,1 It.  II, Itn01,01 • •1 it, poll 1,15 	U. Lurie. a • 	10.10. 
A0 .3 1 0 70 Pe 1 1.4 1 3 / 1 7/ 1 .11,10770I-411,05/4 1 ;4• 0 310 p•• O. LL, I r. 

	

z In.  I 110,0 ■ 01,11.vurf. 	 .1:111.. in 90.01.2 p rinit 7./ 
-0144, 0,10 4.140 UP 1. Po • 1:11, 1•. 01.110:1 / 11.141 P p.:04.0, 4,41; 
971,0 1-v let >1: .:411 Limp. 	il .141,441 	 1.1.1 111 .11”  II 

1.011.1 211:.1 1.14 71
o 	

L• t-oslo 41.1,1 Es,' W. 4 31 /0/ 
Itt 	07 6.68a.: Er, 8:6 0; 6,216 rt .  Ica in.  0 61ill: ■ I 

• 101/1 1./.1 . 4•10a aPi; 1100;4+ ;07 14.1 ../.11,ap pa1 01 •111.101 • 0 14t0.1:1 07•75 
)72 101•!1 P 	159.0, 	oI 11.1 La: 1. 1 1 400./ P.Plannna n0• 0 Pin *osl ,  1. 
1.11 7.3 40//gt. 01 ..11 .30 stoo15 .070 4'0 01 1.7117 	/0 1 1 te 109 in,rq ,r. 

	

r..; .7.700,, ars,,,,; 	11- 	f03, -n- 	174s 21110 

1.1.,3  

Ian: 0 it,/ 10,9 Lt. :I Val. EL, ll r u4.44rna 	/091,O-; I: 11 4,1 
o te,1 .0/P 	4110 	01{4) 0 t .  Pe 1/ L/40, ,::nar Fal(00) in 0 1 

	

11 .  7.04 1 ,0 	1. 1111. 04 1 EP .1 5111 Cry 	 .61 
. 	%is tali 	Con; no s . 4,1 ritri 

	

01400,, 	r.r-ret.r 
0.16, is 1'0:.31 0: ./51/:11,14 	Ps/-20 714 W. F5)1 :74001110 	51/0 

240 020.7 LP 4 re 1, Oa! C:ans 0411,4.. 0:0 .1101.1 r' 51 1/...5 

	

Itia, 5111' :OP 41 TO bl 	Love., 
,...10,01- rarsases.n) io !VAL lit Is trat 	00.2...ro morn an 

1421-104 7,0377 :pion -L1117711:,1177.7.11.01 1:11 . 1111 1.917.1.1/ CI: 
3 g , if. 71 40.0,0 14010704 Pal LL.0111.0.0.4 	13.4001.4.1a.. 

:I 10 1071 /11.3. 0.2 0v011 	v POO 14 01,1.11 Ea; 114 10 110 010 11;o1,1.! 
1N1W, 17 rto,1,4 231 worn, Env 1 22 /0 /P-+ In PIP Ern I-1.1 na p  L it 7 Lee:, 
00001,02 J:.1 in:1.1111, 51,11. 	01a, r.11-01 7: In:01.201 4014: 

tp  Ps n/ ht,v.11: ,11 	 ,0, no • la 	11.4 Po.,141 /:ntaInoda 4.4; 
1): 14:70. 70 .1/ 1/1•10440;

04 
 (0.4 • 5:4 In; 	:0,7 a1 	Iro no np/Li 

-n.1.30a0 1,11 '1,,t •  0• ,/, IE 0.1.1 . ! 1 1- 0777n1s •Inin 01.1.0 inn./ ty. 
7.1>r0,d NI, 0 rith,r. :I 142: PP WU 10 doom la rosin 37 atm-, 
Alal LILL 1.11 140 aorf, too Iv II, 01 -01 en, • 11, 1.,4 Poo Sys, PS 0,11-44: 
4 1 1,1.1:5 21 	2.0 010 :0 1/111 ,: e.  1'0111: Pto,n-el Off 3,1111100 0 
.11 irs 	..1,0 a 7.1,1, la, apr 	0.1.,!. 	Pa/.1.1,11, 20 017,o7/3 
10.111 .1: 1r0,1 rat.  ! +0 a: .am tar, fa so 	n,. pr. nrIto-tr.r.1 

	

1 1 1 4, 11.. 44 14 0 o; .1,...,1111.,!..0.1.1 
loo 	

10,0,110 
0,0, 1,...,0:0 N•E 

vn/lev 0,11.0 1110 l'isnm 043 .n• 

1 . ,..1 .1 or/ 	1 Eq.,  r 101 1 ,  r) 	It Tv .. 4.0 	- . ipaL 	 1141 

41,1111.0 11.0401004, us lit al Pal 2 41 -404 • 11.0`11 O r o100001.:1100..,,,,, 

	

1 .  00, EP-.1 1114 1. );e4 	,1,).1./  op  5 C.).!?. 114a::,0, 
...IL ff., II .  fo 	II •  1040 • 14,111tot o/ 4114111111 R :0101111,1s tn1 	Sr.,' 
1nra, • ,1110t.f.111111:111 .0% 7. 1! an, 1.1 al Po 11 10.1411, 
,0,4 L i  0: /JD 11171411 • 7711,1, 	1.105.  tioilul IL 11/0 1:117 ;op :741 

7.4 11 ./..3COVIr 1300 .11 111 110 0/0 • 1.3• 3 . 0s 1 17 10 17.1 144 11100 1. 
.073171 100, 	Nao 	1:8:. a; 1:8,111 8. 0 :4,,8,68 11: 88 11 11 1 ,6 I: 110  I:, 

.a 	11.1,1 'Aril- 17 0,0.11 . 1 war. , 701 er.pe, G, , 011.141. 
iin<III JI not int: no: .11: p ir  11:10171: 410, norm m WI 001e 41.1 
sac. 4,0 IVA. 	 i-Irsa. 4: >mi ••. Viol:1U1/ I,.! I• .  In 
771 ANIA • tA g> , 1 0 .1‘10 . 4( 	• s • La ix. I 	CP up.< 	..... 17t 3 4  cc.:0., 
0,0 ;•:,2 	ani ; 0,1; 	g:. III .V7 AII,N 70:01 PI 107.4 01 .01 11 

itro Ln, 

 

I? rr. , 	'3,, 111,1 11.1 01 III 1 •4-1 I.0 nn mr.-.1 Lot 

,41 Lill 1401104141in 0, 	pumplul 9:10171 ...a 01 Irv., 
/: !: 1.1, I. P. pstlort4.4 v.  Pm. III 104c1 411,1 rnat• 
1/A 77,1171 C7 11 La l Coors C11.01:4 LP 3010 (004,-..1,0 ox, ftrjj IC], 
310 1.  1 1. 5. .1 0 .7.74 11 ,  0110011 P1070001,  42 03.150: p rOPO 3l 519 
.6101104 1.14:ai tin ma ra 	 /nianil Miro 

n11j1.1o1 	 :Von, 1441,mal 11 Pr nutoSti 
1 . kilo, 11 I PLO 	1,11L41, 10 le, 51 1.0.13 	C,1010,10 	-1 .;000,-,  II. 
1 ,111/ 	pi I.: a. 340 1:rr(• r1-,nna lr I ) / Si 0/0 1751,1 10/0.5 11 000 
10. Po L.• /a Pluto ro..1,1 1101 0 Orr,. Lie. 77 anitut 11 71 root 0: 

41 	 41 	n; Ur. 111 •0 a 0.,.• 1.1 10,111:140.,1 /W 	// I !Nil UM 17 
111111,.ono 1 .  ono, 10101 :Pi LP .1 1,1 • 17:1 /olio,/ 
7111 • 1( 0 21 	1 0:1 •1/.1 .  41 0P) .101 11 . ..473 47 0:4.11 	 49 8: 'a:t 
,,a1; 	v 1In 'EP 	 1,a1 t1-0 .  11 ,lan, 

	

,61,6 ritt ...-6 a: Ira 10.11 I, 1.11 rre.rxre.1 rnrr. algal, 41 7.13! 	n-: 
14. 1 ,  1,1100 19 rt 	1papa. 	 1..1 P0,1:1 1,111•Ii1 

040400 LP: 

A In., 0 	Kiwi, 0 100 I n 	

• 

L, 

	

0010,, Ci,4,01 r. FLY 5:0 884 	I,: 5: .1,, 	3:1/111: 
US 1400, 6?) 	1.4-71.71 10 14.00.4 Ir 1.3,11 	P.111. 4.  r Ea:1. 
cr,,,a, .61 10., 	1764,40 ;0) Lan; nil 071,L. inp 01;10:40 
1,1ao 

lk o p.; 41 lo 114.1 • 11.1  ntrox 0 ,  100 ill I 	101 1, 02.11 .07 41 in 1.: 
1 1,01, 3 0 •lip po /0 Pr 0411i .a.  tam., .70.1 4 101i V., 	Loa 1LS 	  

	

L 119,70 1 0 110 n 01. 0 : 0 1 1,111 .1 	 I.; fr ..,1.! ?, 
• 'NM 91 41 Pot rarno ran1 	0111101 0, 	tn; 1,r ,1 Kel • :1 Ill 
▪ 0:1,110111 3101.  :tall In fq /alsr1 :Is is sl pup,: pi p 10111,t 10111,11w 
111 IMPL I t 	NO ROI al 451100 1 1-1 	 LP. CPA/ C•701.11.10 1 0' 

	

aro Tenn: 1,0, 01 11, AI 7.40. 	14,14,110: 1.17 7-;  Ina 541; 
K.Ota u l f1,10 .7.0110 0,40 in •0.0, moo, is /10.1:41 1,11 ,  :Atm II 
• fars 		 7001 115 S. 	 Inn, pad m 
1.704 	:91  :!11 11 o We: 5 7  111(0111311 4113 

▪  

CO 11(1 110, 10 115 11/1101,.. 
• .111110 41 1 401,1 1113 1- p , 41 Pap. ra :Ara, .11 
fin 11 ;01 , 1 	 no: 51117 I/1 Ilrur fa Poi 0 .0 /no, 7.f.dninli I: 
.1 
n

e. 01 . xt 10, 10 .11

;
' IP 	I.,141. I Tv 	4o1 10 1 1101:.I 11W/.. 11 

da" 1-6 1 
...0

11010 07 00:0 • , En; 243 0:  1,1 1.1.1, N :1 .40111) 	41 
0:1111 Ea, I6 E l la,, 4•11 0001:13 	.10 	07 5(30,, 	1;,)07 Soy 
:: 	€86:111,  :1 s)0 lv I. 1.1'10 5:06,00 011080: Ent Pc .  5:m. DI 0a1.11-: 
•43 Po. 05 10 .1011 'Int, 102 13'0!: is Pt aaiV 	/410 .1 .,L 	110-0•0,2 1 1./: 
1: • 15 4411 . 10211:10011106 la 41-2 19 : ,,,, 1110 2816 

'Op/101LP? 

01490 11, 	Is 1.4  1 .4 6' , ', Spa 	66 	 1.1.0,1 
1.1,11 litn0 .00.03 DR" 11,0 	riar: 	1: 

J5 	f 011 04 E 	10 TC01,./ IL LL• l i 	•4,;0 1 E.,. C., 0 
717-0.0.7v . /1 I  10•L 	10.401., r., 	 z.vo, 	re 
I/ /7A1 

So' a  ,PI Al, loll . 	0aul 	pp 	1.4 • 0 0.1o 1,..., /.0114,0 

	

o, 	s 	ai re.r. rr rte., 	 r 	 • col D:o 
21/ NV 	A' 	7.71 ,o5 	7t0:12/ IP0 011112 9, 	1.0..0 Z zwr, 

.trAl .•  hr. 0 	1111 1W.1.41,1 11 il.077 1,111 	7110 n. 	11 I.% Zior, 

arm 	 P,/ 0,0.1 IL.  pm,. 	0,1 1.11 7,1.1 141/1, VJJ,va. 

	

111), 	 .15 40 Ito 	81 co.) 0,6 1( 11,1, (. ■ 1t90,154; 
1a.' 1.: /III. 5:t1'62 0:9.1.66 .1; 0..114 	194 171 	1•1 10 1«4 aol LW. iS 
.11)1,! 17 rr.-.1 . 1 	in,11 .  foe '7.0 	 1.11.411 
Pons silni l0, Loltio. ill El 4.1 /0 114-tel It, daai,i, 0! nn/s4 4/1.1'3 

(141911(1104 111,.1 	111, 10  44: r,alr,ml Ito L:nli J1 ,ttpas II 
037 if. all I. IP 1 l.1,2 L • c• 0 . H1110 Pi .P1: Of. 

PO` 01 0.1 rit 	0 	7.3 47110,r,,,,niv0111/11 	Pt 111041,r 
n Po pa 	 SI I ro 	roam., Iliapoot 
1 0.11.pol hi,  011 .7,1 	14paroolnoll, Or ., in Ii plossl 1111 11.4 
S.  R.9r1 P) 110 Irt •  11 .1 • 	 1,01 
▪ IP-10 rr 10:01/5 .A• t, 4 11 11 PP 14. 43 /11,1 p po ;v. 0/110 11.1.1 27, 

	

r1:1 ■ 	irsyn,, 07-1 orn, 1.1 0-.-.1 •0, 13,40 I., 01 fro Int, Ito Po 
trrinliP p, itnon:, 0 2070 Pn n14 1.1, I/ 	,1,,m14 .7 p ra IV wow:, 
01 1,1 030 11.1 1, 11, /4.1 	11,;1111,1 1111 .,•111. ,  111:4 

111.. 

O: to :,,1."1,04 on-. o . 11, 	 ati 1.-!I..an..11 
,.L 	50,10(!101001),V.4 10..014 5001 	00 Ow: or: ,01.11.. 

p 	 N11-6.1., • • 	11 0/109  00, 1 P• 
1 711rolf 	Ar'r ■vrr‘r 

D19 	•a1kOl'1l 111.1,1, 10.00,1. di Von 	NI 17.1 
prno- nospL,; 9111111p 

Al., 6;11" I-11 no0 	, ; 
JJf

▪ 

 :r 	 Lir .1 

1.11.110113 L 11411111 AND 1111. JP i2.LAV411LCU1'O11.1 1111311 011,1 NIL 
OFtLouPa 66.32 

.1- 1 VIE 5: 10; 1  - 

100.11 CI 1:1 ICI 11 

.1. 
P.p.., 1' Cahn. 	Ilsri.Int711.tra poirnn- Lo nn dit-. •  101 
pit ono lir/01,11, ProlLoi notno-I 4-‘,1 11ont,111 	117, iraitren 

tn nn Iv1 i411,1014• 

47.1111- 111 .00.P.11 I hao .-.13. 111/:“1 17r Iv,. /0110 AI: 1,1 
.0,0,1,1777 

• 1 .7, 111. 0.9.1 EP,/ 

.1101 1,901. 31,10111,7 	Erb, 1.11 41 tra pP4 01401' F. 7/4 10, 

; 	0/0,posp1 	00o/i4 	r• 	En :0,10 P .  •1119..3 

'In .11140 s01.4101,, cl Lon Ill, .1,4 I. 1.1101 to •so.lot. 01 if 
...moat. 14 1• 51/1..4110 11 I.1 .13 	A1,11711.17. 1..1.1.11 6.6 

	

A111 1.8 a,a,..• ; 	r. 
1110,07912110, 

•sLIr 11; 	roil; 11, 91 10 	7,310) 	0.0,. 	.ar- 
lzw11,r!, 00,1svrtew 	'A I in,' u.11 11 ■ 11 0, I rnf. 4 . 	40, 110.  .; 
Po 	A1/11171 Kart In Hai: 01. II .ropnIssiiif 1../nt It 70asiop .11 Lrot 
•tot, 4 Ea,. Cl/ 11 1.0.0 17500v 111 1,0J1 0 :4, 

111101000 III /P. up/ 1,01.01 41 1, p11011 4:1,01 0J Pc 
37,11,011 O il.:111; It 1• 47.1p 0.4 410 into DI 001: 0,1 1 : 0 WI:, 

rl 13 •  11;1ien. LILL LI ;41 1 .1.17 nnn 1,10-40 7P741. 10'0-1 .-lito 	In-, 
pal 7 err 1.,1M n n1111 1,r Orr, 'WIT .vonvon ;lc 	 01 

drop 	11111 isgf I Von 11:11.1 •10:14111: II Hr., .3 001,11:1 l• 
t4,1111.77 IA II 777 404,1,1 	10 11:w xulalv 1.1 ■102 :1 01 
:0,4 10 104.414 PtIon pul 	10.14,141 Lur4 	an 

3rzfirtr0'88ran•0ese,ma.4.884.-- 
::,n:1:r 101..0r0-I>!„b1r. l:'•.Ii,11F100,.. 

HesncJJOy 1, 2215 prr 0naraents • e:40.1 P.m SI L.. 1 C. • 14 11911.11 L.10. of la 01 

E 

(AVM  ,Msterfieid 



BILL NO.  r60 	 ORDINANCE NO. 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ZONING ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF 
CHESTERFIELD BY CHANGING THE BOUNDARIES OF AN "NU" NON URBAN 
DISTRICT TO AN "E-1" ESTATE ONE ACRE DISTRICT FOR A 50.5279 ACRE 
TRACT OF LAND LOCATED ON THE SOUTH SIDE OF WILD HORSE CREEK 
ROAD WEST OF ITS INTERSECTION WITH LONG ROAD AND EAST OF ITS 
INTERSECTION WITH ARBOR GROVE COURT. (P.Z. 04-2015 ARBORS AT 
WILMAS FARM {17508 WILD HORSE CREEK ROAD} 18V330035). 

WHEREAS, the petitioner, Wilmas Farm, LLC, by: McBride 85 Son 
Acquisitions, LLC has requested a change in zoning from "NU" Non Urban 
District to "E-1" Estate One Acre District for a 50.5279 acre tract of land located 
on the south side of Wild Horse Creek Road west of its intersection with Long 
Road and east of its intersection with Arbor Grove Court; and, 

WHEREAS, a Public Hearing was held before the Planning Commission on 
June 22, 2015; and, 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission, having considered said request, 
recommended approval of the change of zoning; and, 

WHEREAS, the Planning and Public Works Committee, having considered 
said request, recommended approval of the change of zoning; and, 

WHEREAS, the City Council, having considered said request voted to 
approve the change of zoning request. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF CHESTERFIELD, ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1.  City of Chesterfield Unified Development Code and the Official 
Zoning District Map, which are part thereof, are hereby amended by establishing 
an "E-1" Estate One Acre District for a 50.5279 acre tract of land located at 
17508 Wild Horse Creek Road and as described as follows: 

A tract of land being part of Lot 21 of R.H. Stevens Farm recorded in 
Plat Book 7 Page 37 of the St. Louis City (Former County) records, 
located in U.S. Surveys 122, 150, 102 and 419, Township 45 North, 



Range 3 East, City of Chesterfield, St. Louis County, Missouri and 
being more particularly described as follows: 

Beginning at an iron pipe found for the northeast corner of Lot 2 
Mary Schaeffer Estate Adjustment as recorded in Plat Book 352 Page 
809 of the above mentioned recorder's office, also being on the south 
right of way line of Wildhorse Creek (60'w.) Road; thence along the 
south line of said Wildhorse Creek Road the following courses and 
distances: North 55°15'36" East, 205.89 feet; along an arc to the 
right having a radius of 1880.08 feet, an arc length of 730.84 feet 
and a chord bearing and distance of North 66°23'46" East, 726.25 
feet; North 77°32'36" East, 33.09 feet to the intersection of the south 
right of way line of Wildhorse Creek Road and the west right of way 
line of Deep Forest (50'w.) Drive; thence along the west right of way 
line of said Deep Forest Drive, South 12°02'02" East, 544.62 feet; 
thence continuing along said west right of way line and the west line 
of Lots 2 and 3 of Deep Wood as recorded in Plat Book 170 Page 24 
of the above mentioned recorder's office, South 12°26'58" East, 
1524.13 feet to the southwest corner of said Lot 3; thence along the 
south line of said Lot 3, North 67°20'48" East, 50.80 feet to the 
northwest corner of common ground of Country Lake Estates as 
recorded in Plat Book 345 Page 41 of the above mentioned recorder's 
office; thence along the west line of said common ground and the 
west line of Lot 37, South 12°26'58" East, 351.06 feet to an old stone 
found for the southeast corner of U.S. Survey 150 also being the 
northeast corner of common ground of Wildhorse Village B Lot 1 
Boundary Adjustment Plat as recorded in Plat Book 352 Page 879 of 
the above mentioned recorder's office; thence along the north line of 
said common ground, and the north line of Adjusted Lot 1 and the 
north line of Lot 603, common ground and Lot 347 of Wildhorse 
Village A as recorded in Plat Book 310 Page 14 of the above 
mentioned recorder's office, South 77°40'33" West, 985.34 feet to an 
iron pipe found for the southeast corner of common ground of the 
Arbors at Wildhorse Creek as recorded in Plat Book 360 Page 220 of 
the above mentioned recorder's office; thence along the east line of 
said common ground and the east line of the above mentioned Lot 2 
of Mary Schaffer Estate Adjustment, North 12°22'00" West, 2190.06 
feet to the point of beginning and containing 2,200,997 square feet 
(50.5279 acres), more or less, according to a survey by The Sterling 



Company during the month of October, 2013 under order number 
13-08-265. 

Section 2. The preliminary approval, pursuant to the City of Chesterfield 
Unified Development Code is granted, subject to all of the ordinances, rules and 
regulations and the specific conditions as recommended by the Planning 
Commission in its recommendation to the City Council. 

Section 3. The City Council, pursuant to the petition filed by Wilmas 
Farm, LLC, by: McBride 85 Son Acquisitions, LLC in P.Z. 04-2015, requesting the 
amendment embodied in this ordinance, and pursuant to the recommendation 
of the City of Chesterfield Planning Commission that said petition be granted 
and after a public hearing, held by the Planning Commission on the 22nd  day of 
June 2015, does hereby adopt this ordinance pursuant to the power granted to 
the City of Chesterfield under Chapter 89 of the Revised Statutes of the State of 
Missouri authorizing the City Council to exercise legislative power pertaining to 
planning and zoning. 

Section 4. This ordinance and the requirements thereof are exempt from 
the warning and summons for violations as set out in Section 8 of the City of 
Chesterfield Unified Development Code. 

Section 5. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after 
its passage and approval. 

Passed and approved this day of 	 , 2015. 

MAYOR 
ATTEST: 

CITY CLERK 

FIRST READING HELD: 



EDISON AVE. 

COUNTRY LAKE ESTATES 
P.B. 345, P0.41 

FRO: ER00 
WITH CAP 
LS MD 

SURVEYOR'S 
I 

 CERTIFICATE 	 y .-- 
ORDER NUMBER: 18.03-091 	 7 
THE STERLING COMPANY 
5053 NEW BAUMOARTNER ROAD 
ST. LOUIS, MSSOMP 63120 	 / 	/ 
(314) 457-0440 

091 
SHEET 

THIS IS TO CERTIFY TO TAWAS FARM, EEC, 1110E PARRIERS AGENCY, LI.C. MD MO REPO50 NATIONAL TIRE 
INSURANCE COMPANY, MAT THE SHRUM; COMPANY HAS, DURINO THE MONTH OF OCTOBER 2013, PERFORMER A 
BOUNDARY SURVEY Of A TRACT OF LAND BEING PART OF LOT 21 Of R.H. STEVENS 7884 RECORDED IN PLAT BON 7 
PAGE 37 Of ME ST. 

 
IS CITYAORAIM COUNTY) RECORD, LOCATE() IN Os, SURVEYS 122, 150, 102 AND 419, 

70212919 45 NORM, RANGE 3 	T, CITY Of CHESTERMELD, ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MSSOURI. 

PE RESULTS OF SAID SURVEY ARE AS SHOWN HEREON AND THIS SURVEY MEETS NINGIUM STANDARDS FOR URBAN 
PROPERTY BOUNDARY SURVEYS AS SET FORTH BY THE MISSOURI BOARD FOR• ARCHITECTS, PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERS 
AND LAND SURVEYORS (10 001 30.2 MD 20 CSR 2030-18 EFTEORVE AS OF THE DATE Of THIS SURVEY). 

THE STERLINO COMPANY 
MO. REG 307-0 

JANET A. PERSON, PLS. 
MO. RED. LS. 12007017613 

15059• 

-he! 

A TRACT OF LAND BEING PART OF LOT 21 OF R.H. STEVENS FARM 
PLAT BOOK 7 PAGE 37 OF THE ST. LOUIS CITY (FORMER COUNTY) RECORD, 

GRAPHIC SCALE 	 LOCATED IN U.S. SURVEYS 122, 150 1 102 AND 419, TOWNSHIP 45 NORTH, 'RANGE 3 EAST, 
CITY OF CHESTERFIELD, ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI 

a0 	166 	260 	 e6p 

ob 

L 

LOT 21 OF ME SUBDIVISION or RH. STEVENS FARM IN U.S. SURVEYS 122, 150, 102.\ 
AN0 419. TOWNSHIP 45 .21555H, SAME 3 EAST. ACCORDINO TO ME PUT /HEREOF 
RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 7 PAGE 37 OF THE ST.'1.01110 CITY JFORLIER COUNTY) \ 
RECOROS, EXCEPTING THEREFRN THOSE PORTIONS. TAKEN FOE ME.  ESTABUSHMENT \ 
CO WED HORSE 'ROAD. A 1WW*0 10 ORDERS Of THE 'COUNTY COURT OF ST. 1919 

. SS 

PACE 87 RESPECTIVELY OF THE ST.. LOUIS COUR RECORDS, ALSO EXCEPTING 

 HOVE 3905 16 1833, .CERIIFlED 
COPIES .OF MM. ORDERS ME MOWED IN BOOK PAGE 245'6240 BOOK 1239 

MER1111011'THAT PART CONVEYED TO AUGUST F. BR MERCK A140 WIFE BY OECD 
RECORDED .  IN BOOK 1789, PACE 834 AND ALSO EXCEPTINO THEREFROM A 60 FOOT 
WIDE STRIP- AL910 THE EAST SIDE OF THE SAID PREMISES CONVEYED TO SHARON 
1AHBEM BY DEED REOCNO08 IN BOOK 8818 PAGE 187 

LAND DESCRIPTION  

BEINCI MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOU.05% 

BEGINNINO AT AN IRON PIPE FOUNT) FOR THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 2 MARY SCHAEFFER ESTATE 
ADJUSTMENT AS RECORDED Pi PLAT-BOOK 352 PAGE 600 OF THE ABOVE MENTIONE0 RECORDER'S 
OFFICE, ALSO BEING ON THE SOUTH WORT OF WAY UNE 'OF WILDFICHSE MEEK (ROW.) ROAD; /HENCE 
AMMO THE SOUTH UNE OF 3A9 MILINIORM'CREEK ROAD THE PERLOHNOCOURSES AND DISTANCES: 
NORTH 591138 .  EAST, 20289 FEETI_ALOHO AN ARO 70 THE RIGHT 887100 A RADIUS OF IM0,08 
FEET, AN ARC MOM Of 73019 FUT AND A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF NoRni 0029413. 
EAST, 72426 FEET; NORM 7722'36' EAST, 33.09 FEET TO THE INTERSECTION Of THE SOUTH RIGHT 
OF WAY LOSE OF YAUINCREE CREEK ROAD AM) 111E WEST RIGHT OF WAY UNE If DEEP FOREST KW.) 
DRIVE; MIME 61.0210 THE WEST RIGHT'OF WAY LINE OF sAID.DIDEP FOREST DRIVE, SOUTH 12'0202 
EAST, 544,62 FEET; THENCE 00111101)90 ALCNO SAID WEST RIGHT OF WAY UNE AND THE REST UNE 
OF LOTS 2 AND 3 OF DEEP WOOD AS REMINDED IN PLAT BOOK 170 PAGE 24 OF THE ABOVE 
MEN1CNED RECORDER'S OFFICE. SOUTH 221955' EAST. 1624.13 FEET TO THE !OMAN/!/ CORNER OF 
SAID LOT 3; AIME ALONG ME SOUTH UNE Of SAD LOT 3, NORTH 1172945' EAST. 60.00 FEET TO 
THE 14ORMIIMT CORNER OF COMMON MOUND Of MINIM LANE ESTATES AS RERRECORDEDPUT 
BOOK a45 PAGE HI OF THE ABODE MENTIONED RECORDERS OFFICE; THENCE A LONG MST UNE 
OF SAID COMMON GROUND AND THE WEST UNE Of LOT 37, MUM 121956 •  EAST, 351.06 FEET TO 
AN OW STOLE FOUND FOR ENE SOUTHEAST 0082409 Of U.S. SURVEY ISO ALSO BONO ME 
NORTHEAST .CORNEROF. 0024MON GROUND Of WIWHORSE MELAGE 8 LOT 1 BOUNDARY ADJUSTM ENT 
PLAT AS RECORDED IN FLAT BOOK 352 PAGE 879'0F THE ABOVE MIMEO  RECORDER 'S OFFICE: 
THENCE ALONG THE NMI)! UNE OF SMD MOWN MOUND. A14(1 ME NORTH MME OF ADJUSTER LOT 1 

NORTH 'AND THE NOR UNE Of LOT 603, COMMON GROUND AND LOT 347 OF ISLOH0f(SE %MACE A AS 
RECORD IN PUT BOOK 310 PAGE 14 .OF 'THE ABOVE MENTIONED RECORDERS OMCE. •SOUTH 
77E40'33' WEST, 985.34 FEET 70 AN IRON PIPE FOUND FOR /HE SOUTHEAST CORNERaF ookom 
GROUND OF 'ME ARBORS AT 11411)NORSE_ CREEK AS RECORDED IN MAT BOOK 360 PAGE 220 OF THE 
ABOVE' MENTIONED RECORDER'S Off1C9 RIENCE ALONI) MAY UNE OF SAW COMMON MOUND AND 
THE EAST UNE OF THE ABOVE 191010199 LOT 2 OF MARY SCHAFFER ESTATE ADJUSTMENT. NOM 
1922'09 VEST, 2190.08 FEET TO THE POSIT Cf DEMINING AND CONTAINING 2,200,957 SQUARE FEET 

M 
(50.

ONTH 
5370 

CF ACOCTREOBER, 
S), LIM

2013 UNDER 
E OR 1.645, ORDE 

RR NUMBER 13-08-206 
DING TO A SURVEY BY ME RERUN° COMPANY 04/1000 THE 

01 T OF B 
TITLE DESCRIPTION 	

\ 	Rd' ATEE 

MT 

	

INVESTMENT CONSULT/JO CA01,135. 	 ., 
D.n. 14701 P0.2.102 	 k q k I 	LOT 1 	\r,  

• -4,"  g 1 	". ' ' • 	* ISCHAEL CMS 
LOOS IS 	 SEWELL. 

_ I , JONtit.O.4171%4:11NuE. ^ ,..,1 	013.1408 PG. 044 
END: 11,3D 	ewl In t.17,11,7Agr I. 	

17438 8V514052 
WM/MU 

LOC.111 

 
Si rot'j + 1 

	
I 

Ls 640 ... 	E0,61 174370ALSECHEOT. 	 ESTATES OT. 

	

STATE PLATS 	 7.1 

uen__. . 
	pe. 	

2404 -.11-0 g-2.;5,5" 121.01. 

ss 
`.4 

5 ,•■ . 

ADJ. PARCEL 2 

DONALD R. GOLFERS 
TRUSIEE 	

l 
OAF 

' DB. 17025 P0.1132 	- 
LOGAIIV8/0096 

116MM HORSE CREEK RD. 

t 

. 
GRAY 00000881.E MUST 

D.& 10224 P0,1485 
LOCOMel-010S 

17531 WILT, 1-101kSECkEEK 

NIP 
608.4011. VERA is 
De. fosss po.so 
L00.419101-0016 

17537 WILD HORSE CREEK FO. 

RATAA MORN &STEPHEN 8/578 PLANS \  

1945. 4 
sosseetsoo 

JR, 

33 • '09' 

( IN FEET) 
1 MO • 100 ft. 	• 

.. 	I 

III 	 \f•\ 

	

0.8. 17760 PO. 301 	11.31 - 

	

LoattL0162-0061 	D'2365,22.258 
17149 VALP HORSE (MEEK no. 

R-0-W DEDICATION 
G.B. 7161 PC. 245 
D.D. 1209 PG. 61 

X 20' EASEMENT 70 
LOUIS COUNTY WATER COMPANY 

D.O. WYE PG Iwo 
(DIVE LIEU 00) 

LOT 11 —1 '  LOT 10 

— .1.21 24.77EST..1.07_,L6iE 

WINDRIDGE ESTATES 
P.13. 344, P0.29 

EP 
"1.500. S541,0711') 

I
SR 

ANDERSTRA 
ROBERT/. 

0.0.12462Po. 1634 
LOOS 16V62.0172 
j/15WINDRIDGE 

ESTATE/RR 

LI IFI-A"  — 
1 : 	LOT 12 s......  	( 
1 d i ; 	,,,,, 	

LOT 15 
IF 

I 	FRETS./ DI/ANIMA )t,_ 
WH EW 

I 0.11. 11013P:119W 	"F' 1 	00. 210/4 P0.2205 

OALLECHG 	 JONES. 

1 	LOCI 111Y62-01B3 	 1.001118W2.0216 
11411 OALJACHE CT. 	'1.......t......21 

u.5

10 GALMICHE 07. 

; R SURVEY 
1 COME R  (119D) 	)1 ( 

S1216'551 

MD. EROD 

 
It M  OO' 	

..---- — — 
,77.,,,3,..E

,....0  
oar FOREST ORM 

10,92.-14*.98,---koky— (59 W.111.81110RIXD2E4ASEUENT) 

350.00' FENCE 
2.1' EAST 

--7 

DEEP WOOD 
P.D. 170, P0.24 

g 

g iF. 

N192968'W 34006' 

1112 DEEP FOREST DRIVE 

NENNEOY.PACASLA 
D.B. 15502P0. 2304 
LOCA18112.0051 

LOT 2 
NTT 

2,1 	
\  

ar 	gs---  r----  

S12 

	

-  -  la 	'1*-EATIlJNIT.0191-0.9-70-01.3 P0. 	15717- 7- 	\ 	u. . 	190.22, 	0.26E 

2r .z.„ E 1524.13' 

I 

t
.............--41 ' g 

I. I 	

h. 	N192968'W 815.09 
v,  ......e.' 	

LOU. P. A ELIZABEM Y. 

	

1141 DEEP FOREST DRiVE 	  

4 I — A-  .i .'..-'4.9:,811574,830--  —  

013.1I41 PO. ISO 
LOOS 11234-6611 

MAMMAL 	 9281.002.569 

LO5T73 

SIM PLANE 

812922934 	

t? 

415> 

STATE PUKE 

71312934. 

6.0 °;to• 
6b, Zs 

75000 
\ 	\ 
\ 	\ 

\ 	\ 
\ 	I 

1 	\ 

\ 	\ 
\ ■ 	\ 

1 
	\\ \ 	EX. 20' EASEMENT To 

\ (TITLE ITEM iv 

PART OF LOT 21 OF R.H. STEVENS FARM 
P.B. 7 PG. 37 ST LOUIS CITY RECORDS (FORMER COUNTY) 

N 
WILD HORSE CREEK FARMS 

INVESTMENTS, LP. 

0.8. 11410 Pg. 1955 

Loo, No, 18V33-0035 

2,200,997 Sq. Ft. 
(50.5279 Aoroo)k 

(BASIS OF BEARINGS) 
N12'22'00"W 	 2190.06' 

COMMON . 	 THE ARBORS AT W1LDHORSE CREEK GROUND 	
P.B. 360, PO. 220 

T 	 1— — —1 

1-- 	
y --- — 1— —  

D.676 

" ' --- 	 —  1 
I 	I 	

1 
THEARLIORBA092 p0.190 

TEIXIORSECREEX 	 /
110MEOWNEROASBOVATION r 

1.00.818V334145 	
I 

18 	I 	17 1090 MOOR GROVE CT. 

21 	I 

	
20 	 19 	I 	COMMON 	

I 	I 	I GROUND 
STATE PLANE COORDINATE 11E 

STATE PLANE COORDINATES HERE DETERMINED ON MMCH 15, 2611 USW TROUBLE REAL-189 KINDMITO OPS HARDWARE 
FEW THE PROJECT SIE TO A COMMUCUSLY OPERARNO REFERENCE STATION (OURS) 041N AN ID Of SOX AND A PID OF 
012212 HA HNC PUBUSHED .  14550110 STATE PUNE (EAST ZONE) COORDINATE VALUES Of NORTH 10 • 314314.384 MEMO 
AND. EAST (X) • 237441330 NETERS. SiE REPRESENT HEREON THAT THESE STATE RAM CoMMAIES NEST MS ACCURACY 
STANDARDS OF NE 1058008I 1191400 STANDARDS FOR PROPERTY 110000881 SURVEYS*  (10 CSR 30-2 AND 20 GSA 
21630-16, EFFECTIVE DATE AUGUST 26, 2000 AS. AN "SUBURBAN PROPERTY' RELATIVE TO STATION SRDX. Pi ORDER TO PUT 
'MIS OUT ON TOE MISSOURI STATE INANE COORDINATE EAST ZONE (MAD-83) Cf110 NORTH IT 1WUE0 BE NECESSARY TO 
ROTATE TIE FIMUSHEO PLAT BEMINCI 'COURIER-ELOCIOSSE 0012 . 1e. THE PUBLISHED PLAT !MARINO Off tHraeto*w 
MULD SE 5121426'W IF ROTATED TO MID NORTH. 

DOWNED MO MOTOR • 0.99999920 (I METER • 528063333 FEET) 

NOTES 

1. THE PROFESSIONAL. MOSE IRONATURE AND PERSONG SEAL APPEARS BELOW ASSUMES RESPONSIBILITY ONLY FOR WAY 
APPEARS ON TIES PARE AND 0SCIA1113 itRUNSLIANT TO SECTION 327.411 11040) ANY RESPCGSMUTY FOR 
SPECIFICATIONS. ESTIMATE% RmoRM OR OM DOCUMENTS OR 24310111 010 NOT SEALID BY ME UNDERSIGNED ROPY112 
10 OR PITENDED TO BE USED FOR ANY PART OR PARTS OF THE PROACT FOR WIC/ THIS PACE REITER& 

2. BASS Of KAMM THE ARBORS AT 1111011088E CREW (P.O. 360 PO. 200) 

3. SOURCE OF RECORD 11Re !EEO RECOROW IN BOOR 11410 PAGE 1185 OF ME ST. MIS COUNTY, MISSOURI RECORDS. 

A THE EXCEPDONS TO MEDIAE 0, SECl/ON 2 OF THE ABOVE REFERENCE0 TRW CtROBILIENT APPLY ONLY TO THE PARCEL 
OF !AND AS HEREON DESCRSED. 

/1. EUBLECT 	IS LOCATED DI FLOOD ZONE 'X' (UNSHADED), ROXPT AROSE AREAS *Ennio HEREON IN FLOOD NNE 

ZNW
1.112

41:0
TRADT
ECI), 11000 ZONE •Ar 

AAO 
il000 ZONE (FLOOOWAT) ACCORDING 70 NATIONAL FLOOD INSURANCE 

R.000 INSURANCE RATE MAP FOR ST. LOUIS COUNTY LI-IMOSW EICORPGRATED AREAS ISSUED BY 111E 
FEDER% 131010ENCY UANACENDIT ACENOY, MAP NUMBER 2018110104 EfFECTIW FEBRUARY 4, 2015. ZONE 'X' 

)  IS DEFINED AS AREAS DETF.RMINED TO BE OUTSIDE 600-TEM 9000 PURL ZONE 'X' (WADED) 9 OusiED 
AITAT Of BOO-NEAR ROOD; AREAS CO 100-YEAR FLOOR 18111 AVERAGE DEPINS LESS  08601 I FOOT OR DIM 

DRAINAGE AREAS LESS THAN 1 SQUARE mitgs; AHD AREAS PROTECTED DT LEVEES FROM I00-11AR ROOD. ZONE 'AF' IS 
DEFEILD ARE SPECIAL FLOW HAZARD AREAS INUWATED 131 100-YEAR 8000; BASE 80.000 MOONS DETERMINED. 
ZONE 'AE' mcoowom IS MINED AS MOMS MEM IN ZONE AE. 

\ 

WEST LINE LOT 21 

EAST LINE LOT 22 

I 	22 	I 

I  

18 

3 OF 'ME ST. LOU
GRIN 

  
RANGE 

ER COU 
EAST

R 	
S, E97E1819D 

LOCATED U.S. 	VETS 	250,
ISSO URI AND 

102 MID 
, 	

, TRECORO
Y OF 01 , 

IN 
ST. LOUI

R
S COUNTY Y, M 	 \ 

A TRAOT OF LANO BONO PART(FORMOF LOT 21if R.H. STEVENS FARM RECORMO IN PLAT BOOK 7 PAGE 	 	COMMON GROUND 
41

7
9 TOWNSHIP 43 	3 

 

ARM ORCRAt COUR 
 .250' ME PU8110 T) 

• TITLE NOTES  

fOft EASEMENTS; THE STERUNO 0011PANY HAS USED, EXCLUSIVELY, A TILE COmARIENT BY 1111.6 PARTNERS ACENVA EEC, 
AGENT FOR CU MPUSUO NATIONAL. ME INSURANCE COMPANY, 111111 FILE NUMBER KEE-15-105118 RER9ON NO. 1 00TH 
68100000 DATE OF LURCH 10, 2015 AT MOD AM 1116 NOM RECARDINO SCHEDULE 0, SWIM 0 OF ABOVE COM,SMIENT ARE 
AS FOLLOWS 

111149-1,..0; GENERAL EXCEPTIONS 09 INTENTIONALLY 00.0160 9114 NO COMMENT BY SuRMYce. 
IIE1E/E PROMSIMS OF 11N PLAT OE R.R. STEVENS'  FARM RECORDED Di PLAT BOOK 7 PAGE 37 CF THE RECCROS OF ME 

CITY OF ST. LCVIS. AFFEOTS 111E SMEOT MUMMY. NOT SHORN - NO SURVEY-179ATEO MORMONS ARE 
USTED ON THE MAT. 

WM.& EASWENT FOR WATER RAE GRANTED ST. MI5 COU 
 R
N WTER GOMPMY ITY ITC 1191RUMENT.RECORDED 

BOOK 5392 PAGE 1500. THIS EASEMENT
TO 

 IS LOMM ON NE SU
A 

 MOT PROPERTY AND AFFECTS THE 61.18907 
PROPERTY AS SHOW 

1191.18 	EASEMENT 08624TE0 TO THE IlEIROPCUTAN ST. LOUIS SAYER OISMOT BY THE NMEMENT RECORDED IN BOOK 
5495 PAGE 1237. MS EASEMENT IS LOCATED ON NE SUBJECT PROPERTY MO AFFECTS THE SUBJECT PROPERTY 
AS SHOWN. 

=LW, DEDICATION OF REISER SYMMS TO ME METROPOUTAN ST. LOUIS SERER DISTRICT, ACCOMINO TO INSTRUMENT 
RECORDED Si 8008 10251 PACE 1655 ARUN 1NE 000,00T PROPERTY, NOT MOM NOT A 

• SURVEY-RELATED nu. 
IIEIL1LL CLIENTS Of THE MUG AND OTHERS ENTITLED DIERETO Di AND 70 THAT PORTION CO THE SUBMCT PROPERTY 

EMBRACED HMIS ME RIGHT Of WAYS CF WED HORSE CREEK ROAD AND MERTON ROAD. DOES NM AFFECT 
sUiLEOT PROPERTY. AS MOIT-OP-WAY IS ADJACENT 70 SUBJECT PROPERTY. NOT SWAN. 

COMMON 
GROUND 

LOT 38 
COUNTRY LANE ESTA 

COMMUNITY S 
D.B.11672P0,1803 
LOOS 10140111 \ 

MI6 COUNTRY Vice tvr cr, \ \ 

113,7,q:511,e \ 3514:16' 

PITH CAP 
JO 
$7

T 
 

CATION MAP 
LOT 37 stas p 

SET 
PON.1700 
141111 CAP 

8.7NEVST 

COMMON GROUND 

WILWASE v11At l• %1:N I t( 

nH 511171, 
let 

Nam, 1411.V.321 fe, 

F11171 STONE 
(NOW FOR CORNER) 

WILDHORSE VILLAGE B 
LOT 1 BOUNDARY 

ADJUSTMENT PLAT 
P.B. 352, PG. 879 

ADJ LOT 1 
fur 

1 0100, 87883 10. A OGRE S. 
99.1018175.50 
too. IV/31037 

17663EGOGEWAYDR. 

F LOODWAY- 

	

MIND 	 LOT 603 

	

IRON APE 	 la 

	

MTH CAP 	 PAILEY,DAITAL Ital./WM 

	

N.L8 1290 	 0.11 IBM Ki. 117.11 
304813/114458 

	

\ '''',. 	17011111161kWM Mi. 	...... 

re  0 

F/40; MIRE 
LS 102150) mu) 

MATZ MANE 
h... NEE- 

eggErm 

-41,1/44 

• i-4t  
\\,;\ 

I°q\16;..:st, 
ez:(61, 

e 0 " 4̀1F.' V ,S4 

?C.\ 
'24; 	o 

„ . 44k,b4.44;t4,4, 

Vrtallrfar..X. 

M.B.D. 
P9 

17.155 W11.0111:MSE CREEK RD. 

W 

rLDHORSE VILLAGE--; 
sP.B. 310 PG. 4 

Lerro 

oc,44 

‘b4"4- ?oh 

2 
OF  

O.B. 849S PO 1237 
\ 	THE METROPOLITAN SE LOUIS SEWER Disnucr 

\\\ 

\ 
\ 	\ \ 

\ 	S.:. 

''''1?0,FTEERARFIL.00,DZIAIN 

Sgy 

I 

R.N. STEVENS FARM 
PART OF LOT 21 

BOUNDARY ADJUSTMENT PLAT 
(P.B. 353 PG. 955) 

ADJ PARCEL 1 

TR MAN 

	

ra, 4119 	 ■ 

	

• 
	No 	\ 

67606' 

ENO .900 
Cl N G 
	

MARY SCHAEFFBR 
ESTATE ADJUSTMENT 

P.B. 352, 00.809 

LOT 2 
N1F 

TUFMJIM LIVES TODAY 
MG 2006 P0.3146 
10091668140003 

17515 SOLO HoRES CREEK RD. 

BASE MAP 



DEEP WOOD 
P.O. 170, P0.24 

S1216'58"E 1524.13' 

LOT 2 
NW 

KENNEDY. M1CAELA 
D9.10623 P0.230I 
LOOl1en/62-051 

1122 DEEP FORE/37000IO 

asmssER, 
EMIL P. A ELIZABOTH Y. 

DR. 7941 P0.1342 
LOO. 16984000) 

1144 DEEP FOREST DRIVE 

LOT 3 

■ Do 

GRAPHIC SCALE 
O 60 	00 	200 

LOT 37 

• 

• 
O 
0 

UGHt STANDARD 
ROUTE POLE 
UTILITY POLE WI TRANSFORMER 
WATER VALVE 
GAS VALVE 
IIDEPHOHE BOX 
STREET/ROAD SIGN 
FlOE HYDRANT 
um. 000 
SANITARY 00241101.E 
CURS INLET / AREA INLET 

DENOTES SELII-PERMANENT MONUMENT. 

FOUND IRON PIPE 

GCVO. MON./ STOW 

CROSS 

CROSS WIN ARCHER 

BVICLIMBLIMERAMCIU 
COUNTY 6ENCE0ARN1 LW. ELEVA11044 must_ (NAND 88) 
'STANDARD TABLET' STAMPED 90-73 S.C. SE N NEST END OF NORTH 
HEAD WALL OF SRAM MAN CROSS/NO UNDER MO HORSE CRESS ROAD; 0.4 M 
EAST OF IRE CHESTERFIELD SCHOOL 75' EAST OF GRAVEL ORM AT 907831osi  MILD 
HORSEHORSE GREEN ROAD. 

STE BENCHMARIG ELEVATION Lac immi go 
FOUND IRON PIPE MIN CAP FOUND AT The NORm yEST COINER OF THE SUBJECT 
TRACT. 

THE STERUNO COMPANY 
140. REO. 307-0 

JAMEY A. 
340. DEN. LS  /2007017263 

015 03  
KS 0 
PA 

. 	1.1M1.0.1011 

091 
SHEET 

2 

OF 2 
BABE MAP 

A TRACT OF LAND BEING PART OF LOT 21 OF R.H. STEVENS FARM 
PLAT BOOK 7 PAGE 37 OF THE ST. LOUIS CITY (FORMER COUNTY) RECORD, 

LOCATED IN U.S. SURVEYS 122, 150, 102 AND 419, TOWNSHIP 45 NORTH, RANGE 3 EAST, 
CITY OF CHESTERFIELD, ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI 

( IN FEET) 
I inch 	100 11. 

PLF 
ONESTMEN I CONSULTANT DROUP INC. 

D.D.14701 po. 2437 
1.00.4 15003.0077 

17415 YOLK HORSE CREEK RD. 

r 	rre- 1 
L 

TaPATr RCP 

409, 

L 

ADJ. PARCEL 2 
NIP 

DONALD R. ROWERS 
musTee 

D.B. 17025 PO. 1132 
1.00.5 16001111098 

17622 Y.1111.01.1D./35E CREEKRD. 
• • 	• 	• 

- 	--I 

9 1 9  "ALM PARCEL 1 

W / 	 257 

X W 	GRAY REVOCABLE TRUST 
0.13.1D724 PO. 15119 

17631 W$L0 ROME CREEK RD. 
L00012014 Ma 

SOMAD11.10RAK 
D.B. 1005 P0.60 
LOC6719194011 

17537 WAD NORSE CREEK RD. 

NATAL J0D701 a STEPHEN 
9.0. 17756 1,0.302 
1.00.0 159024061 

17540 MD 1501106 CREEK RD. 

LEGEND 
.rnrer -rev-v^. TREE ONE 

• UNDERGROUND WATER UK 
---- UNDERGROUND TELEPHONE LINE 

- UNDERGROUND OAS UNE 
OWRHEAD WIRE 

VR0E1101E001}  REM UNE 

-X -X -X -- FENCE LINE 

: 

	

_ 	\ : 1 01 	 \ 	 I I 1 	\ 	 - i 	I 	\ \ 1 	1 0 

	

\ 	\ 	\ 	\ 	1 l' 1 :: Ni ll 1: 10  1.1° \ \ \ 	

■ 
\ 

	

4 	.' 
,   
 /' . /I )  1 Iii :/10,----  --....------.----: . \`, 1 \ I 	 , 

	

I i ' 	1 ', • •-\\V\  0 \ \ \ 	̀ 

	

\ 	 \ 1 FEV.532.6/ 	/ 	/ / ,,,r - , 	.' 	........- --- 1 

	

1, 	\ 	\ 
\ 
	\‘‘N )  ?  11} 10 11) 0 I. \ 	

\ / 	/ / 	''' 	../ 	/' 	.....'" •-• 	\ 	I I I 	! / 	• 	/ / 	- ,,,.... 	/ 	.., 	....... - _ , 	\ 1 , 1 i 	 \ 	\ 	I 	) / 	1 \ 1 1 	\ 	\ . 	k 	 \ /-•-• 	 / 	/ 	-- 

	

_ ._,/ 	/ i t/ 	_ _ __ __ _ _ ..... 	/ 	// 	
I 	I 

	

4. 1 	
1 	\ 	/  

, PART t
t
F.1 tio-c  1 41)F v.H., STEIVENtFAI'M ,/ / //////) / /h // i--..,..\---,‘. \ 	\ 

\ 
co- 	 ...---- •• ./ / 	 .,./ / P.1)(7)30, 37 	it Ilory CRY iliE0ORD (F RMER 406fiTIV PI /....<-.----\\\ \\\\ 	\ • ,/ 	___ 	 • 	\ 1,  I,  1 i \ I \ IN 

	

iks  I 	I . / ,I / 1//',/,,_!-::-. ..=--zz.-z:.\\\ \ 	\ - - 	 , , 

	

`. '. 1 I.'MtD\HOFS C EEK FAIIM7 / / r
/ 

i I ..__....-------_:_:---z.--.....„...\\ . 	\ ....• ' 	J.- -- 

	

/ 	 ' 	... - ''. 	/ 

	

/ 	.- - -'• -------- - 	,/ 	i , 6;  1 .1 	■ Hyts N , LP.', 1 i ; 	/ 1,...`------: -..1-  --5P.° \ \ \ \ \\ \ \ \ s A 	\ 

	

, 	1 	I 	, 	' • .   ._.. ■ -.• • ..- .... ."\\ 	\\\ \ 	• \ / 	,. 53460 1 	\ 0.k. 1141 Po. 19\55 \ 1\ ‘  t‘ 	,^1-----)1,1\  \  \  \  111  \\  \``\\"\  \ 	\  ,  / 

I 	j 	s 	1 	I 	, 	1 	\ ‘ s.\\ 	......... 	CI\ ,Iti ils‘ 	\\\\ \ 	
\ ' i ' 

-------- 
./ 

/ 	I I I I ILoo, No, 111V3Sr000 ° 	0 \ \ 	--- 	, \ ' 1 1 0 \ O s  A \ \ \ \ \ ' - - ....- 	. 	\ . 	\ \\\ \ 	
\\\\`\11 

\ 	\ 
L 

1 	

ao 	/ 1 I ) 	 t 	1 1 	. 	- - 	\ \ \ \ \,\‘\\\\ \,\\,\1\1\,\, 

D.O. 1101 	

\\\ \\I 

	

I 	1 	, 	L, _ 	\ .... 
\ 1 	 /, 
	' 	

/ 	
// 

il il A / 260p9/ Go{ Ft, 1 	0 's.' V 	 / 	 o.---- 	 / 	i / 	1i .  1 (0.5279 1)Acr8)* i 	\ 	\ \ 	.., ‘ 	R-0-W 0E0100100 / 
	 ./6' 	

--510." 

`t 	/ 	/ 	/ / 	/ 	' 	/ I .  , . 1 	I 	 .... _ - ., 

	

I,1cK 245 	 ' 	 I 	\ 	 ..., 
DA 12,SrPG• 67 	// 	, .., /

/ 

 , __‘\ 

	

I 	/ 	 / / / / 1 / 1 1 / 	 0 	\ \ 	1 t 111 	II1kN. \\ \N \ 	\ 
1 	MI ill\ \\ \ ) \ c 1, 	/ 	 / 	/ 	I / / 4 , / / / 1 / 	1 	, 	/ / / , 	

/ 
. / / , 	 ■ • 	

, \\ .1 I .ti \ ,til \I \ \II 	\ 	\ 

\ 
\ ■ 1 1 w ,..\\;\0..\\ \ \ 

	

I 	 / 

	

I 	■ 	. ■ 	• / 	.'' ,,'' 	. 	/ 	/ 	/ / / / ! / / / / / 	1 	 . \\\ \ 	/ 	.' 	/ 	- ., 	/ 	/ 	/ 	/ / 	: / / / 	/ 	 / 	 . 	\ 	̀..N‘.' •••\ 	‘ \ 

	

\ \ 	, 
\ 	\\:,, • •,-..• \\\\\ NI \ °I  A 	A / / 	 / 	\ 	I 	/ 	/ , // i/ / I / / / / 	

/ 

CLEV-514.99,1 \ 

,,,,,, \\,......\\\ \ 	,,,, 	, 
\ 	/ 	/ 	/ r 	7 	\ 	/ 	I 	/ A 

	
i / / 1 	/ 	/ 	

\ 
/ 	/ 	b, 	i 	i 	I / / 	

// 
,/ / 	I . I / I / 	,/ 	 \ 	\ ........ \ \ 0 it ,  co \ \ „, 	, 

	

1 	/ 
/ 	._,Q3. 	1 	I 	1 	I i 	/ / / 	1' / / / , 	/ 	7. , '' 	...,S 

	

likin542.4s I 	I 	I 	/ I 	/ I / /, 	I 1 I 	/ 	..-- 
1 	/. 

., 	-/*--- 	/ 	/// I 11 	 ki' 

) ' 	\--.. 	) 1 1011,11, 1 0  \ 	\\ 

	

I 	:1:111:1;;;ii  1‘  : :1  kl: 	\ 	)‘1:_.
I 	I/11 

i I 	i 	• 	I

I 	
1II 	I I 1 1  I / j/  //:' /// / i I f /' ,..'-- - - - --. 

I 	/ .! 	I 	I 	. 1 1 1 I 	i 4 	,,\ rd 	/ j I I /' 	 ----/ 	.-- ----- -' / '111/ . i I I   
Ii  11. / / i i 1 	/ / / 1, ,  h // i / 	 ___- 

	

,,,. -,,--;,,,,,---,--:;-- -7......76....1°--__.-::::::*:**,,./c/4eirii"" ////I 
l

/ /, rettrs 	,2',.../.  ',.."  \'

▪ 

 'eb I 	1 	I 	 / / / 	/ 	. 	/ ,t‘ I 	I 	I, II 	/ 	(...., 	, . \ 	1 \ 1\ 1\ e /1 / / / 
.rr-x-r,t-Y, 

1. 	..'.  / i Yr -,,, .^-AC"-ii''o2:Z-'e.e•Crr,'4):;Yr-'''''''''r'-9 ' / 	I 1 / 	\ ' '.•-../.3:--.S‘C.' 41Y4\ f 1 (-4-'  / 	)1`.0 ,..---."‘ - ----•✓" ,-.-. - - ::;'. 1-i."  -:::::::"  4/EGIAINE 4.09i1 	,,,e)....:: 2; -4% A BC 
 

• : ,1%-lq  v ,V.ri27r,.6.:1 

	

),1,1 	" . t. 14,. 1' 	
Z■00,t 	'." -r-;v 	'.44-. ." W. 

,,....„:::.,-........zza. -Z.,,,,^.•''''''t0/4. 44 _ ::: ,..i.../  i /.; OS -I t I N VP .... -.. \ \ 	N 1 N 

.rT,,-  "--::.--Nli  --.5 4.4, /e---  -,s" :" - ,.." 	'XCrilitirlf, 	a '--- ,,‘ 	1 .......;.. 
	L 3 ), 	 i .. 	.........,-:--,....... 	... -......:-. 	_  ..• 0„\\‘‘\,. 	\ g 	 • 

L, LI 	L \ L. \  
/ -- //:"....... \*:̀ ,L N \ \ 	‘ ) 	1 	 '- 

_,...--... 	 „,........s-t-,-•.-1,..._:-...4Ie- ...1" M I 	VII • N.Nn 	Iie15...----.:----....-.c.„,- '''. -\..."\ 72t \\: A \ 	.., ......„/ 
 ,-' 

	

LOGI 18V33.0145 	

\ 	, 
; 	

1 THE ARBORS AT LOHORDE CREEK 
HolmeoWNERSAGGOCIATIoN I- - - -1. 	 I 

	

I 	I 	I 	I 	0.12.20097110.11rD 

I/8 	

I 

	
17 	18 

1 

100 ARBOR GROVE CT. 0 

	

I 	21 I 	20 	I 	19 	I 	COMMON 

	

GROUND 	I 

I 	I 

I 	I 	I' 

APRON GROVE COURT; 
OW WOE MEW) 

▪ F.1 

g 
2 

FERIRCKWn 
L LL. t_011L 

CONE, WALL 
Mann, 

. • 	Lzr.9499..t 
R.N. sTEVENS FARM ' 

PART OF LOT 21 tti 
BOUNDARY ADJUSTMENT NAT 	\ 

1 (P.O. 30 PG. 985) 

) 	 / 
/ 	Il I 	I / /41--- 	-  - ' ''' ' 

1 	/ 	1 1 i 	) , .../ _._ - -- - :  - -- - - ...---' ° ' ° ° 1 \ 	1 	, 

........,.........4.4-. 
	..' 1.91.Fr',.....‘ 	- IT 	- 

.‘11- - C-rc---'''?-\. k 'rlitfi-V. .1 .•;7:  -A . 	
fie

.:̀ '̀ "" 	f"\\\\. \\ ■ .\‘`, 'Co.'?"7\'''',.. 	.41..*A.`4.' 	■ 	k-k, 

	

-,........ \ \\ ■\ \\ ..\ \ ' ..,\\-- NI  Hil l  I II 	I 	\ 
\ 	/ PALM) / 	- 	1 I I I l i 1 1 	, 	1\  • \ 'It 	 ,"\'`‘ 

\ 

	

, 	, \ \ \ 	\ ‘
j  I 

\ % \ ov,,, 	...G....oNC. siocl,
• 

 ......• ,...• 	".•\ \ 	\ \ \ 	\ 	\ 	\ 	\ 	1111  \ ‘ \ 1 1 1 k 11 	\ 

	

0 \ \ \ 	\ 	\\\A \ ‘ Ii"tflf '--.'"--'te r 	- -s \`' \ \\ \\ \\ \\ \ 	N\ 	\II 001\‘\ \ \ 1\  I 1 	II 

	

o,  ro 	i \ \ 	\ 	\ 	1 1/1.-- 	 • 	• \ 	\ 	\ \ \ 	\ 	\ 	1 
I 
\ \ \)11 1 )1 /1  ) 1 I 	‘  4..11:050 0 

t 

	

01/.0 WATER 0 	WAIT 1 ) 1 

N\ 

r. 	...../ 	, \ \ \ \, \ \ 	\ 	\ 1 I I \ .zili ii) .- -- -- - - ' / ' 	'- --. \ \ 	 I 	i t t li l l , / I I 1 	\ 

	

Au. 5092 PG. 1500 	A 

	

\ 	\ 	\.

♦  
 

(RAE 11K'  /81.4P 	) I iI' /I / I/ II 11#7/,,'  '' ..-- - - --- . ---- ,.--N N  \ \ ) " \ 	\ 	\\ •\ \ 	1 	1 1 	
\ 	

II, 
1 '  1!11;(;(  ‘,`  1 	, 

	

5%. 	i . ,•,,,,\  •\ \ \ 	\ 

LOT 	LOT 10 
1LF 

VESSE4.4 
61IOF1AELa CAM 
11.8. 12390P0.044 
L740000OC2180614062 
1NDRIDOE 

MATES DT. 

WINDRIDGE ESTATES 	F. ;  
P.B. 344, PG. 29 ...--  ---..  

1 i 1 ; 	/ 	\ 

ROBERT T. 11111.-.4E. 

, 1,4 	LO T 12 	 LO 18 •••...., 	 T 

1
0.9.12402 PO. 104 

I.  110711Pr:RIODE 1 1 D'il Ma Pg. 1M 
LOD4 1BY02.0/72 I , 1/5EREY VN.670UANNEA 	1-1 ) 

0.8.21°81:470.220 
LOO :16NEVIL2 16 EATATEDLN 	I 	liTrijOALM11,1099c211484C3T. 1 	AN --x....4_14180v200190:0 cr. 

I
1611 -0  65 	I 	1. 

a I 	 )1D( 
-. 1.0.1246, tisk. ;jig 	,. 

TiiphiesiZfer 
PRIVATE ROAD EASEMENT) 

T8V3-026S 
SANITARY MN 1-414.79 

FL.452.64 

-EAMINITO r 	 - 	 MI. SURVEY 1010 
e Gem 	

.7 
Do. Is/ 	 Y.S. SUITITirgb 

• 399.22' 

\ COUNTRY LAKE ESTATES 
P.B. 345, PG. 41 

/ 	I 	\ 

FWD: !PIPE 

\ 	\ 	 

LS 288D 
SHE DENCHMANN 

'LOT 2 

TURNINOLIVES 10001 
09. 20708 P0.3145 
LOOP 161101 .1000 

17550 WILD HORSE CREEK RD. 

COMMON GROUND 

1 // 
MY/ 

AIsvm D upirr/ 
mareq1AEPFEA/ ,1 

ESTATE 
P.B. 362, 0.`800 	- 

COMMON 
GROUND 

\ 	COMMON 
\ GROUND 

C 	IMAkR.E..fal-OT 38 COUNTRY No 	 COMMIPMY 

141 	
DA\ 110721,710n \ 

 10/34012.3 	\ 

-q("0"6Z' 	
7515 COUNTY LA 	DTA 

w,?;,?..,ji:pg"F\ \ 351/06' 
1 	1 	1 fi 1 t 1 54 111  

1 	i 	1 1  111 1 1 	fll\ 

COMMON GROUND 
• OP 

,VILDHOSE V L,A6l a 101.12/900 
0 E.0421 PD. 1534 
100.4 16 051047 4 

MD 0111VOWAY 

LOT 803 

MA EY, MU R. 6 10/P2r 

Lome.,414.45 

N,F 

09.10104 P0.104 5 

1750111111DOEWAYDR. 	

.../ 

	

\ ,.""- 	 .••••' 

	

. ..**; ,....,..-... 	WIG/HORSE VILLAGE A 

	

,.....":•,- 	

/
.:%:.•:" ----- 	 --- 

0463 ' ..P.B. 310, PG. 14 s... I 	. 
.----s- 

---..,-.._ 	- 
■-->„, --...=,:il Lu•eo 

k• 
..., 	'N. 	•,..  ..-,.,',I. 

9 4 

N>\(i 	̀. N 	..-" 

	

„ -1) criet:A q9o1„, Nv 	\ . 
1 	• ,,0414,4,.;N ,41, 'F/) 	\
L'''. 

3 	
'''.1,4,;'';,. '),',Nt.o., 	. \ 

	

qr--.F,'  e .. 	,  s 	'- -t''?  • 
\I.,.,„,  

N. 

\ 
'05.,19.ft 	

\
% 1

•  

141.k, \Ce 1p?  A 	 „74 
• ytt,40 ION ,T 

0: 

15 

WILOHORSE VILLAGE B 
LOT 1 BOuNDARY 

ADJUSTMENT PLAT 
P.9, 352, PG. 879 

AEU LOT 1 
RP 	• 

LEIDY.3W160 6DARE5. 
0.6.111204 

1/11131.0032 
t76153 IIRMEWAY DR. 



BILL NO. 3050 	 ORDINANCE NO. 	  

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ZONING ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF 
CHESTERFIELD BY CHANGING THE BOUNDARIES OF AN "E-1" ESTATE 
ONE ACRE DISTRICT TO A "PUD" PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT FOR A 
50.5279 ACRE TRACT OF LAND LOCATED ON THE SOUTH SIDE OF WILD 
HORSE CREEK ROAD WEST OF ITS INTERSECTION WITH LONG ROAD AND 
EAST OF ITS INTERSECTION WITH ARBOR GROVE COURT. (P.Z. 05-2015 
ARBORS AT WILMAS FARM {17508 WILD HORSE CREEK ROAD) 
18V330035). 

WHEREAS, the petitioner, Wilmas Farm, LLC, by: McBride 86 Son 
Acquisitions, LLC has requested a change in zoning from "E-1" Estate One Acre 
District to "PUD" Planned Unit Development for a 50.5279 acre tract of land 
located on the south side of Wild Horse Creek Road west of its intersection with 
Long Road and east of its intersection with Arbor Grove Court; and, 

WHEREAS, a Public Hearing was held before the Planning Commission on 
June 22, 2015; and, 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission, having considered said request, 
recommended approval of the change of zoning; and, 

WHEREAS, the Planning and Public Works Committee, having considered 
said request, recommended approval of the change of zoning; and, 

WHEREAS, the City Council, having considered said request voted to 
approve the change of zoning request. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF CHESTERFIELD, ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1.  City of Chesterfield Unified Development Code and the Official 
Zoning District Map, which are part thereof, are hereby amended by establishing 
a "PUD" Planned Unit Development for a 50.5279 acre tract of land located at 
17508 Wild Horse Creek Road and as described as follows: 

A tract of land being part of Lot 21 of R.H. Stevens Farm recorded in 
Plat Book 7 Page 37 of the St. Louis City (Former County) records, 
located in U.S. Surveys 122, 150, 102 and 419, Township 45 North, 



Range 3 East, City of Chesterfield, St. Louis County, Missouri and 
being more particularly described as follows: 

Beginning at an iron pipe found for the northeast corner of Lot 2 
Mary Schaeffer Estate Adjustment as recorded in Plat Book 352 Page 
809 of the above mentioned recorder's office, also being on the south 
right of way line of Wildhorse Creek (60'w.) Road; thence along the 
south line of said Wildhorse Creek Road the following courses and 
distances: North 55°15'36" East, 205.89 feet; along an arc to the 
right having a radius of 1880.08 feet, an arc length of 730.84 feet 
and a chord bearing and distance of North 66°23'46" East, 726.25 
feet; North 77°32'36" East, 33.09 feet to the intersection of the south 
right of way line of Wildhorse Creek Road and the west right of way 
line of Deep Forest (50'w.) Drive; thence along the west right of way 
line of said Deep Forest Drive, South 12°02'02" East, 544.62 feet; 
thence continuing along said west right of way line and the west line 
of Lots 2 and 3 of Deep Wood as recorded in Plat Book 170 Page 24 
of the above mentioned recorder's office, South 12°26'58" East, 
1524.13 feet to the southwest corner of said Lot 3; thence along the 
south line of said Lot 3, North 67°20'48" East, 50.80 feet to the 
northwest corner of common ground of Country Lake Estates as 
recorded in Plat Book 345 Page 41 of the above mentioned recorder's 
office; thence along the west line of said common ground and the 
west line of Lot 37, South 12°26'58" East, 351.06 feet to an old stone 
found for the southeast corner of U.S. Survey 150 also being the 
northeast corner of common ground of Wildhorse Village B Lot 1 
Boundary Adjustment Plat as recorded in Plat Book 352 Page 879 of 
the above mentioned recorder's office; thence along the north line of 
said common ground, and the north line of Adjusted Lot 1 and the 
north line of Lot 603, common ground and Lot 347 of Wildhorse 
Village A as recorded in Plat Book 310 Page 14 of the above 
mentioned recorder's office, South 77°40'33" West, 985.34 feet to an 
iron pipe found for the southeast corner of common ground of the 
Arbors at Wildhorse Creek as recorded in Plat Book 360 Page 220 of 
the above mentioned recorder's office; thence along the east line of 
said common ground and the east line of the above mentioned Lot 2 
of Mary Schaffer Estate Adjustment, North 12°22'00" West, 2190.06 
feet to the point of beginning and containing 2,200,997 square feet 
(50.5279 acres), more or less, according to a survey by The Sterling 



Company during the month of October, 2013 under order number 
13-08-265. 

Section 2. The preliminary approval, pursuant to the City of Chesterfield 
Unified Development Code is granted, subject to all of the ordinances, rules and 
regulations and the specific conditions as recommended by the Planning 
Commission in its recommendation to the City Council, which are set out in the 
"Attachment A" and the preliminary plan indicated as "Attachment B" which is 
attached hereto as and made part of. 

Section 3. The City Council, pursuant to the petition filed by Wilmas 
Farm, LLC, by: McBride 86 Son Acquisitions, LLC in P.Z. 05-2015, requesting the 
amendment embodied in this ordinance, and pursuant to the recommendation 
of the City of Chesterfield Planning Commission that said petition be granted 
and after a public hearing, held by, the Planning Commission on the 22 nd  day of 
June 2015, does hereby adopt this ordinance pursuant to the power granted to 
the City of Chesterfield under Chapter 89 of the Revised Statutes of the State of 
Missouri authorizing the City Council to exercise legislative power pertaining to 
planning and zoning. 

Section 4. This ordinance and the requirements thereof are exempt from 
the warning and summons for violations as set out in Section 8 of the City of 
Chesterfield Unified Development Code. 

Section 5. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after 
its passage and approval. 

Passed and approved this day of 	 , 2015. 

MAYOR 
ATTEST: 

CITY CLERK 

FIRST READING HELD: 



P.Z. 05-2015 Arbors at Wilmas Farm (17508 Wild Horse Creek Road) 
	

Page 1 of 13 
Planning Commission 07/27/2015 
Planning and Public Works Committee 08/06/2015 
City Council 08/17/2015 

ATTACHMENT A 

All provisions of the City of Chesterfield City Code shall apply to this 
development except as specifically modified herein. 

I. SPECIFIC CRITERIA 

A. PERMITTED USES 

1. The uses allowed in this Planned Unit Development (PUD) District 
shall be: 

a. Dwellings, Single Family Detached. 

B. DENSITY REQUIREMENTS 

1. The total number of single family residential units shall not exceed 
forty-seven (47) units. 

C. DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS 

1. Minimum lot size for this development shall be 22,000 square feet. 

2. Maximum height of all structures shall be fifty (50) feet. 

3. Structure setbacks shall be as follows: 

a. Twenty-five (25) feet from the front yard. 

b. Eight (8) feet from the side yard with a minimum of twenty (20) 
feet between structures. 

c. Twenty-five (25) feet from the rear yard. 

4. No building or structure, other than: a freestanding project 
identification sign, light standards, retaining walls or flag poles shall 
be located within the above listed setbacks. 

D. PARKING AND LOADING REQUIREMENTS 

1. Parking and loading spaces for this development will be as required 
in the City of Chesterfield Code. 

2. No construction related parking shall be permitted within the right 
of way or on any existing roadways surrounding the development 
including but not limited to Wild Horse Creek Road and Deep Forest 
Drive. All construction related parking shall be confined to the 
development. 



P.Z. 05-2015 Arbors at Wilmas Farm (17508 Wild Horse Creek Road) 
	 Page 2 of 13 

Planning Commission 07/27/2015 
Planning and Public Works Committee 08/06/2015 
City Council 08/17/2015 

E. LANDSCAPE AND TREE REQUIREMENTS 

1. The development shall adhere to the Landscape and Tree 
Preservation Requirements of the City of Chesterfield Code. 

2. Provide a Greenspace Preservation Area on the southern portion of 
the site as shown on the Preliminary Plan, attached hereto and 
marked as Attachment B. No structures or paving, other than the 
pedestrian trail as shown on the Preliminary Plan, are permitted in a 
Greenspace Preservation Area. 

3. Landscape Buffer requirements: 

a. A fifty (50) foot Landscape Buffer and Common Open Space area 
shall be required along the northern perimeter of the PUD as 
identified on the Preliminary Plan attached hereto and marked as 
Attachment B. 

b. A thirty (30) foot Landscape Buffer shall be required along the 
southern, eastern, and western perimeters of the PUD as identified 
on the Preliminary Plan attached hereto and marked as 
Attachment B. 

c. The thirty (30) foot Landscape Buffer requirement on the southern 
portion of the site shall be met by the inclusion of the Greenspace 
Preservation Area as shown on the Preliminary Plan, attached 
hereto and marked as Attachment B. 

d. The required Landscape Buffer shall be outside of any developed 
lot and shall be dedicated as Common Open Space or Greenspace 
Preservation Area as identified on the Preliminary Plan. 

4. Landscape berms along Wild Horse Creek Road shall be required as 
shown on the Preliminary Plan, attached hereto and marked as 
Attachment B. 

5. A minimum of thirty-nine percent (39.0%) Common Open Space 
shall be required for this PUD; the Greenspace Preservation Area is 
included in this calculation. 

F. SIGN REQUIREMENTS 

1. Signs shall be permitted in accordance with the regulations of the 
City of Chesterfield Code. 



P.Z. 05-2015 Arbors at Wilmas Farm (17508 Wild Horse Creek Road) 
	 Page 3 of 13 

Planning Commission 07/27/2015 
Planning and Public Works Committee 08/06/2015 
City Council 08/17/2015 

2. Ornamental Entrance Monument construction, if proposed, shall be 
reviewed by the City of Chesterfield, and/or MoDOT, for sight 
distance considerations prior to installation or construction. 

G. LIGHT REQUIREMENTS 

1. Provide a lighting plan and cut sheet in accordance with the City of 
Chesterfield Code. 

H. ARCHITECTURAL 

1. The development shall adhere to the Architectural Review Standards 
of the City of Chesterfield Code. 

I. ACCESS/ACCESS MANAGEMENT 

1. Access to the development shall be limited to one access point on 
Wild Horse Creek Road and another access from Deep Forest Drive. 
Adequate sight distance shall be provided, as directed by the City of 
Chesterfield, the Missouri Department of Transportation, and the 
Monarch Fire District, as applicable. 

2. No lot shall be allowed direct access to Deep Forest Drive or Wild 
Horse Creek Road. 

3. If adequate sight distance cannot be provided at the access 
locations, acquisition of right-of-way, reconstruction of pavement 
and other off-site improvements may be required to provide the 
required sight distance as required by the Missouri Department of 
Transportation and the City of Chesterfield. 

4. A thirty-foot-wide cross access easement shall be provided to the 
adjacent property to the west, as shown on the Preliminary Plan, 
and as directed by the City of Chesterfield. 

J. PUBLIC/PRIVATE ROAD IMPROVEMENTS, INCLUDING PEDESTRIAN 
CIRCULATION 

1. Any request to install a gate at the entrance to this development 
must be approved by the City of Chesterfield and the agency in 
control of the right of way off of which the entrance is constructed if 
other than the City of Chesterfield. No gate installation will be 
permitted on public right of way. 

2. If a gate is installed on a street in this development, the streets 
within the development, or that portion of the development that is 
gated, shall be private and remain private forever. 



P.Z. 05-2015 Arbors at Wilmas Farm (17508 Wild Horse Creek Road) 
	 Page 4 of 13 

Planning Commission 07/27/2015 
Planning and Public Works Committee 08/06/2015 
City Council 08/17/2015 

3. All roadway and related improvements in each plat or phase of the 
development shall be constructed and completed prior to issuance of 
building permits exceeding sixty percent (60%) for that plat or 
phase. Delays due to utility relocation and/or adjustment, for which 
the developer is responsible monetarily, shall not constitute a cause 
to issue permits in excess of sixty percent (60%). 

4. Additional right-of-way and road improvements shall be provided, as 
required by the Missouri Department of Transportation and the City 
of Chesterfield. 

5. Obtain approvals from the City of Chesterfield, the Missouri 
Department of Transportation and other, entities as necessary for 
locations of proposed curb cuts and access points, areas of new 
dedication, and roadway improvements. 

6. Provide a five (5) foot wide sidewalk, conforming to ADA standards, 
along the Wild Horse Creek Road frontage of the site. The sidewalk 
shall provide for future connectivity to adjacent developments 
and/or roadway projects as well as the existing sidewalk along Deep 
Forest Drive. The sidewalk may be located within right-of-way 
controlled by another agency, if permitted by that agency or on 
private property within a six (6) foot wide sidewalk, maintenance and 
utility easement dedicated for public use. 

7. Provide an on-site pedestrian walking trail throughout the site as 
shown on the Preliminary Plan attached hereto and marked as 
Attachment B. 

8. All proposed work in Missouri Department of Transportation right of 
way will require a Missouri Department of Transportation permit. 

9. The entrance geometrics and drainage design shall be in accordance 
with Missouri Department of Transportation standards and shall be 
reviewed and approved by Missouri Department of Transportation. 

10. The petitioner shall provide adequate detention and/or hydraulic 
calculations for review and approval of all storm water that will 
affect Missouri Department of Transportation right-of-way. 

11. All proposed work in Missouri Department of Transportation right- 
of-way must comply with Missouri Department of Transportation 
standards, specifications, conform to Missouri Department of 
Transportation's Access Management Guidelines with detailed 
construction plans being received and approved by Missouri 
Department of Transportation. 



P.Z. 05-2015 Arbors at Wilmas Farm (17508 Wild Horse Creek Road) 
	

Page 5 of 13 
Planning Commission 07/27/2015 
Planning and Public Works Committee 08/06/2015 
City Council 08/17/2015 

12. The proposed driveway locations are subject to meet Missouri 
Department of Transportation sight distance criteria and Access 
Management Engineering Policy. 

K. TRAFFIC STUDY 

1. Provide a traffic study as directed by the City of Chesterfield and/or 
Missouri Department of Transportation. The scope of the study 
shall include internal and external circulation and may be limited to 
site specific impacts, such as the need for additional lanes, entrance 
configuration, geometrics, sight distance, traffic signal modifications 
or other improvements required, as long as the density of the 
proposed development falls within the parameters of the City's traffic 
model. Should the density be other than the density assumed in the 
model, regional issues shall be addressed as directed by the City of 
Chesterfield. 

2. Missouri Department of Transportation will require a scoping 
meeting to discuss what type of traffic analysis will be needed to 
determine the necessary roadway improvements. A traffic impact 
study may be required to assess the impacts of the proposed 
development to the state highway system. 

L. POWER OF REVIEW 

Either Councilmember of the Ward where a development is proposed or 
the Mayor may request that the plan for a development be reviewed and 
approved by the entire City Council. This request must be made no later 
than twenty-four (24) hours after Planning Commission review. The City 
Council will then take appropriate action relative to the proposal. The 
plan for a development, for purposes of this section, may include the site 
development plan, site development section plan, site development 
concept plan, landscape plan, lighting plans, architectural elevations, 
sign package or any amendment thereto. 

M. STORM WATER 

1. The site shall provide for the positive drainage of storm water and it 
shall be discharged at an adequate natural discharge point or 
connected to an adequate piped system. 



P.Z. 05-2015 Arbors at Wilmas Farm (17508 Wild Horse Creek Road) 
	 Page 6 of 13 

Planning Commission 07/27/2015 
Planning and Public Works Committee 08/06/2015 
City Council 08/17/2015 

2. Detention/retention and channel protection measures are to be 
provided in each watershed as required by the City of Chesterfield 
and the Metropolitan St. Louis Sewer District. The storm water 
management facilities shall be operational prior to paving of any 
driveways or parking areas in non-residential developments or 
issuance of building permits exceeding sixty percent (60%) of the 
approved dwelling units in each plat, watershed or phase of 
residential developments. The location and types of storm water 
management facilities shall be identified on all Site Development 
Plans. 

3. The receiving storm system(s) shall be evaluated to ensure adequate 
capacity and to ensure that the project has no negative impacts to 
the existing system(s). 

4. Emergency overflow drainage ways to accommodate runoff from the 
100-year storm event shall be provided for all storm sewers, as 
directed by the City of Chesterfield. 

5. Offsite storm water shall be picked up and piped to an adequate 
natural discharge point. Such bypass systems must be adequately 
designed. 

6. The lowest opening of all structures shall be set at least two (2) feet 
higher than the 100-year high water elevation in detention/retention 
facilities. All structures shall be set at least thirty (30) feet 
horizontally from the limits of the 100- year high water. 

7. Locations of site features such as lakes and detention ponds must 
be approved by the City of Chesterfield and the Metropolitan St. 
Louis Sewer District (MSD). 

8. Storm sewers shall be as approved by the City of Chesterfield, the 
Missouri Department of Transportation, the Metropolitan St. Louis 
Sewer District, and other entities as necessary. 

9. Formal project development plans, including a MSD flood plain 
study, shall be submitted to MSD for review, approval, and permits. 
These facilities shall be designed in accordance with the MSD Rules 
and Regulations and Engineering Design Requirements for Sanitary 
Sewer and Drainage Facilities that apply at the time of formal 
submission to MSD. Formal plan approval is subject to the 
requirements of detailed review. 



P.Z. 05-2015 Arbors at Wilmas Farm (17508 Wild Horse Creek Road) 
	 Page 7 of 13 

Planning Commission 07/27/2015 
Planning and Public Works Committee 08/06/2015 
City Council 08/17/2015 

10. Stormwater quality, channel protection, and flood detention 
requirements will apply. Please note this project will be considered 
"new development", and controls shall be designed and implemented 
to reasonably mimic pre-construction runoff conditions (including 
runoff volume) to the maximum extent practicable. MSD will assess 
stormwater quality and flood detention effectiveness based on the 
site's January 2000 pre-construction condition. 

11. The rear portions of lots 16-27, walking trail, and multi sports field 
appear to bypass BMPs and detention facilities. The runoff 
generated from these improvements should be treated for water 
quality and managed to demonstrate no increase in flowrate and 
volume applied to offsite properties, as directed by MSD. 

12. Site layout and grading shall provide for an overland flow path 
should the onsite storm sewer system capacity be exceeded or 
become blocked. 

13. Receiving offsite sewer systems and open channels shall be analyzed 
for capacity. The developer may be required to improve downstream 
sewers and open channels if insufficient capacity exists to manage 
the additional flows generated by the proposed development or 
cause velocity conditions that would cause stream bank erosion. 

14. A 404/401 permit may be required from the U.S. Army Corps of 
Engineers and Missouri Department of Natural Resources. The 
developer should investigate for and assess the presence of any 
jurisdictional features on the site, and confirm with these two 
agencies the applicability of any requirements. If applicable, 
approvals from these agencies will be required prior to formal MSD 
plan approval. 

N. SANITARY SEWER 

1. The receiving sanitary sewer system(s) shall be evaluated to ensure 
adequate capacity and to ensure the project has no negative impacts 
to the existing system(s). 

2. Sanitary sewers shall be as approved by the Metropolitan St. Louis 
Sewer District, the City of Chesterfield, and other entities as 
necessary. 

3. Easement to MSD will be required for any public sewers. The project 
is located in the Caulks Creek Impact area and subject to applicable 
fees. 

4. The placement of fill shall not encroach upon the existing trunk 
sewer and easement located along the southern portion of the site. 



P.Z. 05-2015 Arbors at Wilmas Farm (17508 Wild Horse Creek Road) 
	 Page 8 of 13 

Planning Commission 07/27/ 2015 
Planning and Public Works Committee 08/06/2015 
City Council 08/17/2015 

0. GEOTECHNICAL REPORT 

Prior to Site Development Plan approval, the developer shall provide a 
geotechnical report, prepared by a registered professional engineer 
licensed to practice in the State of Missouri, as directed by the City of 
Chesterfield. The report shall verify the suitability of grading and 
proposed improvements with soil and geologic conditions and address 
the existence of any potential sinkhole, ponds, dams, septic fields, etc., 
and recommendations for treatment. A statement of compliance, signed 
and sealed by the geotechnical engineer preparing the report, shall be 
included on all Site Development Plans and Improvement Plans. 

P. MISCELLANEOUS 

1. All utilities will be installed underground. 

2. Prior to record plat approval, the developer shall cause, at his 
expense and prior to the recording of any plat, the reestablishment, 
restoration or appropriate witnessing of all Corners of the United 
States Public Land Survey located within, or which define or lie 
upon, the outboundaries of the subject tract in accordance with the 
Missouri Minimum Standards relating to the preservation and 
maintenance of the United States Public Land Survey Corners, as 
necessary. 

3. Prior to final release of subdivision construction deposits, the 
developer shall provide certification by a registered land surveyor 
that all monumentation depicted on the record plat has been 
installed and United States Public Land Survey Corners have not 
been disturbed during construction activities or that they have been 
reestablished and the appropriate documents filed with the Missouri 
Department of Natural Resources Land Survey Program, as 
necessary. 

4. Road improvements and right-of-way dedication shall be completed 
prior to the issuance of an occupancy permit. If development 
phasing is anticipated, the developer shall complete road 
improvements, right-of-way dedication, and access requirements for 
each phase of development as directed by the Missouri Department 
of Transportation and/or the City of Chesterfield. As previously 
noted, the delays due to utility relocation and adjustments will not 
constitute a cause to allow occupancy prior to completion of road 
improvements. 



P.Z. 05-2015 Arbors at Wilmas Farm (17508 Wild Horse Creek Road) 
	

Page 9 of 13 
Planning Commission 07/27/2015 
Planning and Public Works Committee 08/06/2015 
City Council 08/17/2015 

5. Obtain any and all necessary determinations, approvals, and 
permits from USACE, the Missouri Department of Natural 
Resources, and other entities, as necessary, for work impacting or in 
close proximity to jurisdictional waterways and/or wetlands. 

6. If any development in, or alteration of, the floodplain is proposed, 
the developer shall submit a Floodplain Study and Floodplain 
Development Permit/Application to the City of Chesterfield for 
approval. The Floodplain Study must be approved by the City of 
Chesterfield prior to the approval of the Site Development Plan, as 
directed. The Floodplain Development Permit must be approved 
prior to the approval of a grading permit or improvement plans. If 
any change in the location of the Special Flood Hazard Area is 
proposed, the Developer shall be required to obtain a Letter of Map 
Revision (LOMR) from the Federal Emergency Management Agency. 
The LOMR must be issued by FEMA prior to the final release of any 
escrow held by the City of Chesterfield for improvements in the 
development. Elevation Certificates will be required for any 
structures within the Special Flood Hazard Area or the 
Supplemental Protection Area. All new roads within and adjacent to 
this site shall be constructed at least one (1) foot above the base 
flood elevation of the Special Flood Hazard Area. Improvements to 
existing roadways shall be required as necessary to provide at least 
one access route to each lot that is at least one (1) foot above the 
base flood elevation. Consult Article 5 of the Unified Development 
Code for specific requirements. 

7. A portion of the site is located in the Special Flood Hazard Area or 
the Supplemental Protection Area related to floodplain. Consult 
Article 5 of the Unified Development Code for specific requirements. 
A certification of the actual elevation of the constructed floor will be 
required prior to occupancy of the building within these areas. 

II. TIME PERIOD FOR SUBMITTAL OF SITE DEVELOPMENT CONCEPT 
PLANS AND SITE DEVELOPMENT PLANS 

A. The developer shall submit a Site Development Plan within eighteen (18) 
months of City Council approval of the change of zoning. 

B. In lieu of submitting a Site Development Plan, the petitioner may submit 
a Site Development Concept Plan and Site Development Section Plans for 
the entire development within eighteen (18) months of the date of 
approval of the change of zoning by the City. 

C. Failure to comply with these submittal requirements will result in the 
expiration of the change of zoning and will require a new public hearing. 



P.Z. 05-2015 Arbors at Wilmas Farm (17508 Wild Horse Creek Road) 
	 Page 10 of 

13 
Planning Commission 07/27/2015 
Planning and Public Works Committee 08/06/2015 
City Council 08/17/2015 

D. A Site Development Plan shall be submitted in accordance with the 
combined requirements for Site Development Section and Concept Plans. 
The submission of Amended Site Development Plans by sections of this 
project to the Planning Commission shall be permitted if this option is 
utilized. 

E. Where due cause is shown by the developer, the City Council may extend 
the period to submit a Site Development Concept Plan or Site 
Development Plan for eighteen (18) months. 

III. COMMENCEMENT OF CONSTRUCTION 

A. Substantial construction shall commence within two (2) years of approval 
of the Site Development Concept Plan or Site Development Plan, unless 
otherwise authorized by ordinance. 

B. Where due cause is shown by the developer, the City Council may extend 
the period to commence construction for not more than two (2) additional 
years. 

IV. GENERAL CRITERIA 

A. SITE DEVELOPMENT PLAN SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS 

The Site Development Plan shall include, but not be limited to, the 
following: 

1. Location map, north arrow, and plan scale. The scale shall be no 
greater than one (1) inch equals one hundred (100) feet. 

2. Outboundary plat and legal description of property. 

3. Density calculations. 

4. Parking calculations. Including calculation for all off street parking 
spaces, required and proposed, and the number, size and location 
for handicap designed. 

5. Provide open space percentage for overall development including 
separate percentage for each lot on the plan. 

6. Provide Floor Area Ratio (F.A.R.). 

7. A note indicating all utilities will be installed underground. 

8. A note indicating signage approval is separate process. 



P.Z. 05-2015 Arbors at Wilmas Farm (17508 Wild Horse Creek Road) 
	 Page 11 of 

13 
Planning Commission 07/27/2015 
Planning and Public Works Committee 08/06/2015 
City Council 08/17/2015 

9. Depict the location of all buildings, size, including height and 
distance from adjacent property lines, and proposed use. 

10. Specific structure and parking setbacks along all roadways and 
property lines. 

11. Indicate location of all existing and proposed freestanding 
monument signs. 

12. Zoning district lines, subdivision name, lot number, dimensions, 
and area, and zoning of adjacent parcels where different than site. 

13. Floodplain boundaries. 

14. Depict existing and proposed improvements within 150 feet of the 
site as directed. Improvements include, but are not limited to, 
roadways, driveways and walkways adjacent to and across the 
street from the site, significant natural features, such as wooded 
areas and rock formations, and other karst features that are to 
remain or be removed. 

15. Depict all existing and proposed easements and rights-of-way within 
150 feet of the site and all existing or proposed off-site easements 
and rights-of-way required for proposed improvements. 

16. Indicate the location of the proposed storm sewers, detention 
basins, sanitary sewers and connection(s) to the existing systems. 

17. Depict existing and proposed contours at intervals of not more than 
one (1) foot, and extending 150 feet beyond the limits of the site as 
directed. 

18. Address trees and landscaping in accordance with the City of 
Chesterfield Code. 

19. Comply with all preliminary plat requirements of the City of 
Chesterfield Subdivision Regulations per the City of Chesterfield 
Code. 

20. Signed and sealed in conformance with the State of Missouri 
Department of Economic Development, Division of Professional 
Registration, Missouri Board for Architects, Professional Engineers 
and Land Surveyors requirements. 

21. Provide comments/approvals from the appropriate Fire District, 
Monarch Levee District, Spirit of St. Louis Airport, Metropolitan St. 
Louis Sewer District (MSD) and the Missouri Department of 
Transportation. 



P.Z. 05-2015 Arbors at Wilmas Farm (17508 Wild Horse Creek Road) 
	

Page 12 of 
13 
Planning Commission 07/27/2015 
Planning and Public Works Committee 08/06/2015 
City Council 08/17/2015 

22. Compliance with Sky Exposure Plane. 

23. Compliance with the current Metropolitan Sewer District Site 
Guidance as adopted by the City of Chesterfield. 

V. TRUST FUND CONTRIBUTION 

A. The developer shall contribute a Traffic Generation Assessment (TGA) to 
the Eatherton - Kehrs Mill Road Trust Fund (No. 552). This contribution 
shall not exceed an amount established by multiplying the required 
parking spaces by the following rate schedule: 

Type of Development 	 Required Contribution 
TGA Category 	 Contribution 
Single Family Dwelling 	 $1,085.70 

(Parking Space as required by the site-specific ordinance or by 
section 1003.165 of the Saint Louis County Zoning Ordinance.) 

If types of development proposed differ from those listed, rates shall 
be provided by the St. Louis County Department of Highways and 
Traffic. 

If a portion of the improvements required herein are needed to 
provide for the safety of the traveling public, their completion as a 
part of this development is mandatory. 

Allowable credits for required roadway improvements will be 
awarded as directed by the St. Louis County Department of 
Highways and Traffic and the City of Chesterfield. Sidewalk 
construction and utility relocation, among other items, are not 
considered allowable credits. 

B. As this development is located within a trust fund area established by St. 
Louis County, any portion of the traffic generation assessment 
contribution which remains following completion of road improvements 
required by the development shall be retained in the appropriate trust 
fund. 

C. Traffic generation assessment contributions shall be deposited with St. 
Louis County prior to the issuance of building permits. If development 
phasing is anticipated, the developer shall provide the traffic generation 
assessment contribution prior to issuance of building permits for each 
phase of development. Funds shall be payable to Treasurer, St. Louis 
County. 



P.Z. 05-2015 Arbors at Wilmas Farm (17508 Wild Horse Creek Road) 
	

Page 13 of 
13 
Planning Commission 07/ 27/ 2015 
Planning and Public Works Committee 08/06/2015 
City Council 08/17/2015 

D. The amount of these required contributions for the roadway, storm water 
and primary water line improvements, if not submitted by January 1, 
2016, shall be adjusted on that date and on the first day of January in 
each succeeding year thereafter in accordance with the construction cost 
index as determined by the St. Louis County Department of Highways 
and Traffic. 

VI. RECORDING 

Within sixty (60) days of approval of any development plan by the City of 
Chesterfield, the approved Plan will be recorded with the St. Louis County 
Recorder of Deeds. Failure to do so will result in the expiration of approval 
of said plan and require re-approval of a plan by the Planning Commission. 

VII. ENFORCEMENT 

A. The City of Chesterfield, Missouri will enforce the conditions of this 
ordinance in accordance with the Plan approved by the City of 
Chesterfield and the terms of this Attachment A. 

B. Failure to comply with any or all the conditions of this ordinance will be 
adequate cause for revocation of approvals/permits by reviewing 
Departments and Commissions. 

C. Non-compliance with the specific requirements and conditions set forth 
in this Ordinance and its attached conditions or other Ordinances of the 
City of Chesterfield shall constitute an ordinance violation, subject, but 
not limited to, the penalty provisions as set forth in the City of 
Chesterfield Code. 

D. Waiver of Notice of Violation per the City of Chesterfield Code. 

E. This document shall be read as a whole and any inconsistency to be 
integrated to carry out the overall intent of this Attachment A. 



The Arbors at Wilmas Farm 
A TRACT OF LAND BEING PART OF LOT 21 OF RH. STEVENS FARM 

RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 7 PAGE 37 OF THE ST. LOUIS CITY (FORMER COUNTY) RECORDS, 
LOCATED IN U.S. SURVEYS 122, 150, 102 AND 419, TOWNSHIP 45 NORTH, RANGE 3 EAST, 

CITY OF CHESTERFIELD, ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI 

PRELIMINARY DE'VELOPMENT PLAN 

CHESTERFIELD 
AMP  T RD.  

ED SON AVE. 

ES 

N.T.S. 

LOCATION MAP 
N.T.S. 

PROJECT ZIP CODE: 63005 

LEGEND 

-11.1-49 OUTER 

CONTOURS 

SPOT ELEVATIONS 

CENTER ONE 

BUILDINGS. ETC. 

TREE LINE 

FENCE 

STORM SEWERS 

	 SANITARY SEWERS 

CATCH BASIN 

AREA INLET 

GRATED INLET 

STORM MANHOLE 

SANITARY MANHOLE 

FLARED END SECTION 

CLEANOUT 

LATERAL CONNECTION 

UTILITY OR POWER POLE 

FIRE HYDRANT 

TEST HOLE 

PAVEMENT 

GAS MAIN & SIZE 

WATER MAIN SC SIZE 

I -- 	TELEPHONE 

ELECTRIC (U) UNDERGROUND 

014W- ELECTRIC (0) OVERHEAD 

FLOW LINE 

TO BE REMOVED 

IC 	 TOP OF CURB 

44-  • 4*---  • 	 SWALE 

25 	 LIGHT STANDARD 

STREET SIGN 

P.S. 	 PARKING STALLS 

YARD //GNI 

COMMON GROUND 

EXISTING 

511' 
X536 

PROPOSED 

6 

(542 

s`44. 536.0  

r4V-444,4444/,44, 

6 

-- (I) 

(El --- 

•--(OHW)44-- 

t 

TAR 

(TIC) 

P.S. 

F.25' 
MIN.  

22.0001/111.Q. 8' SIDE 

g_MINEIMER 
. 20' 

'STIR  CTURES) 

ivy 
25' BLDG. UNE 

110' MIN.  

8' SIDE YARD 
(MIN. 20' 
BETWEEN 

STRUCTURES) 

8' SIDE YARD 
(MIN. 20' 
BETWEEN 

STRUCTURES) 

Awh 	
k- 

• ................... 

E•22643 .17 
v. 
4,,N67itao,44;# 

Attachment B 

SURVEYORS CERTIFICATION  
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT WE HAVE DURING THE MONTH OF MAY. 2 015, AT THE 

REQUEST OF MINAS FARM. LLO, PREPARED A PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN OF THE 
ARBORS AT WIMAS FARM'. A TRACT OF LAND BONG PART OF LOT 21 W.R.H. STEVENS FARM 
RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 7 PAGE 37 OF THE ST; LOUIS CITY (FORMER COUNTY) RECORDS, 
LOCATED IN U.S. SURVEYS 122, 150, 102 AND 419, TOWNSHIP 45 NORM, RANGE . 3 EAST, CITY 
OF CHESTERFIELD, ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI. THIS PUN IS NOT A SURVEY AND DOES NOT 
MEET THE 'MISSOURI MINIMUM STANDARDS FOR .PROPERT(IFHDARY SURVEYS' (10 CSR 30-2 
AND 4 CSR 30-18 EFFECTIVE DATE DECEMBER 30, MT, 

THE STERLING COMPANY 

MO. 

6 . 

sao! as 02qnd JO itiaLup00 

1 • 
SICZ I Z inf 

Pia!Poisago Jo An 

03A130324 

TREE INFORMATION  

SEE TREE STAND DELINEATION - SHEET I 

GENERAL NOTES:  
0. THIS SITE IS IN THE FOLLOWING DISTRICTS: 

METROPOUTAN ST. LOUIS SEVER DISTTICT 
MONARCH FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 
ROCKWOOD R-8 SCHOOL DISTRICT 

2. THIS SITE IS IN 7HE FOLLOWING UTUTY SERVICE AREAS 
MISSOURI AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 

AT&T 
AMEREN UE 

LACLEDE OAS COMPANY 
CHARTER COMMUNICATIONS 

3 SANITARY SEWER CONSTRUCTION AND CONNECTIONS SHALL BE AS APPROVED BY THE METROPOUTAN ST. 
LOUIS SEWER DISTRICT AND IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE STANDARD CONSTRUCTOR SPECIFICATIONS FOR SEWERS 
AND DRAINAGE FACILITIES. 

4. STORM WATER SYSTEM SHALL BE DESIGNED PURSUANT TO THE CITY OF CHESTERFIELD AND METROPOUTAN ST. 
LOUIS SEWER DISTRICT REQUIREMENTS AND DISCHARGE AT AN ADEQUATE NATURAL DISCHARGE PONT. 

B. NO SLOPES SHALL EXCEED 3 (HORIZONTAL) TO 1 (VERTICAL), UNLESS JUSTIFIED BY =TECHNICAL REPORT 
MICH HAS BEEN ACCEPTED/APPROVED BY THE CITY OF CHESTERFIELD. APPROVAL OF THIS PUN DOES NOT 
CONSTITUTE APPROVAL OF SLOPES IN EXCESS OF 3:1, STEEP SLOPES ARE SUBJECT TO THE REVIEW AND 
APPROVAL OF THE CITY OF CHESTERFIELD. REVIEW OF THE PROPOSED STEEP SLOPE HALL BE CONCURRENT 
WITH THE REVIEW OF THE GRADING PERMIT OR IMPROVEMENT PUNS FOR THE PROJECT. 

7. THE LOCATION OF STORM. AND. SANITARY DEVON IMPROVEMENTS ARE APPROXIMATE ONLY. ACTUAL LOCATION 
SHALL BE DETERMINED BY FIELD CONDITIONS AND SHALL BE INDICATED ON THE IMPROVEMENT PLANS. 

B. GRADING SHALL BE PER CITY OF CHESTERFIELD STANDARDS. SOURCE OF TOPOGRAPHY FIELD SURVERY AND 
WAR TOPOGRAPHIC DATA 

9. STREET TREES MD STREET UGHTS (UNLESS OTHERWISE DEPICTED) SHALL BE PER CITY OF CHESTERFIELD 
STANDARDS. 

10. NEAREST MAJOR INTERSECTION IS WILDHORSE CREEK ROM AND LONG ROAD. 

11. ALL SIDEWALKS WALL BE CONSTRUCTED TO ADA AND THE CITY Cf CHESTERFIELD STANDARDS. 

12 EXISTING OWNERS: 	WED HORSE CREEK FARMS INVESTMENTS, LP 
129 WINDY ACRES ESTATES DRIVE 
BALLVW, MO 83021 

13. SITE TO CONFORM TO THE CITY OF aiESTERRELD TREE REQUIREMENTS 

14. MAXIMUM HEIGHT OF THE RESIDENCES 1111.1 NOT EXCEED 50 FEET. 

15. SITE FLAN WILL MEET ALL CITY OF CHESTERFIELD REQUIREMENTS. 

I& LANDSCAPE EASEMENTS ARE ESTABLISHED AS A PROTECTED AREA FOR VEGETATIVE LANDSCAPING ONLY. 
STRUCTURES OF ANY SIZE, WHETHER TEMPORARY OR PERMANENT, ARE NOT PERMITTED WITHIN LANDSCAPE 
EASEIADITS. TRAILS SHALL BE ALLOYED WITHIN THE LANDSCAPE EASEMENTS. LANDSCAPING AS APPROVED 
BY THE CITY Of CHESTERFIELD DURING SITE PLAN REVIEW IS REQUIRED TO BE MAINTAINED AND PRESERVED 
INDEFINITELY BY THE RESIDENT OR A HOME OWNERS ASSOCIATION. FALURE TO MAINTAIN OR PRESERVE 
LANDSCAPE EASEMENTS MAY RESULT IN INSPECTION PLATS  ISSUANCE OF FINES BY ME CITY OF CHESTERFIELD, 
THIS LANGUAGE SHALL BE INCLUDED ON AU. PLANS, 	ORDINANCES, SUBDIVISION INDENTURES, AND 
OTHER APPROPRIATE (MITTEN) DOCUMENTS FOR THIS DEVELOPMENT. 

17. THIS PROJECT IS APPROXIMATELY 2,000 FEET AWAY FROM mars RUNWAY 26L AND THEREFORE AIRCRAFT 
NOISE 1121. BE NOTICEABLE AT THE SITE ON A DAILY BASS. 

18V330035 

E-1 

PUD (PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT) 

50.5 ACRES 

gas ACS 41 SAO Q0 FT/AP  
(43,560 SO.FT.A0T) 

AVERAGE LOT SIZE 	 23,012 S.F. 

MAXIMUM NUMBER OF UNITS ALLOWED: 	 50 

NUMBER OF UNITS PROPOSED: 	 47 

LOT DEVELOPMENT REQUIREMENTS: 

FRONT YARD SETBACK 
SIDE YARD SETBACK 
REAR YARD SETBACK 

MIN. LOTS SIZE 

NUMBER OF PARKING SPACES REQUIRED: 

NUMBER OF PARKING SPACES PROVIDED: 

PROPOSED STREETS SHALL BE PUBUC 50'W. R.O.W. WITH 28'W. PONT'. AND BUILT TO THE CITY OF CHESTERFIELD 
STANDARDS. 

STREET AREA 4.88 ACRES 

1.10007 R/V/ DEDICATOR 0.34 ACRES 

COMMON GROUND .4  0.73 ACRES WHICH EQUALS 1.4% OF THE SITE 

COMMON OPEN SPACE 19.93 ACRES WHICH EQUALS 30.5% OF THE SITE 

FLOOD MAP: FENN PANEL 2018900145K DATED: FEB. 4, 2015 

TYPICAL LOTS  
NOT TO sem 

STATE PLANE COORDINATFS  
STATE PLANE COORDDIATES. WERE DETERMINED ON MARCH 15, 2011 USING TRIMBLE REAL-TIME KINEMATIC CPS HARDWARE FROM 
THE PROECT SITE TO A CONTINUOUSLY OPERATING REFERENCE STATION (CTRS) WITH AN ID OF SRDX AND A ND OF D12212 
HAVING PUBUSHED MISSOURI STATE PLAN_VEAST ZONE) , COORDINATE VALUES OF NORM (V) 314214.384 METERS AND EAST (X) 
w 237449.330 METERS. WE REPRESENT IMON THAT THESE STATE PLANE COORDINATES MEET THE ACCURACY STANDARDS OF THE 
'MISSOURI MINIMUM STANDARDS FOR:PROPERTY BOUNDARY SURVEYS' (10 CSR 302 AND 20 CSR 2030-16, EFFECTIVE DATE 
AUGUST 28, 2000) AS AN 'SUBURBAN PROPERTY' RELATIVE TO STATOR ORM IN ORDER TO PUT THIS PLAT ON THE MISSOURI 
STATE PLANE-COORDINATE' EAST ZONE (NAD-83) GRID NORTH, IT WOULD BE NECESSARY TO ROTATE THE PUBUSHED PLAT 
BEARINGS COUNTER-CLOCKWISE 00'22'11'. THE PUBUSHED PLAT BEARING OF N1228 .48'w WOULD BE N121425'W IF ROTATED TO 
GRID NORTH. 

COMBINED GRID FACTOR 0.999914928 (1 METER 3.28083333 FEET) 

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION  
A TRACT OF LAND BONG PART OF LOT 21 OF R.N. STEVENS FARM RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 7 PACE 37 OF THE ST. LOUIS CITY 
(FORMER COUNTY) RECORDS, LOCATEDIN U.S. SURVEYS 122, 150, 102 AND 419, TOWNSHIP 45 NORTH, RANGE 3 EAST, CITY OF 
CHESTERFIELD,. LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI AND BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS 

BEGINNING AT AN IRON PIPE FOUND FOR THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 2 MARY SCHAEFFER ESTATE ADJUSTMENT AS RECORDED 
IN PLAT BOOK 352 PAGE 509 OF THE ABOVE. MENTIONED RECORDER'S OFFICE, ALSO. BEING ON THE SOUTH RIGHT OF WAY UNE OF 
VALINORSE CREEK (60V.) ROAD; THENCE ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID VALDHORSE CREEK ROAD 7HE FOLLOWING COURSES AND 
DISTANCES NORTH 5515'36' EAST, 20589 FEET; ALONG AN ARC TO THE RIGHT HAVING A RADIUS OF 1880.08 FEET, AN ARC 
LENOIR OF 730.84 FEET AND A, CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF NORTH 6623'46" EAST, 726.25 FEET; NORTH 7722'36' EAST. 
33.09 FEET TO THE INTERSECTION OF THE SOUTH RIGHT OF WAY UNE OF WLDHORSE CREEK ROAD AND 'ME WEST RIGHT OF WAY 
UNE OF DEEP FOREST (5o'W.) DRIVE; THENCE ALONG THE.WEST RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF SAID DEEP FOREST WIVE, SOUTH iroror 
EAST, 544.62 FEET; THENCE CONTNUING ALONG SAID WEST RIGHT OF WAY UNE AND THE WEST UNE OF LOTS 2 AND 3 OF DEEP 
WOOD AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 170 PAGE.24 OF THE ABOVE MENTIONED. RECORDER'S OFFICE, 00(151 12211'58 •  EAST. 1524.13 
FEET TO THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID LOT 3; THENCE ALONG THE SOUTH UNE OF SAID LOT 3. NORTH 6720'48' EAST, 50.80 
FEET TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF COMMON GROUND OF COUNTRY LAKE ESTATES AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 345 PAGE 41 OF 
THE ABOVE MENTIONED. RECORDER'S OFFICE THENCE ALONG THE WEST UNE OF SAID COMMON GROUND AND THE WEST LINE OF LOT 
37, SOUTH 12'208.  EAST, 351:08 FEET TO AN OLD STONE FOUND FOR THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF U.S. SURVEY 150 ALSO BONG 
THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF COMMON GROUND OF WURIORSE VILLAGE B LOT 1 BOUNDARY ADJUSTMENT PLAT AS RECORDED IN 
PLAT BOOK 352 PAGE 879 OF THE ABOVE MENTIONED RECORDER'S OFFICE; THENCE ALONG THE NORTH UNE OF SAID COMMON 
GROUND, AND THE NORTH LINE OF. ADJUSTED LOT 1 MD THE NORTH UNE OF LOT 6D3, COMMON GROUND AND LOT 347 OF 
RILDHORSE VILLAGE A AS RECORDED IN RAT BOOK 310 PATE 14 OF THE ABOVE MENTIONED RECORDER'S OFFICE, SOUTH 77'40'33' 
WEST, 985.34 FEET TO AN IRON PIPE FOUND FOR THE SOUTHEAST COINER OF COMMON GROUND OF THE ARBORS AT VALDHORSE 
CREEK AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 360 PAGE 220 OF THE ABOVE MENTIONED RECORDER'S OFFICE; THENCE ALONG THE EAST LINE 
OF SAID COMMON GROUND MD THE EAST UNE OF THE ABOVE MENTIONED LOT 2 OF MARY SCHAFFER ESTATE ADJUSTMENT, NORTH 
1222'00' VEST, 219008 FEET TO THE PONT OF BEGINNING MD CONTAINING 2,200,997 SQUARE FEET (50.5279 ACRES). MORE OR 

13-08-2 
LESS, ACCORDING TO A SURVEY BY THE STERLING COMPANY DURING THE MONTH OF OCTOBER, 2013 UNDER ORDER NUMBER 

85. 

Date: 	1-21:11§_. 
MICHAEL O. SOERDING 
License No. MO 5-28843 
CMIEnglneer 

Job Number. 

15-03-091  
Date

• 

 21, 2015  

ahle,k0A7 PRE ) 

DIMWIT::LMOF Sheet 

.  

SHEET INDEX 

1.1 	COVER SHEET 
2.1 	PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
3.1 	NATURAL RESOURCE PLAN 
1 	TREE STAND DELINEATION 

SITE INFORMATION  
LOCATOR NUMBERS 

EXISTING ZONING: 

PROPOSED ZONING: 

GROSS AREA OF STE 

DENSITY CALCULATIONS: 
- 50 LOTS ALLOWED 

25' 
(616. 20' BETWEEN STRUCTURES) 

25' 

22,000 SQ. FT. 

TWO PER UNIT 94 SPACES 

94 



Date:7•21-2015  
MICHAEL EL ROUNDING 
Manse No. MO 0-28E43 
CMI Engineer 

THE UNDERGROUND UTTUTTESSHOWN HEREON WERE PUNTED 
FROM NAME- INFORMATION ARO DO NOT NECESSARILY REFLECT .: THE *mu& •• IDOSTENCE NONEGSTENCE, SIZE, 
TYPE, "NUMBER OR LOCATM OF THESE .  OR OTHER 
MUTTER,• THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR MALL BE 
RESPOMR0F2 WAFTING THE ACTUAL .  LOCATION OF 
All. UTILMEG-, SHOWN OR NOT SHOWN, ANO 
SAID UTILITIES SHALL BE- LOCATED IN THE HELD PRIOR 
TO_ANY GRAM°, ___EICAVATION OR CONSTRUCTION OF 
IMPROVEMENTS. ESE PROVISIONS &AU. IN NO WAY 
ABSOLVE MY PARTY P5064 COMPLYING WITH THE 
UNDERGROUND FACILITY SAFETY AND DAMAGE PREVENTION 
ALT, CHAPTER 319, RSIlo 

100 

GRAPHIC SCALE 
60 	'CO 	 400 

, 	541W.724 
i235557.300 

r -ET CU- 
L ..ar_sttu 
r-er Fr.r-

F 	 _ 
.CONC. A 

IOf; 
ST. LOUIS COUR WATER COMPANY 

E.1, 20' EASEMENT • 

B. 8392 PG. 1500 
SUS PLANE 

- - 

P2 Ai 

'§ 	 .. 

7 7 
ISE 

§ 	DONALD R. BOWERS 	I 
TRUSTEE 

52. 11025 PM 1132 
LOCI 16V61.0096 

17620 WILD HORSE CREEK RD. 

2:
5A MEANDERING 542.45 
DEWALK, WHIN 53802 
Wm. SIDEWALK, rallra7151-1 
MAINTENANCE L FL339.34 

AND UVUTY  
EASEMENT 

DEDICATED TO 
THE CITY CF 

I FOR PUBLIC USE 
CHESTERFIELD 

R.f 1. STEVENS FARM L ;1 rs cli Y,, 
PART OF LOT 21 	BERM (Tw.) , 1 
it 

	

BOUND RY ADJUSTMENT PLAT 	•V 
P.B. 353 PG. 955)  
,,, 	

.00 	 542.9 

.97, 	/ 	 COMMON 

VW , 	
• 	 OPEN 

Go ADJ PARCEL 1 SPACE ---  
fur 

1 	GRAY FIEVOCABLE TRUST 
DO. 1. 14811 

	

LOCI0224 PO 
111V51-0106 	STATE 176WILD HORSE CREEK RD. 

NIF 

INVESTMENT CONSULTANT GROUP INC. 
D.B. 14761 P0.2492 
LOCI 16V63-0027 

17455 WILD HORSE CREEK RD. 
STATE PUNS 

ADJ. PARCEL 2 

SOMACH, /ORA K 
48 .10666 P0.90 
LOCI 16Y61-00111 

17637 WILD HORSE CREEK RD. 

RATAN, JUDITH A STEPHEN 
0.817755 PO. 302 
LOCI 18V52-0051 

17549 WILD HORSE CREEK RD. 

reviron, 
L .21-m23_2.104 

vr 

14:313465.295 
2238844.049 

30.1ANAApEAIMONAINAPACE & 

EX. SIDEWALK COMMON CR .  NO 

07[Vii.Mr4ire lirdareMZ 
•EV: "q 	21tra9M4.1.1!.f'4WW!AI 	 

II 	 gi 1 
Ill 	

t 2 

LOT 1 

LOVELESS. 
NP 

JOHN F. & CHRISTINE E. 
D.8.12744 P0.1526 

7 LOCI 16/52.0073 
17437 OALIAICHE CT. 

S 

540.54 

540.40 

15315420.571 
/5238592.256 

SINS 

yI 

• 

Nfi \ 

Itign0. SA/TPA 

AKWilisrm. 	
• 

'IMAM 	 116-41147-..#411P 
);\■7•%,Va•M"-4;4 4 'IljegcR4 

..--- - 1 :/ 

WINDROW ESTATES 
.---/ 	.--- P-B, 344, RG-29L 

.„....- ____.--, 

	

\--- ---...,i_orti 	1 LOT 10 

	

VESSEL. 	ANDERSON, 
 

MICHAEL I CATHI 	ROBE-ATT. 
D.13.12306 P0. 644 	D.B. 12402 PM 1634 
LOC/ 18V61-0052 	Loci I Neuf n 
17436 YANDRIDOE 	1109 YENDRIDOE 

	

ESTATES CT. 	1 ESTATES W. 

4 LOT 12 

CIALMICHE, 
s JEFFREY V.5 DUANNE 

I D.B. 1104303. 1960 
LOCI 16Y82.0165 

1
17511 OAIJAICHE CT. 

1=421:=11M 
,"""Ir7-"", 	1p  

la 	1 1_, 

LOT 15 
NIT 

MICHAEL S. 15 SHERRI F. 
DEL 11332 P0.901 
100.4 MA/62-0215 

17610 GALMICHE CT. 

\\ 
	1 
C,  I I

\ 
I 

 

1
\ 
\ \ \ 1 

1 	/ 

	

I I 	I 

MI I 

...---"T_.„. ■-ewireaf.irMSTri A=11 _ 

	

;i 	• Lit•  • .0, 

LOT 2 
WE 

KENNEDY, MICAELA 
D.B. 16523 P0.2304 

LOCl/ 151/02-0051 
1122 DEEP FOREST DRAB 

/ 

Ini:WenW" 

a'es 
.k 3 \ 

/Pi/ "4. 

\ ■\\ 	0\\\ 

.  \\  \\\ 	,- 

N\ 	\rk 	■ 	I 

,\‘\ \\ 	\\\ s  

(Jr 	 

/ ////.2 	
\ 
\ [COMM° 	4117 	 l 1kiriliftne 

4.„.;.74 

\ 	\ 
\ \ \\\ \\4Q ?() 

,741.f 

di 

1111,1 

1 "VIZZAMIE, 

S12'2 $'58"E 	1524.13' 

30' COMMON OPEN SPACE & 
LANDSCAPE BUFFER 

DEEP WOOD 
P.B. 170, P0.24 

1111111411 	 &Val 

LOT 3 

ELSAESSER 
11/F 

EMIL P. & ELIZABETH Y. 
D.B. 7141 P0.1342 
L001115734-000 

1144 DEEP FOREST DANE 

U.S. 

/ 

/ \ COUNTRY LAKE ES10ES - 
P.B. 345, PG.4 V1 \ 

\ 

N 
N 

N 

COMMON \ 
GROUND 

	

NIT 	 LOT 38 

\ CAZILtylEIT 
\ .17=4% IV 

515 COUNTRY TAKE EST C7. \\,, 

	

j,?.g,..g:pa's 	351. 

	

1 	1 	I i 1\1\ 	1 , 

	

I 	i 	\ 1 V11‘k 11 

	

/ 	/ 	I 	\ 

,,Vezt;"-A, 

14/F 
/MARK EUGENE R. & LINDA 

0.15.15452 PO. 2730 
LOGO 16V34-0190 

17512 COUNTRY IAKE EST 	./ 
6' 

LOT 37 	
1

/ 

- 

// 

STATE PANE 
N:512835.179 

004.701 

COMMON GROUND 
NF 

VALDHORSE VILLAGE El TRUSTEES 
0.13.6423 PG.1538 
L00.1416532-0476 

.----WILDHORdE VILLAGE 60 
LO T BOUNDARY 

ADJUSYMENZPLAT 
P.B. 352, PG. 7R 

17675 BRIDOEWAY DR. 

\ / / 

LOT 603 
WF 

BAILEY, DANIEL R. A NANCY 
D.9.16204 PM 1043 
LOC.* I8V31.0455 

17851 SIUDGEWAY DR. 

ADJ LOT 1 
WF 

LEIDY, MARK J. 6 DIANE S. 
0.13. 16254 P0.81 
LOCI 18031.0532 

17663 BRIDSEWAY DR. 

y 

/ 
" 	LOT ' 

N 

4 

5 

	J 

(IN FELT ) 
t Inch 	ISO IL 

MSD Base Map 18-V 

'Job Number 

15-03-091 
Dale 

July 21, 2015 
Sheet 

Orewn. LO 	2.1  
,ch4itglY*37 PRE 

Designed:MF 

ZJi 

04 

1 

I 

A 

9 



RESPONSIBLE FOR VERIFYING THE ACTUAL LOCATION OF 

THE  UNDERGROUND ROTES SHOWN HEREON WERE PLOTTED 
FROM AWARE INANIMATION AND DO NOT NECESSARLY 
REFLECT THE ACTUAL EXISTENCE, NONEXISTENCE, SIZE, 
TYPE, NUMBER OR LOCATION OF THESE OR OTHER 
MUTES. HIE GENERAL CONTRACTOR SHALL BE 

SAID TRILBIES MALL BE LOCATED IN THE FIELD PRIOR 
TO ANY GRADING. EXCAVATION OR CONSTRUCTON OF 
IMPROVEMENTS. THESE PROVISIONS SHAM IN NO WAY 
ABSOLVE ANY PARTY FROM COMPLYING WITH THE 
UNDERGROUND FACILITY SAFETY- AND DAMAGE PREVENTION 
ACT, CHAPTER 319, RS100  

602 7 

Designed'  MF 
Sheet 

10 
3.1 c° tre670/977.7 PRE  

The Arbors at Wilmas Farm 
A TRACT OF LAND BEING PART OF LOT 21 OF RH. STEVENS FARM 

RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 7 PAGE 37 OF THE ST. LOUIS CITY (FORMER COUNTY) RECORDS, 
LOCATED IN U.S. SURVEYS 122, 150, 102 AND 419, TOWNSHIP 45 NORTH, RANGE 3 EAST, 

CITY OF CHESTERFIELD, ST. LOUIS COUNTU, MISSOURI 

Natural Resource flap 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 

Southwest corner of site. 

Hydrologic Group "C" Soils 

Areas of Slopes In Excess of 20% 

Regulated Waters 
No 

No 
VACANT 
RESIDENTIAL 

AERIAL PHOTO 
N.T.S. 

GRAPHIC SCALE 
i00 so3 eab 

IMI 
Ali  - 

(  FRET ) 
1 lenh 10° It. 

conynunItY • 
u: ' 

t- 	bt/F \IIM1)1; 	
/ 

Locat 

01111 	•-• \,1 	C-7,1 
Invostmo 	 /5,28 • 

	

j <  t Group 1,t 	IN  It Lrks'abri 78 

t

028aij Loco ( t I  407 

C41 

ST. LOUIS COUN 
20' EASE 
WATER 

B. 8392 

) t c' 	
yk I I 

Existing Tree Mass 

Hydrologic Group "C/D” Soils 

NATURAL 
RESOURCE 

Wetlands 

FiStoroedapmicein. and 

Korot 

PRESENCE 

Yes 

Yee Bonhomme Creek tributaries flow through 
site. Southern portion of site is located 
In the 100 year floodplaIn. Stream buffer 
requirements apply. 

Ponds 

-------------- - 
I 

---- 	 A 	 
S \ 

T 

I 	
S.. SURVEY " 	

VEY 15° 

a 

\ 

1

• 	

7:N

• 	

M SSIk 

	

E CL:7-1-FeCA,„.TNI 	 —1114PD. 	63"5 
Grof 	

ZONED 	 PR-f: 

	

NE 	\\N, 

. I 	r 

I 

" \ 
Gr" 

Trimt." 	/ 

',LASE !„,,P4rixiagganiouszENT p., 
/ 

V 

4-  / 	
L 

/ P ) 	 \--77•`\ 	\‘‘k\64°AkVI 
• 40 /IV! 	

\;:bi 

N 
, \\I 	ttch :one 

IL/F 

1.  /;/ 	4 	 k#'\4'` 'LP"NirEd°'\‘‘NKN‘IC\ 
• ell 	"  s 	 \ 

ik 

,T ° :76. 	 lc )1 
b. 

`1 	

I° /4 

ZONED NU 

,31-4 iv 
pc. • 

i.e.-allay 1 J7 :t ,...6 8,76081 gg .1041810105 

— \ P1 

ce Fmk 

LO°177,4k3 

NED 
`-drIPA7i;oN GRIND 

r 

NV 

'0; 7,aol000 1131dh‘67og Waag 	G„ **".■ 	Smith %:70  9 17 Croup 

LO 	 18y310.389 

0" 	
\ 	

LOT 347 

Nfi ee Hama, .., 71;;;In c:CAZ68 

747919114' 

•••:"0`.3.7 

MIONAE 	E-28643 
CH Engineer  

Debt:T.21-2015  
L 0. BOERDINO 

License No. MO  

umber 'Job Ni,5-03-091 

DaTLI 21, 2015 IV  

	

 \5. 7...i  

'  -I

• 

 - . ;:is. cil:12reil,Lliz.:1.113.74_, 
,609r ,1-

. I 
r)

),14,ii 
	1( i / 
 / fr , 	AM  MARY gri 	i , 

1 1 
I , ' 

	- 1 \ 	4-/F 	is 

E6TATEI  APrpo. 	.  .   

	

„)  1.1' 

g' 
(.:IT\I‘TItt 

•
r.,LI: 	

...,.. 

Tod9y 

„lt.. 1 	s...-' 	
If 

1_19...-2...-vis.e,,, 

, 	

zityf„6 .Nu 

I 	 . 

ARBORR GROVE COURT 
	AWE PUBLIC)) 

11: 	
, e(07,) ----- , 	., '---1---_...., 1, ,  ) 1, 1, ,, ‘,  ...1  ,...,___ 	,  

, - ' i 1 1 14,,,c..  /A 
\ 22 	

----N 	,, 	21 	N 4 	20-- N t I 	 19 o .  I I 1 Notrecaoi2 

N/F 	1 	NF 	itobrtdoNact Horse 

i-O2
3  

I ".4 
18030112 

I WbrldeNal Horsel 
1.20540/J4 oolb le ttharawololtdobrldo Mfg  Nome 20420/1550 

oon Khorowola 	20256/36.c 
0438/1753 	I toe/ 18033012° . 	 1 # 18030101 m 	 1 

r rut 
Loeb, 18VJ30r 

xa 

Loos 

• , 	, iii 
‘\.\\-e,\4‘\\\. 

t 

r
7/81,::0

.  	
i 

I
"- 	

d:r 	
- 

.147 eN 	\\.!s t Ls\‘ \\\ \\\ 
le 8e: Al I — H—eggle 	Schindler 

20476 
Trus 	 \ \\ \\ 	CR° 

20476/1877 	20546/2845 	'20458/484 
gLoe,f 17.4300.91 .6 	18V330080 Loci 1810.30079 

m)(0) .7.41(n) 

N/F 
m,

'  ate Ma Horse 
2 0512/158' 

Locator,  1.911106,:zoct 

I 

A 

z 	
' 	

***V 

	

t 	

\ 

\*SIS* 
Fr **4*.AV*****44VVO♦:0  E 	,,,

.144*******,.1V 
too 9.'00 \ „ %.41 ."#41P."441$44,49 

OA -4* 

48 ‘* 

;,: fyt, i A 
G tRT.z0 bA

is 

76 rcE  L11,,0;  11 k -: k..? 

ZONED 0-1 NA. 

	

191,24(1.1v486ry 	\ 

/ NopagolV/41 414.41440.4)
444)4.404444,44,AVAAA3A 

." 4. 	
*.e„ tivtute_

♦  111:41176.11,046. t 
es A" 

L000to19455,812" 

	 1\ \A\ k 
ZONED 'NU 

\\ 	\ 

JudithSrewboo Rot 

909x100/ (80520061 

, P 

\ 	..„........, / 

y / 

10 	

r 

	

t 	 ‘, 

ALL UNDERGROUND UTILITIES. SHOWN OR NOT SHOW N, MO 

-  .  • . 	, . ,p. 	
■ 

N/F 
4060 F. 9006 

KARIN LEE BONN 

1 11 1A \ 
0.„018 e*kstre,Pfl 
L.2,74217- 	

■c\, ZONE, fill 	
r 

))1 	• 	kl 

9(  
op

1  / 	■ \'‘ 

\\) \ 

1_4 \ 



Oruee.Vanter 

	

' 	tans010ng Faisstor 

	

a 	9321 Miutonskrn  t Sf.teurs, MO SSW • 
(374) 849-2753 stlopitaysmseiscsiostiset 

Malan 

•Chislarked; keebrei 
Tres Stud Detention Wendy' 

' • 	October:9,2010 

• 
• The Waren tf inn I LandVOitet development Is skated loan wee Owed St Len 

00411%. In N5 Fly of Chastedeld • lecesd along the iaeh able AWIld.nlores Can 
Road, Imendatirly wend 	Pornt Diva. Tbe deveiopment anemones• 
epproxlmalek61.62 ease ellen in't a total of 9.72ens Innoalendl. In nedY 
nerd coverage of Ws ProperlyProperlys mIxturi of old field suctoseloliandiptlorolend One 
spedeavith•Dle species inalvAngintiOndfiltnst bander, Andean elm, slippery 
ant breekAehY. 	IgokOn45#1. 150 ei.eeMor9; :rho  50dereiOly  trees, ehObe and 
harbecernancles Made h1•6017; tont resPis, POP% PAP.90...91,090, bush 
honnuckiind vAd gran. Ouriegmyelle Ihnindoe, I rood-no401.04 
gritedchamploann nen trend plan, !anted on thapinerty. 

The restady;e1 the 9.72 wooded1. the saulheei Penn nicks 
demob wonlett area also Includailfule mek4411 et . e19 	end ended coledied 
of wean Ilien are see eetivreis Onne comn along lenirlitertdrelna ges ned.die 
nonfatal comer end Woe" pone' Cl In net import) mid: • 1toole 3 at,510 smile 
points H the *tonne Donna shown 	13tencrInthealloe doredro) added 
'seeded a deeelly of•103 Sniper 	Mth an noragediereeter (AM 12.0. Ihne 
were 31 MS taw Mike 0054 :71.10 urePlei P9510. 741D snobs 65717/etnbY 
the fotiovringlierceninn: elm 45%;bizekkir 10%, hickory 16%, black eharry5%, 
6% an &were, oak and dogwood 5%41E41 found no rnAlened deny majorlinc• 
or inane concerns. 	• • . 	• 	• 
Th• wooded ode CSAVy 00051190 on the eke tails0.72 saes 01423,403 mare feat 
The reoulred 71057105canopy  coverage lb be retained is 30s, Moth taw/ 507.,3i.. or. 
127,190 square feel. Tbe wooded tree cam on the Tree Steed Dalmerlon plan, •• 
acheduled Ido• retaineddenddie.05 ease or 350.853475 60  fon A cenc07 
coyerne.. Retention tide nee nihle this wooded area mead tv required tree 
many coyote". reention. . 	• 

FORESTRY CONSULTAN T  SERVICES 
0 • Pc, 

L 

• LEGEND: 

Existing tree or tree mass 

6- 

‘ 

TIMV1 \ \ 	g plio 1 1 i,_ ,. 
$`1\ V 0, 1 ,,, 	1' 

II''',1;4\i1):'''--':1 	' I 
IIM14,V, , st!  i iy . Valg., g6..i? kkt\t?»ti 	

ek 	, seep idifilifine 

\ 1 
t 	N/F 	

. \..," 

... . ,„.„674-)s.-i fit (-74ii I/ .:( I f,,;;;Vaa4 
\ , a t 4 i 1 A,F2,..•;;;? 1.._•(4.44,,t.„ Mao \ 

lAc...sokit i t'd/099 11 ttok  ot . 4128/A/0211 .,,, ,,T,\I 	• ' • . . k li 

	

..., ,/ 	/ 

•• • • -L., ...,1 Z /I, ,...--f-- ZONtelty, I 1-170r,-  - N. 

	

j" 	,/ /1___...:r,/, / I I\  L'&:;-  ---..  

, 311 (  ,... 	\ \- I 	I '7""\.■ • 	• ,

1\ .  di -,!''K.'.....)./.1^r,,,_,...2_,..,s.-.11.,...T7..7..... ....:.,..,\ 	‘.:,\\. 	v1/4.1( „II r....,......_:,,,e/J)16 \\\ ( s 	It 
bkohodifeltke,Wolf.-Zz-___::_:;•...........„ _ ..,,.. • /\ 7-'  ..:.--  -.-•...•  /..tocalorel  I8V620051 

	

.....-:„„//. 	_Nis. / 	) 	e ,..,........-..-:\ \ 	tt,,, 	, 	i 	S....\ 	-N ...,:tty----7_, \ •..r, 

,fl. 	„.....- - i 
(l\ 	f ..-3 7/43 • 

v • i-_-; 
CP 
0 	

\ Coult itry,  07,e6Tcostates 

4": 	
‘:1-0.- 	

\C: \IZ.ii 1 b 

‘.......1001.4NON IN, 

ijoyLoitatirf Mvaagioil \ 11 

ss \_,S:  2 fl,... \!\‘‘  \\I* 	‘  \, 

1 r.... /Con :unity ServiI  eon 

1 	\ 

\ 

\ ' A 
., 1 

	

.., „,,,,5,/,,,,,,;/,/,'/,,2,:ci._,......ii',..c1,-,;,,,,,,-7,-:<:;/S.---:,,,,,,2°T-Ki,„140,,,,c:,-, 	,;pc,..'„„,s,:)4.;_:::_„.---\:_‘-:s-:\;\\1:::::.\-'--)47'—.\,,.::(f:...-:',::::::----cji'k4's'T.....:c::'3;,'„;-:'fl;;,:y----,;:(r.I/fl;-:','„'/,''',/r"'":ft \\, -1-1\ \ 	

.. 
--- A------7-1- 	\--,\\.,,,,irriti,,,,,tri , _ 	

\I. . . . M.,\. .  ...,,,,,K. \ \\ 

ylton L .\ . 	11 1 1  i g  R ' ..4,06ALK , 

i

Ls  \ ' " 	- 

ri. 

1411 	

--..,........44 
"..--. ,2- 

\ 	\ 

		1 „no 	,  _. _ .., .....--l--t- -1-- r1 -717-  r;11,cifil:,•....•••• 	•••.•••-•••7- ... ''--- 	.' 

\ 	' \ 

	1- 	 
i 
\ 	

rI\ -- ._.-'5...• )  s 1 / \ I 	1 	..sAZ.--'7%..'" -- 

c 

- - iii • \ \ 7:\  \, \.\.\.\\\ \\ \ ii,\.\,::::.\,:::: I•  iiiiii:Icrilj: ..„...,  1J-Li:  //,--4:7::  It\---:'*.NI—i. \<, \ -\-":\7:+\  ■kel÷.2..N,„ N::\ .„/...,(-(:. :\..\7::-\1/47::'-': 1:11 11:::L);‘;Ikk7k1 ‘11-r-1.11)(1. -.:--\17.  ■-71 \ A17... 1/4 \...f  1 :/11-71:-.96"471:-7---Yin —

f

:/-1.\'' \'''''7:7
:

1_1_,. /,,,,\,\,\::'12::;\ 
,,,.._ 
,___t,,_„,,,,,_,-4 

	

I 	\ 	 \ ' \ \\!\'\`..•`‘ 	

: vy, 

	

k 04r: _. •- /- ,- -,\,- 	\\\\\ 	'\-\0 \\■ \\\" k 	\ 	Is- 

	

.......„- ,/,,, „--.', \-s-, ,.. 	\ 1.  -.. 	.--_.,\\01H11  k 	I 

	

•,..) / 	‘ 	'. 

	

`.-. 	/ 	— -- -._. 	-- ■ 

	

/ 	• N N k  \  	'N ♦ '-'' 	\ I 	I 	 \ \ , 
k 

\ NA.-- 

A 	"iii-44M%.,......\ 	, 9Nv . 	'k‘.,,  •I• 

\ 	1/4. 
\ 	

...... 	/ 	,..., 	..„.. 	\ 	\ 	. 	,... 	1/4 	\ 	\ 	\ , , •• , I•1 	'ilk 	

\ \ 	
i 
' 

I— .i ,, 	X, :REFS„ /t1  \As\ c- \ t 

	

N, ...  ....  ,  i 	1 	 I I I (/// 	• '77 7-7 3•( */'. 	.-.... 	\ 	\ \ \ \ \\ \ \ 	' 	\ \  11 	, i l I ; I,  I \ 	\ , 	I 	
\ \

\  

. 	, 	
/ 	I . 1 ! I / 	• ,•,, 1 lir A 

1 	i 	I 
I 	t , 1 I ---- .---_-- ......_ 

	

..- 	.„,... 	\ 	\ \ 	” 	,L. 	\ 	
\\ 	

,.... 	\ 	III t..„ 1/4 „.1 1/4  \ 1/4 	.  

	

‘ 	\ 	\ 	\ 1 

	

\ 	, 	, 	, 	k,,.....„,\00., , \ 	. 	

, , ____?; _ 7.1.„...,_61.7ks,"„r; (.......‘RE;,,A,,,,,,?/,),/.41)/•,,/,: \ ,,,,,,\\ \\ \\,, 

	

,,,,,,,..1__,.....,.._-_,,.....,,.., ....... ....... .. .-:-....!...„--„,..,..,.....i_.,54-,.. 	4 ,d \ , 1 I I 
DEOICA 

15' 
‘r-  l 

\ 	 // 
	I 	1 .-  i .  
)  	\ \ I': ,\ \ 	\ I. I i I // 

\ 	t I 	11,,,, ■ 	
___............./.,........, \'\, 

 \ 

	\ \ \\ \ • I 	 • 	I ') 1 I / / i / I 	\ 	' 
. 	

\ s \ \ A \ 	\ 	\ 	\ 

	

\ 	\ 	\ 	\ 	k , 	I I I 1 	I ( 

	

I it i li ((1 1\  a . \ \ 	\ 	,'-‘,k \ 	
1 \ 	\ - \ 	\ 

1/4. 	\ \ 

	

) 	\ \ ,,„ ...„ 	\ 1/4...., 

".........." 	-"" 	i 	I 1 	Illl• r 

) !ill////1 45/ 

	

........, - - ''''. 	.....- ••••••- 	.„...- '''' 	\ 	\ 	1 	. 	i 	k 	11 	\ 	‘ 	\ 	1 	\ ,....„\.\■ \1110 1  1 	\ 	,..0  - \ \ \ 1 1 	 \ 	\ \ \Cf. 
\ \ \ 	/1%-= - --- 	..,,---,...... 	_ - -- - I ..,  ,  ,  

// 	\ , \ • \ 	/ 	 ....''' 	 ' 	0 \ ,, 
\ 	." \ 	\ 

• / 	/
/ 	

/
J  

/ 
/ 	1 

	

40- , ....„.".....„--_,---...----,‘ II  )  I II  (  II, 	) 	\ 	\ 	1 1\tk..\  4.".......--\\\\ ;4
\

1\1  \\ \ \ .7 	''''  

\\ 	

\\I \ \ \\\\\A•\'  *y fil ses.. ...........RB77.0-9r.vx.8.''Arrrrnrc""Epems".,(«ifen-- il  . 	 II / 	/ 1 	j' .  L I 	 , 	I 	\ 

	

-.-• // /.,',..____.....-----71/4 	I 	1 I I 1 	I 	 1/4. 	.. 	1 0\ \\■■ \ I'l \\ 	‘-` 	\\ 	 //, 	f--- 

	

, 	t 	, 	11, 	\ 	 .._, 	• 	6 	‘:, 	., 

__....../ 
i 	• L.,...._ l•-- 

// / ,/ 1_,.4--- ____, / / / / 

	

/ 	/ 	.......-----\ 	1 l 	li) " 	1 

	

\ \ I 	1 k 	\ I 	\ • 	/ 	/ // / / / / ft  't C.' `- 	• 	\ 

	

\ 	\I 	'''  1 	N,  ,),;./1.1/1),1\i,n,i \i,‘2,,,\  ), \ 	
\ 

, , 	i \/, , I ,  .,,,  • /: il  I, ,(../1111 11,1 .........1 :,, ,,,,1,\ .  \ , 
\ 
\ 
\ 	

\ 
\ 
I 	

\ N. 	\ 	- . .*: 7 . ..• :7-7 ;.,=:f: ,..  • •ss ;  .  .  .  ,  ,  ,  ,  N. 
/1 1 	'  --  -----':- 	\ \ \ .-- / 

, 

\\\ ''..ta  •-•. ..--;\ \V 	/ 	

DA rato vs. Ises 	,. 	4'.1.. 
ORMAILEK.  ir / e).  /1 // ...- 

0111Onsoo,...: r /  0.051L  i 1 II Tifilif 1 

	

j... ./ 	/ 	/ 0 	.6_7 I 
/ 	// // ..v.t, 

	

— — 	
I 	I 	i 	I 	• 

.•• "' / ..•'''' 
	...." 

/ 
. 	A 	„„  

:.',-  "  
....  

		

	

/ 	\ ‘ i ,  4\th rl. 	,  \ . \ 	1

--- 

 :--      :....- =_ 4:. ..  .  .  :....1\ \\\\, \0\  \.‘• \\ s, \ • \ \ \ \ 	,\\ . . . . . . , 

	

/ 	/ 	1 I 1, 	\ \ 	\ 	1 

	

,/ 	Al 	/---"\  11'1 	\ 

	

1 	1 	\ I 	'1/4' Z 	\ 	\ 	\ 

	

I 	I 1,  1 \ ‘ \ 
	I 	\ 	

I , I 	I 	\ 	\ 

	

\ . 	k 

I 	I 	I 	I 	k 	s'...  

, 	. 	/ 	, 1/4 1/4, 	...-. 	-. 	1/4, \ \ \\ \ // . 1 1  / - f ( I L'' -Zf•---.:_......,N\\ 	• sN. 	‘ 	I. 
\ 

1/4 \,. 	._ 
.■,,... 
, ■ 

■/, ■i-....::_- ..71.4-...., 	\ \\ 1/4 1 	1 

-- ...... .',.. 	 AA t ,  t . , 
3°' 	1 t" 	\ -- Ft \ \ 	\ 	 I

/ 	ri.0/// / 
/ 	jfililiii It 

	

■ \ 	■ I I t 	
,<,,.I,,,,\,,Ii..,...,-_____,,--z.z.,, \ 	\ \ ,/,/,,/:tv,,:;;;,'//,,,///:i ii 

	

-- — —.. _ -- 	,-- , 	/ 	/ , , 1 , , , ,. ‘ \ 	, \ \ , \ \ \ 	T.:: , ...... --:..\::.\:\\\\:\\,\:\\\\\\\,\. , 	\ 	\ , 

	

, i ,Ii 	\\ 	1 	 , 	-,...  i 	 . 	c 	. 	I 	.1. \ I\  \ \ \ 1 \\ 	k 	\ 	\ 	l 1 \ \ 	 1/4 	\ 
.- - - -.......• 	 1/4 1/4, 1/4 	„...._ ,.......... 	.......„ 	11\ , VII\ 1/41/4,„.\\ 1/4 \\ 	\ 	\ 1/4\ \ .1/4.... 

/.. 	/ 	 ,.til\I 

	

I I 	 \ 	‘ \ — — .1 	 ', 
	E* k 	..,...,,,,,s\ \ A\ \ ,.....■ 

s 	-7 ,  .1-v-A, 	.-\\ \,4t;,....... 
,./ 	/ 

/
/ 
 /I 

;  l 1 1 1,  \ I, 	\ \ \ \.,_.,...---'s\ 	\ \ \,..\\'‘,\■\■■ \ \ \ \ 	\ 

/  
-- 
,--'', , 

	

/ 	/ 	1 	/ • 	. 	/ 	/ 	. 	\ . • ...'■.........., \ 

	

/  	r 

	

1 	1 ; 	t 	tt 	1\ 	\ 	. \ 	 \ 	\ `ssi  Ns \ \\\s "  1 I I 
I . 	\ 	\ 01\ \ \‘‘ I 7 ,l 
h. 	\ 

...as 	\ 	1 1 I
1 
1 h 1 ,s„,:,.\\.\\ \ 	\ 	-‘,. \ 

	

1/4 	I 1 1  \ hi \  \ \ •\\ ..1/4 	I..., 	1/4 	1/4 
t 

t 

\ 	\ 	
•,.........., 

7/ 	

(,/ -' \ ''.4 \\g 

_., ' i'  ,   • : ' -;■  '\‘‘.  
.4.-...‘,. 

7 	
I 	I 

/ 	/ .. I / 	/ / 	, 	I / 	i 	, 	\ 

	

1 	/ 	I 	1 	 i• 	1011 \ ■`-`, NN 	 / 
/ 

I 	 ',sq.., •••• 	
hti7. ''''. \\ 

\ N... 

\:/sc,'':.c..- j , k--\ :  

1 A s 	 ■k 	k -  

/ oP 	 ■ 
, 	NS -,-, \ 

sss., 	I 

\ 

Nna 	 vo.. 

C',(J 

4 

4s ic  7,1 	11 

ARIPAsStaytee:S? FARM 
561.14A9 FARMS / LANOVEI TER 
Tree Steed Delineation Tabular Summary 

• AVVITIPO of IND slim - 51.82 Cans 
• Tree canopy canton almond we -8.72 eon (423,403 in It) 
• Tres canopy cayerege remilrecf(36%) 2.02 sass (121,195 eq. ft.) 
• Tree canopy  enrage to be removed (175)1)37 Kees (72,745 eq. ft) 
• Tree osnopy  Donnie 10 be *Ann - (83%) 13:05 .00 (350.658 srl. 
• • Forest type: Banned Hardwoods and Old MIS Regeneration 
• .oemteem species: on, 004871•1 end Woe/ 
• Derny expressed 5 beet pet sore: -103 ben Demon 
• Avenge diameter 12.4' dbh 
• Apparel health : problems: Nome 

T hereby 
• • • • 

caddy  that I *wed Ns orogen" and  Pnvided dga waft•ddloosl Onion 
re 
ile

garding the Tree Stand bellesetIon detains forth. property Ident91ed "'Melee Fans 
ridverisi,C heitarfleldiMIescturt 

• '13ruce,yeauter  

Bruce \favdsr 
Conniting Fonder 
Certbled Foreeter "2801 
Corded Arbodelft MW-0460A 

 Note eolculetIons are eubjest to final' engineering design being performed. 
Final plans may show More or lees trees being etnied. However,a6 1511111111101, 

there shall be at least 8096 of the existing trees retained. 

6 

Ii 

Prepared For  

AIR.1:301q. HOLDINGS II, 
5011 New Baumgartner Road 
St. Louis, Missouri 631,29

Phone:  314-451-6111 

'*,itS ,,Ili 	- 
0 ,...,, .111 

ii(0 it -,-_-. qm if 
Ill ,)1»1,2-.,--, mil 
quiloilipati i/ 	I /,11,,1thilf/// 	II, 
ii illilifilelll1 /1 1 l' 44/11/ /11,/, , 	I 	ii 
nrithi//(( 	1 1 	ID 
itilto , 	, \ w / , H root - \  
it n, II i 
'Nils; iv 	\ \ 1 V Nti ri 	

\ \g„,1 

401\0 1 r \ \ cr 
‘ 1 1 11 1 1 \  1 1  (  010 11 \) N‘ 

11 E11110  ■ 1 t\ IV i t ( :\ k 
HP), f 	•\ 	. \ /A 1 1 / 	\ \ \ 

//I 	\ 1 \ 
....., 	\ 

/ / \ 	' 	\ \ 
\ 	'' 

 

1_ 	\ \ ' 
/ 	.1 \ L\ tk 

— 1--- ‘,  nik,,,,  • 
.,...,..st 

15' WOE Po -,0(LWAT 
DEDICATED 5116 TO MQ001.  l A 

'. 	i 	--\,, 
,11 1 	,\,-\,  

-. 	I , y ) \ , 	,,s7 
e , 	,. 

\■ 

/ (1  \ . 	it. )  •'4 
---•„..,-,....=, --... 

\ \-..,.. 

— --, ......— s),..  ,  1/4 
■ _ \ ) 	. 

---' 	\ \V\ 
---- 	t 	$ 

„ r \ 	‘ \ 
.Y 1- 	\1\ 

3 	1 	k\ 
l \\1'00 

,k) 

l 

" . 	, , 	 t 	- 	• 	/ 	/ / 
\ \ 	\  \..N. . ".s.  k \ \ \ kN 	.  \\\A  • 1/4 	 .\\\ ,\\\ \ , • , 

• \ \ 	■■ \ \\I1 \  \\ 

I 	: 	• 	/ 	I 	, 	/ 	/ 

	

J/... 	.  ,-• r 	„../ 	)/ - -. 	1 	
1 
	 , f, / i / 	i 	I 	\ 

	

i f/  , 	/*/ 	I 	' 	
\ 	. ‘ 	•..s.‘,.....-,.... ,\ \\\\\\ \ .k. 	\ 	• - 

• ', ,„ 	• 	• 	 I. ri.. -  1 / il  / 	 / 	 \ r' 	/ 	/ 	 I 	 / 

	

/ 	/ 	/ 	k •I'''''  \ 	i 
	

/ 	. 4 / 	/ 	' / / / i / 	/ 	J 	 I 	
,... „....,......\\\ moo\ \ 	N. 
'\ 	-., \\ \ ,11 \ 1 0  \ 1 \ \ 	\ / 	/ 	. 	

/ 

//, //( ' \ 	1 	ir i ( . 1 ( / / /I. / . /11 /

( 

/ / 

/ 

/ / e/-----------x-16.-
1/

‘ 

	

/ 	/ 	 .. 1 	1 \ 1 \ III \  \ I‘ 	I 

	

t 

	\\ 

/ 	
■ 	, , 	, .,,i 	, 	

,, l 	
,

1 	
, 

/ ' 	I / I ; I 1 Illi l ' 	‘ 	I 

ii i ‘ ,  r 	..../ I il 	1 (-.' 	„..-- ---, 	
.....- - - -. 7" 	 ' -,/////,/1/1//1 I ;  A \ t 	\ J 	 I 	 ,I 	I 	I 	I 	/* / / 	/ 	l • I 	.' , / 

I 	1
I 	le 	

)  1 1 . i r 	 __--------.,,,,,,,/// 1 k 	\ 	/ 

	

11 	
It 	

,I 
	 ge 

......_ --.....-- ...• ..,. / •  I 	1 	1 	I. 	I 	1 	i 	I 	I 	I ) 	 i 	1 	i 	/ 	_.-- 	.... 

	

-- 	11) 

	

1 	1 	7 	 i 	e 	
,.- 	.....- 	• 	- ....' 

	

I 	I, ∎ 	
..- - 

	

/ 	■ 	. 	II 	I. 1 ( ( ', c" II 2 /7 lit % 	./.1. /I/ / 	1 / 
t 	 I 	/... I 	• - '-'; \ 

	

./•• 	I 	S12122 .o 	I 	\ 	1 	, 
' 

- --- ....,:_-;..  a-. 

	

j 	-  -  -  -  -  -  -4; z -  s 
, 	Lor a  1 t'\ 	cc 7 " 	s 

	

\ 	1 	
r...11.1ARY SCHA 

	

../ 	1 . 
to 	i 	

EZTATE es.s 

5. A I - 	
I I 	II 	1 \ 1// 

• .. Q..tt 
( 1\ \ 	C 	

i 
\'‘ 

I 	I 	••1 	•••• 
)7 4 1...ro\TI4FS )11<i90,1 

r 
I 

t, 	• • • 	ghtftras te  \ • • 	I 
ZONED 

/ 	1 i 	/ 

	

) 	/ / I 	• 	/ 	• 
//1Y- 

LIT r 	r 

4 

rELOa 

r 

.  ii .- i 

 

..J ..• •.-..- iiV.FI'-- -  IIW-..1. 	7.01,,,L. . 

•''' 	'4. 	••• I I I  .... ........„.......c../..0.p .,,.., 	"----'-''.-fl;irWA.. 	, 

r 1/4--- y•-• 	-.4- --2:--  -,  \.:.-.  '›..-----::::‘,::-:-:- 216441"! -  / ,!,, 11 	":".;;;-----. 	.-. 
'''-.5.^:/., .._ ... \ ,.. ...,7.,:-::•-.1'..-:.'0V-,1-- 

. 	 ....... 	..--,:t.-.:-. 

_ 	 Tr (7/ 
. 	....,...C:::. 	---, • 	

- - - iltok 
,..„ 	--. 	t_.. , I / 1 \\

1  
j 

ri ll i 144,4 
v 	---k .  2 	N ‘ 	20 • 1 	to / I Rohbow6 

	

meHtf.N1,0,,,Alcp;1412cr Ip !. .00N  H. 	,..t.,, a 22 	 1 	N/F 	 20007 65 

20256/3882 Loaf 18M% 	
20340 34 

Leaf 18V330,23 	
Loaf 18 330101 

	

:: ).,....:::;;;.",:-;-..::....._//.---. -:: ...1/::::"..:".:::\v1/4)\ :\ lt: ::,.... .C\ 	
/1 

1 i'•'#_, 	..(---,.," ----;-:- ----:._ 	t` .\`- 0\\\\ts\.\\\ \ — 

,......;..0-..7,,.- .--!....3-11 i2;/"/3 :7";:.:\\L4..s.') \,\0/\,\\\  ( ,..)   \ :,.1 

,,, 

N/F 
01:

11{e/  %  ;P% 
N

7:::: 1 l:'  e; .  f 7 ''-' ; ,,i. \fil\\\)\■\\■\li;\,\„ 
1\\1.\\\N\\\ \\ 

GR  
/r 	• 	' 	

.„ , 	.... 

r5mte.vatone Shot El rAi 	0044 & Terri 	 Jeffstioyint 114;1..01:9 
Haggle 

Lo224/;:agL, Loo/ 	 ...1 

BAP-10 Sample Point 

Sample Point Inventory and Evaluation 

vet 

- 

MOM 		
all111111111.1 

G9302.MINIMM•MilnalillaYAMM=IMMIMMI. 

MESMININIMLSZNINEffi l 1111111111111411111111 
22710211MMILSIMENEZMIIMAZI 1 

EXAMMIIMIE;MNIIICOMMV fdnt 2 ollow ntorrn dem 9' 

	 111111111•10161■1 
L,471.0•Ealumaza:■N 

to 

15 
18 

19 
.14 

3o 
91 

a 

Pa 

EIAMIIIMI111111115111111•1 
1:117WM11111111111FAIIIIIINZINNIS I 

Fair 	BA Point 3  

Tree Stand Delineation 

HALL + ASSOCIATES, 
LAND PLANNING 

ill LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE 

424 8OUTH cLAy AVENUE, ST. LOUIS,, MO 63122 314.968.5577 
. 	•  

P101.1 WNW 	 Sheet Number: 

1S014 	1 OF 1 

Rubbery 
10-11-15, 2-144, 2-25.14, 5 5,14, 05-4-74, 5-5714, 4-22-14 

4-25-14, 4790-15, 6-50,45 

lack Cherry 

DWI*: I cooled Mc 
JAN 

bete: 
10-10-15 

Arbors at lAtiimas Farm  

o 5o 100 	200 	SOO 

4111.0:6111:"" 

SCALE: 1" = 100' 

LOT 37 
N/F 

Eugene & 0/Ida Mork 
15452/2730 

LOCO/Off I871340189 

General Notes: 

1, Base InformatIon t 	outboundary and topographic eurvey eiX1 air photo by Sterling 
Engineering 4 Survegors, Job No. 1S-0 .255, dated 6-25-2015. 

2. 9100c1  Plaint 	FlooOpleln and FloodWay areas are pre, ent at the rear portion 
(.outhern wid) of the subject site, toe FIRM Flood htumXid.0 pate 

Map, map number 2415460145 K, with • Pective date of February 4, 
2015. . 

5. Address of Subject Propertyt11505 Wild Horse Creek PAW 

4, Locator Numbers 15V950055 



Arbors at Wilmas Farm Zoning Narrative Sta 

r c‘,1::11/E1) 
City of Chesterfield 

MAY 1 lfit5  CU) 

ORStment of Public Services 

a. General Description of the Proposal: 

The employee owners of McBride & Son Homes are proud to have the opportunity to 
unveil their newest project to the City of Chesterfield. McBride is proposing to develop 
50.5 acres of property along Wild Horse Creek Road and is requesting an E-1AC PUD 
zoning in order to permit the development. The project consists of 47 large, wooded 
residential home sites on 50.5 acres which is less than one house per acre density. 
Greenspace, pocket parks and recreational amenities are dispersed throughout the 
development. McBride will be constructing its luxury home product line and will feature 
many upgraded architectural features that were added specifically for this project. 
McBride researched the densities, site development characteristics and architectural 
elements of the homes in surrounding subdivisions in order to create a project that is 
compatible with the surrounding communities. In addition, McBride has made every 
effort to preserve the many existing natural resources located on the site. The project 
meets and exceeds all of the relevant PUD requirements. 

b. List of requested uses: 

McBride is requesting single family detached residential use for the entire site. The site 
will also contain common ground (including common ground amenities) and public 
streets which will be designed and constructed in accordance with the City's guidelines 
for residential construction. 

c. Proposed Land Uses and development standards, density and height limitations, 
yard requirements (compatible with nearby uses and Comprehensive Plan): 

McBride is requesting a single family detached residential use for the site. The 
development standards are noted throughout this application and identified on the plan. 
The proposed density is less than one-acre. The plan includes 47 lots on 50.5 acres. 

The maximum building height will be fifty feet which is consistent with the E-1AC 
district. 

The minimum front yard setback will be 25 feet. The minimum rear yard setback will be 
25 feet and the minimum side yard setback will be 8 feet with a minimum of 20 feet 
between homes. 

d. List of Permitted uses for each tract: 

McBride is requesting single family detached residential use for the entire site. 

e. Exceptions or variations from the requirement of the Zoning Ordinance: 

101348.3 



Pursuant to the City's Zoning Code, the purpose of the PUD is to encourage flexibility to 
the density requirements and development standards of the zoning ordinance. The lots 
will be smaller than one-acre in size however all of the lots will exceed 22,000 square 
feet which is consistent with the surrounding communities. The lot sizes allow for the 
inclusion of more common ground and amenities within the development. The plan 
includes front and side yard setbacks which are smaller than the minimum setbacks 
identified in the E-1AC district. These setbacks create more interspersed recreational 
opportunities within the project. 

f Table Showing Number of Acres in the proposed development and each 
proposed land use including public facilities: 

The site contains 50.5 acres and will be entirely devoted to residential use. The public 
streets will consist of 4.68 acres. 

g. Proposed dedication or reservation of land for public use, including streets and 
easements. 

The project includes 4.68 acres of public streets and McBride will establish all of the 
necessary utility easements. 

h. Plans for parking, loading, access ways, and means of protecting adjacent areas 
from lighting and other potential, adverse effects. 

The site design features two cul-de-sacs and two eyebrows. All homes will include a 
standard three-car side-entry garage. This feature is not typically included as standard 
within this product line. McBride decided to include this option as standard based upon 
its research of existing architectural elements within some nearby communities. 

L Phases for Construction: 

McBride anticipates that the entire site will be developed in one phase. 

j. Landscaping and Tree Preservation: 

McBride is proposing to preserve 83% of the existing woodland tree canopy which is 
nearly 50% more than the City's 30% tree preservation requirement. The preservation of 
these trees is an important characteristic of the overall community and is also identified 
as a key design feature for the PUD in the City's Zoning Code. 

In addition to the tree preservation, McBride will provide extensive landscaping 
throughout the community. McBride is proposing enhanced landscape buffers around the 
perimeter of the project. This buffer is 30' wide along the eastern and western portions 
of the site and will include a walking trail providing pedestrian connectivity to the 
sidewalks and interior pocket parks and greenways. The buffer area is 50' in width along 
the northern property line with a 7.82 acre greenspace preservation area along the 

101348.3 	 2 



southern boundary of the site both of which exceeds the City's standards. The northern 
buffer will be heavily landscaped along Wildhorse Creek Road. All of the foregoing 
buffer areas are located on common ground and not located within any lots. 

k. Character of and rationale for the PUD: 

The City's zoning code states that the purpose of the PUD District is: to encourage 
flexibility to the density requirements and development standards of the zoning ordinance 
that will result in exceptional design, character, and quality of new development; to 
promote the most appropriate use of land; to facilitate the provision of streets and 
utilities; and to preserve the natural and scenic features and open space. 

McBride had three primary considerations when it designed the project. First, McBride 
wanted the project to compliment the existing communities in the area. After careful 
study of the surrounding area, McBride determined that one-acre density was the most 
appropriate for the site. While the one-acre density does not yield as many homes, it is 
important to preserve this one-acre density in this area. The City's Zoning Code 
identifies compatibility with surrounding land uses and the Comprehensive Plan as a 
"general consideration" for the KID. The proposed E-1AC PUD zoning is consistent 
with the communities in the vicinity of the project. The nearby Wildhorse Community is 
zoned R-1 PEU which is the same density and the same type of zoning as the subject 
project. The adjacent Arbors at Wildhorse Creek is zoned E-1 PUD with the same 
density and similar lot sizes and setbacks. The City's Comprehensive Plan identifies this 
area as "Residential Single Family (Attached/Detached)" use which is entirely consistent 
with the project. 

Second, the site contains many natural features and McBride sought to preserve many of 
these features. These natural features will also enhance the desirability of the location 
which contributes to the sustainability of the community. The environmental benefits of 
preserving these natural resources are numerous. The natural vegetation will cleanse and 
filter storm water and recharge the groundwater. In addition to the many environmental 
benefits, these features serve to provide residents with an identity to their community 
which further promotes sustainability. The preservation of these natural features achieves 
another design feature of the PUD identified in the City's Zoning Code. 

Finally, McBride wanted to design a community worthy of its most luxurious product 
line. McBride will be offering homes with many upgraded architectural features. 
McBride designed many unique amenities and features (described below) which help to 
create a country estate-inspired home site for McBride's future residents. These features 
and amenities are also consistent with the City's Zoning Code which identifies the 
creation of open space through passive recreation areas as a design feature for the PUD. 

The PUD is necessary in order to allow for flexibility in some of the design standards in 
the E-1AC zoning category while preserving many of the natural resources on the site. 
Most notably, the lots sizes will be less than one-acre however the lot sizes will all 
exceed 22,000 square feet which is greater than one-half acre. The overall density of the 

101348,3 	 3 



site is actually less than one-acre density because the project consists of only 47 lots on 
50.5 acres. 

Based on the site plan, McBride anticipates that nearly twenty-five percent of the site will 
be left in its natural state. These natural areas will not be graded and natural slopes and 
vegetation will remain. The PUD section of the City's Zoning Code states that 
maintaining existing topography, soils and vegetation is a design feature for the PUD. 

The design and construction of homes with an architectural vernacular that exceeds the 
typical building designs is also noted as a design feature in the PUD section of the City's 
Zoning Code. This design feature is achieved by offering McBride's most luxurious 
housing product on this site. McBride added important standard architectural features 
such as three-car side-entry garages and architectural shingles. In addition to the brick 
and stone elements on many of the elevations, McBride will be utilizing Hardie board 
siding which is a low maintenance and more sustainable alternative to other forms of 
siding. 

The City's Zoning Code identifies environmentally conscious building techniques as a 
design feature of the PUD. McBride is committed to this concept as well. McBride is 
proposing to offer several sustainable and environmentally conscious options in its 
homes, including, Hardie board siding, energy efficient appliances, upgraded ceiling 
insulation, low-e windows, low-flow toilets, low-flow faucets and high efficiency HVAC 
systems. McBride is also utilizing many water quality features as part of the site design. 

1. Description of Amenities 

McBride is proposing several areas of common ground interspersed throughout the 
development. The "Recreation Area" in the middle of the site will likely have some type 
of covered picnic area and horseshoe pits to create a community gathering area for 
residents. The "Playground Area" adjacent to Lot 33 will contain children's playground 
equipment. McBride included a sports field on part of the large common ground area 
encompassing the entire southern boundary of the site. McBride designed each amenity 
so that it was dispersed throughout the development such that the parks and greenspace 
can be seen and easily accessed from every lot within the subdivision. All of the 
common areas, amenities and landscaped buffers will be maintained by the community 
association. Enhanced landscaping, deeper buffers and planting along right-of-way are 
all identified as design features of the PUD in the City's Zoning Code which is achieved 
by the proposed plan. 

All of these recreational areas are connected with a trail and the trail will connect in 
various locations to the site's internal sidewalks. These trails will create 
interconnectivity throughout the site to all recreational areas and to Deep Forest Drive 
and Wildhorse via the new sidewalks. The interconnected trails will allow every future 
owner to easily walk to each recreational area and either Deep Forest or Wildhorse from 
every lot and/or recreational area within the project. 

101348.3 	 4 



McBride will construct two full access entrances avoiding the need for a secondary 
emergency access entrance. The 50' landscape buffer area along Wildhorse Creek Road 
will create an impressive sense of arrival to the community, including an upscale lighted 
monument sign. This entrance will compliment the other community entrances in this 
area. 

The site currently contains mature trees. McBride is proposing to preserve 83% of the 
existing trees (well in excess of the 30% preservation requirement). 

in. Lands to be dedicated for public use, if any: 

The project includes 4.68 acres of public streets and all of the necessary utility easements. 
Additionally, McBride is planning on a 15' wide road dedication along Wildhorse. 

n. Phasing: 

McBride anticipates that the entire site will be developed in one phase. 

o. Phasing and time schedule for Public Facilities: 

McBride anticipates that the entire site will be developed in one phase. 

101348.3 	 5 



BILL NO. 	 	 ORDINANCE NO. 	  

AN ORDINANCE REPEALING CITY OF CHESTERFIELD ORDINANCE NUMBER 2848 
PROVIDING FOR THE APPROVAL OF A RECORD PLAT AND ESCROW AGREEMENTS FOR 
THE ARBORS AT KEHRS MILL PLAT 1, A 27.055 ACRE TRACT OF LAND ZONED "PUD" 
PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT LOCATED NORTH OF THE INTERSECTION OF 
STRECKER ROAD AND CHURCH ROAD. 

WHEREAS, The Sterling Company, on behalf of Arbors at Kehrs Mill, LLC., has submitted for 
review and approval a Record Plat for the Arbors at Kehrs Mill Plat 1; and, 

WHEREAS, the purpose of said Record Plat is to subdivide a 27.055 acre tract of land into 
twenty-six (26) residential lots; and, 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission having reviewed the same and has recommended 
approval thereof; and, 

WHEREAS, the Department of Public Services has reviewed the Record Plat in accordance 
with the Unified Development Code of the City of Chesterfield and has found it to be in compliance 
with all applicable ordinances and has forwarded said Record Plat to the City Council; and, 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Chesterfield having considered the request, voted 
to approve said Record Plat. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
CHESTERFIED, ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. The Record Plat for the Arbors at Kehrs Mill Plat 1, which is made part hereof and 
attached hereto as "Exhibit 1" and Escrow Agreements, is hereby approved; provided, however, 
that nothing in this ordinance shall be construed or interpreted as an acceptance of the public 
utilities or public easement which are dedicated on the Record Plat. The owner is directed to 
record the plat with the St. Louis County Recorder of Deeds Office. 

Section 2. The Mayor and City Clerk are authorized and directed to evidence the approval of 
the said Record Plat by affixing their signatures and the official seal of the City of Chesterfield as 
required on the said document. 

Section 3. The Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and 
approval. 

Passed and approved this 	 day of 	 , 2015. 

MAYOR 
ATTEST: 

CITY CLERK 



LOCATION MAP Arbors a Keks - Plat 1 
TR4CTOPLAVOREINOZOT/ 	.11ARYS/M177707ELOTS/M/7 

.4SRECORDEDINPLAT 800A-355 P,OES.WAND+014 Orli/EST WIZ" COON77'4//SSOCIR/RECORD.5:- 
LIZVGAVRTLYIN (ZS 51/R127/2.! TOHNSII/P45NORTH-R4AVE3E4STAND TOWNSMPISIVORTII- ILINCE E.457: 

CIS SORPEY886.4 ND FRAC770VAL SEC770N /eV 729/VIVS11/P.7J NOR77/ RAV6TJEAST 
C/77'0F OVESTERE/ELL1 57 LOUSCO&NTK Ilf/SSOL/Rt 

GRAPHIC SCALE 
LEGEND 

Le

• 	

' os.,"'"  71= 'Ng:  rl̀ ••■• N I'  o" 	LN• "Nor • 

• F,N,...771=0..." 10.•••=c=•DNOTAr"":•- ■ •."., 1652.A.:21:44±177 7:2177Mr°7-FiREPar.oFiSET-birer-I.,:za 

CO EDF. Vt.. 
ift:4:r:"Mran%:. VZ,fs 

r aw., 	 711 	7'7 tr'ITLEI 

5110•91,0=4 PERM 0.6.101 77. P.C. AI MI6 16L 1101.06.6 ASS00.610. 716 

ME CONSERVAIIN ARMS AS 010. NERELN 9.11 pROXIBP ILE .717160. EXCEPT AS NEELY., By 	LoS p167 CORES Or 

MC CC.. O.. 60.. MS ME. 604 C.260 IRE. 70 ARK.. 1616 06601.16. ASSECAM. ITS 
WC... APO A61.0 LOOM .1.711 	RICC.0, NIL --- 	0, 	  201 AS 0 

&Tar 	fon: 

5610.69. IS .B.ECT 	COVEN.S. 0010111.5 ANO RESINCIONS RECORMO 	D. ARBORS AT IC061 ILILL CECLARAM. 
006.110 	 664.11.. 7.1.0 ON TIE 	17. OF 	 7 	.1. NO. 	  
TAX SI. LOPIS 00..•.CORCE. 

aTORLREVELOR2011 

A DWI Or 	PLAI 017 .R.. 66114 RIR.. MOLUOCRIO Or 71. 11705 .I.SIDIONDLI IWO RIMAILLEXT OP .1.1.1. 6 17.6 
.617671.5 Of P.A. PLACE' AS RECOPOCO 0.0 	toroa mac sm or INC Sr. LOUIS COME FE.R. 

'. 	2020... 

0.1.0 U. XS SAC. 7,46 PLAT INE 1.03, MMUS.) 

17.1.7607 MIR. THAI XAL 1.51. 6-6.11,62 .16.6 6106 PLAT AS Of 6,010 0.62 MRCLORONG OP MS PLAL 

P.L9221.1 
MEP&  Immo. 7 

Jill F NOTES FOR OVERAI I DEW) OPMFNT (PI ATS 1 ANT) 71 

1 .6 ../....1110.7 MEMO 

P A.O9TOPrAS "At 	 Zalo'"ZITL' 

PROJECT / SITE BENCHMARK: 

BM. OP MI 0171PRIrL"Or WIALTILI 

nor-Ir.14%.745%.""attegre.gY=4 	,"".RIVEFsTe. 

`77,:i1-72-7,277-ZAST4rra-M 
R:t.".1f r.":42::torrolo. vnrcrIft:g 

PONT .NE AND DES 
CITY CERTIFICATE: 

	

''717:1•7 	:11"C TOZ :07 'T '71.0%7' 
	 ON E 	Cf 	  20 	A. 
1.1.7 /0111.0. II1E RECORD. Or MS RECO. 	WIN 11. LITICE Cf 

NOL6 0.710 .070001 4,  CMOS 

RECEIVED 

EEC Of MEM. ) 
PEA 

COLN. Cf St LOUIS 

	

.  206 616. LC APPEARED 	  

	

OF 	
 11.1.0.. KOMI. 

MN MINING 
ASSCOAN. ANO 	St,P1Z11:1% orLIND 	DI 0.61,  Of S. 6.0.. NO S. 	  INNAS. LIM 

NV CORPSE. ERP.S. 	  

■AtItlEttr...4ff:111.?-4=2 ITEVEZ=1.1=17 
1:24=C" "wco'Roco'""Aro4 LA:VOX' ' I's 411'""or '“""" " 

SURVEYOR'S CERRFICATE  

RiNtWrm-
"'"Kfoc"r'suaroro,' 

PROPME 
c.:Noe's ME MIX I. 11162117Tr'94. r"'' 	"'AN% 

70.110. 61.6., ARC NO. NOS.. 6.06. 

rjaantr 11=1.74.2rKIVEM":fArriar.11 

SI IRVEYOR'S NOTES 

=NE Of 51 bUILI ) 

KAN 11/61 Ae.f 

NOTARE PuBEC 
PARTIAI RELEASE OF OFFO OF 1RIIST:  

P1161.5. 	  
PAYE 	 Cf ME ST. LOJS COLO. KC.. CO.. PO 	NUS. .1. 1060 61.6 REAL IEEE TO .011. 1,1I 
PA.. Off.. PM OR NOE.. 	OCIO .7066, APO 47 	 DEO Of IIPUST I. NOTE . ■676 .3 OP 

L6,6R A., 	 om, 	 No. 	. ALE 
Ly CARE MELL 66.6. P.7 Lf 	AT R0•77 	- 	1 A. 	ROAM 66. AND out.. 

UNTO I. PKENT OEM. 167 Or . 1.6 6116 IN S. 00. Or TRUST MSC.. 70 170 XL COMIOX MY. OR L... LAPO 
60.. MS PLAY ND ILL EMES. PLR. OR PPM. OP 	CA77010.0 LEI MS PLA7 

TO NT AN0,10 	SAAIL •1717 ALL APPLIEMAPASS ncHro 50.66 6. OMR /60 DODD.. 	 INC INCL... Of SAO 

74 MM. 01.1.00 711E 176.9.0 P. MOM 11.5E PRES.. 767 	OA• OF 	  2010 E6"17,7711-ZaMET,W4r,VET: 
-47,a4,E71,17•I'ai 



Arbors Kehrs - Plat1  POS. 

GRAPHIC SCALE 

es. 

NO WIDE LANOSAPE BUFFER AREA 

TOCIT 	 I 

112. 7  ACRES' 

FUTrUOff MYMCADZIENT 
bri 

COMMON OPEN 

MONUMENT NOTE' 14 

"142,-71'14.7 

a 

' 

SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATION  
-`, `` 1 1 	w 	`I ` -• 

cg:T.N.a1NricE 

BE uNOSCAPE BUFFER Or, 

ssras. w 

— — 

CC 

2105 1 54 

S1EEr 

2 



RECEIVED 
City of Chesterfield 

MAR I 2015 
SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT CONSTRUCTION DEPOS  AGREEMENT 

Department of Public Services 

THIS CONSTRUCTION DEPOSIT AGREEMENT made and entered into by 

Arbors at Kehrs MIII, !IC 	
herein called DEVELOPER, 

Midwest Bank Centre 	
	, herein called ESCROW 

HOLDER (strike through this party if cash deposited with City), and the City of Chesterfield, 

Missouri, herein called CITY. 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, the DEVELOPER has submitted plans, information and data to the CITY 

for the creation and development of a subdivision to be known as 

The Arbors at Kehrs Mill (Plat 1) 	
in accordance with 

Ordinance No. 	, the governing ordinance for the subdivision, and the Subdivision 

Regulations of the City of Chesterfield, and has requested approval of same; and • 

WHEREAS, the subdivision plans have been approved and the CITY has reasonably 

estimated and determined that the cost of construction, installation and completion of said 

improvements, all in accordance with the provisions of said governing ordinance and 

Subdivision 	Regulations, 	as 	amended, 	will 	be 	in 	the 	sum 	of 

One million three hundred seventy thousand six hundred sixty-five dollars & sixty-six cent 
DOLLARS 

1,370M65.66 
	 ), lawful money of the United States of America; and 

WHEREAS, the DEVELOPER is seeking approval from the CITY of the record plat of 

the aforesaid subdivision as the same is provided in said governing ordinance and Subdivision 

Regulations; and 

WHEREAS, the Subdivision Regulations provide inter alias that the commencement of 

said subdivision may be approved by the CITY upon the DEVELOPER submitting satisfactory 

construction and maintenance deposit agreements guaranteeing the construction and maintenance 



of the subdivision improvements in accordance with the approved plans, said governing 

ordinance and Subdivision Regulations. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the covenants, promises and agreement herein 

provided; 

IT IS HEREBY MUTUALLY AGREED: 

1. 	That • the DEVELOPER has established a CONSTRUCTION DEPOSIT in the 

amount of  gi;4414ndafns luingigyssungntgousand six hundred 
, DOLLARS 

($ 
1,370,665.66 

) lawful money of the United States of America by: (check one) 

❑ Depositing cash with the City. 

Submitting a Letter of Credit in the form required by the CITY and issued 

by the ESCROW HOLDER. 

❑ Submitting a 	 (type of readily 

negotiable instrument acceptable to the CITY) endorsed to the City and 

issued by the ESCROW HOLDER. 

Said deposit guarantees the construction, installation and completion of the required subdivision 

The Arbors at Kehrs MIII (Plat 1) 
improvements in 	  Subdivision, all in accordance 

with the approved plans, the governing ordinance for the subdivision and the Subdivision 

Regulations of the City of Chesterfield, which are by reference made a part hereof, and in 

accordance with all ordinances of the CITY regulating same. A cost estimate thereof is attached 

hereto as "Exhibit A". 

2. That the CONSTRUCTION DEPOSIT will be held in escrow by the CITY or the 

ESCROW HOLDER, as _applicable, until such time as releases are authorized by the Planning 

and Development Services Division. The CONSTRUCTION DEPOSIT may be subject to 

special audit of the CITY from time to time. 



3. • That the CONSTRUCTION DEPOSIT guarantees the construction, installation 

and completion of the improvements in the aforesaid subdivision in accordance with the plans 

and specifications for the said subdivision which have been filed with the CITY, which are made 

a part hereof by reference as if set forth herein word for word. 

4. Pursuant to Revised Statutes of Missouri, 89.410, the amounts set out on Exhibit 

"A" are identified by separate line item and are subject to release of ninety five percent (95%) of 

said estimated costs within thirty (30) days of the completion of said specific component of work 

by DEVELOPER. The Developer shall notify CITY in writing when they consider the specific 

component ready for release of funds. Accordingly, the CITY may not allow for the reallocation 

of escrowed funds from one line item to another, without specific written agreement between the 

DEVELOPER and CITY indicating what specific component or components are being modified. 

ESCROW HOLDER shall not modify or expend funds from other than the identified line item 

component without written approval from CITY. Completion is when the particular item has had 

all documentation and certification filed in neomplete and acceptable form and the specific items 

have been inspected and all identified deficiencies have been corrected and the work has been 

approved by the City. 

5. That in the event the CITY should determine that the ESCROW SUM or any line 

item thereon as herein provided, is insufficient to complete the said Subdivision Improvements, 

or the specific line item, the CITY will so notify the DEVELOPER who shall deposit within 

thirty (30) days of said notice with the ESCROW HOLDER that additional sum of lawful money 

of the United States of America that will be required to complete the said specific component of 

the improvement and said additional sum will be subject to the terms of this Escrow Agreement. 

Failure to provide said sum shall cause for immediate cessation of all work on said subdivision 

until the additional amount is paid. 



6. That the DEVELOPER guarantees that all required utilities and improvements 

will be installed, constructed and completed within two (2) years from the date of the approval of 

the said Subdivision Plat and the DEVELOPER shall certify the completion of all said 

improvements, along with the filing of all documentation and certification, all as provided in the 

governing ordinance for this subdivision and the Subdivision Regulations of the CITY. 

7. That the ESCROW HOLDER, in accordance with paragraph 4 above, shall only 

release or disburse the ESCROW SUM, or portion thereof, upon receipt and in the amount set 

forth in a written authorization from the Planning and Development Services Division addressed 

to the ESCROW HOLDER, which authorization may be for the payment of labor and materials 

used in the construction, installation and completion of the said improvements, as the work 

progresses, as provided in the Subdivision Regulations or governing ordinance for this 

subdivision. 

8. That in the event the • DEVELOPER shall abandon the subdivision or fail to 

complete the subdivision improvements within two (2) years, from the date of the CITY'S 

approval of the said subdivision plat or subsequent extension period granted to this DEPOSIT 

AGREEMENT, whichever shall first occur, the CITY shall present to the ESCROW HOLDER a 

certified statement from the City Engineer estimating the cost for the completion of the 

subdivision improvements and require the ESCROW HOLDER to immediately perform on this 

agreement for completion of the specific components of the project or disburse said funds 

identified by the City Engineer's estimates directly to the CITY. The CITY may complete, or 

have completed by outside resources, the said improvements. The ESCROW HOLDER having 

disbursed the escrow sums therefore as ordered and directed by the CITY, and upon such 

disbursement shall be relieved of all liability under the terms of this agreement. 



9. That in the event of any legal actions taken by the CITY against DEVELOPER or 

ESCROW HOLDER to enforce the provision of this agreement, the parties agree to pay a 

reasonable attorney's fee in addition to any other sums due under this agreement 

10. That there shall be no assignment by DEVELOPER or ESCROW HOLDER 

under the terms of this agreement without written approval of the CITY. 

11. That if DEVELOPER is unable to meet its obligation hereunder or to provide 

additional sums to complete the Subdivision improvements as may be determined by the CITY 

or if the DEVELOPER or ESCROW HOLDER shall go into receivership or file for bankruptcy 

protection, then in any .such event the CITY may declare the DEVELOPER or ESCROW 

HOLDER (as the case may be) in default and may immediately order the payment of all 

remaining sums held by ESCROW HOLDER to be paid to the CITY without further legal 

process, to be used to complete the subdivision improvements as set out under the terms hereof. 

12. That the ESCROW HOLDER will immediately inform the City of any changes of 

address for ESCROW HOLDER or DEVELOPER (known to ESCROW HOLDER) during the 

period of this Agreement. Failure to do so shall result in a breach of this. Agreement and the 

CITY may declare the DEVELOPER or ESCROW HOLDER (as the case may be) in default and 

may immediately order the payment of all remaining sums held by ESCROW HOLDER to be 

paid to the CITY without further legal process, to be used to complete the subdivision 

improvements as set out under the terms hereof. 

13. That no forbearance on the part of the CITY in enforcing any of its rights under 

this agreement, nor any extension thereof by CITY, shall constitute a waiver of any terms of this 

Agreement or a forfeiture of any such rights. 

14. That the CITY hereby accepts this agreement as a satisfactory ESCROW 

AGREEMENT under the provisions and requirements of the governing ordinance for this 



Type Name: Al Hicks 
Title: Vice-President of JHB Properties, Inc.; 

a memoer 

BY: 

St. Louis, MO 63129 

ATTEST: (SEAL) ESCROW HOLDER: Midwest Bank Centre 

Type Name: 	Al R. 
Title: Ink pe.viisn+ 

BY: 

'subdivision and any amendments or revisions thereto and the Subdivision Regulations of the 

CITY. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have hereunto set their hands and 

seals the 	day of 	 , 20 

ATTEST: (SEAL) Arbors at Kehirs DEVELOPER: 	 Mi LLC 

Type Name: Joh W a, Jr 

Title: President of 	operties, Inc.; a member 

Firm Address: 
5091 New Baumgartner Road 

Finn Address: 
2191 Lemay Ferry Road 

St. Louis, MO 63125 

CITY OF CHESTERFIELD, MISSOURI 

BY 	  
Planning and Development Services Director 

ATTEST: (SEAL) 	 APPROVED: 

City Clerk 	 Mayor 

NB: The signatures of the DEVELOPER and CREDIT HOLDER are to be acknowledged 
before a Notary Public. In the case of a partnership, all partners must sign. In the case of a 
corporation, the affidavits of the corporation act must be attached. 



BANK OFFICIAL'S ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

STATE OF MISSOURI 	) 
) SS 

COUNTY OF ST. LOUIS ) 

On this 	6'6' 	day of  Feb t to, ri 	, 20 15 , before me appeared 

	

CVPC5 R:-ce 	, to me personally known, who, being by me duly sworn, did say 

that 	he/she 	is 	the 	V c' G2 -Pres` S.e vti. 	 (title) 	of 

1vc;  we S* 	..R4AkCe vrt-sr 	(name of bank), 	a 

	  (corporation, etc.) organized and existing under the 

laws of the United States of America, and that the seal affixed to the foregoing instrument is the 

Corporate Seal of said bank, and that said instrument was signed and sealed on behalf of said 

bank by authority of its Board of Directors, and said 	 r 	(title) 

acknowledged said instrument to be the free act and deed of said bank. 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal 
in County and State aforesaid, the day and year first above written. 

Notary Public 

My Commission Expires: /0 -18.  -0 r Karen F. Giljum 
Notary Public • &buy Seal 

STATE OF MISSOURI 
Jefferson County 

1W Commission Expirci October 18, 2018 
Commission #14427464 



LLC EXECUTING OFFICIAL'S ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

STATE OF MISSOURI 	) 
) SS 

COUNTY OF ST. LOUIS ) 

On this 	o73.4  day of  Fedi r4.A Ar7   ,  20 15 , before me appeared 

	

John H. Berra, Jr. 	(name) to me personally known, who, being by 

me duly sworn, did say that he/she is the  President 	 (title or 

Executing Official) of  JHB Properties, Inc.; a member of Arbors at Kehrs Mill, LLC 	, a 

Missouri Limited Liability Corporation, and that he/she in fact has the authority to execute the 

foregoing agreement pursuant to the . authority given him/her by the Limited Liability 

Corporation, and that said agreement was signed and sealed by him/her on behalf of the aforesaid 

L.L.C. by authority of its  Members 	, (President or title of 

chief 	officer), 	John H. Berra, Jr. 	(name) 	as 

marf 	Properties, Inc,; 	(title of Executing Official) of said L.L.C. acknowledges 

said agreement to be the lawful, free act and deed of said L.L.C. 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my notarial seal, 
this  Rarli  day of  rp,hru 4E7 	,  20 Jo. 

Notary Public 

My CommiSsion Expires: 

o/ A.9)  02.06 
SUSAN E. LAUMAN 

Notary Public Notary Seal 

STATE OF MISSOURI 

St. Louis County 

My Commission Expires: 05120/2016 

Commission # 12486954 



EXHIBIT A 

Attach: 	Subdivision Deposit Spreadsheet 



CONSTRUCTION DEPOSIT 

SUBDIVISION: Arbors'at Kehrs Mill 
PLAT: 1 

SUBDIVISION CODE: 306 
NO. LOTS: 44 

DATE OF PLAT APPROVAL: 

DEVELOPER: Arbors at Kehrs Mill LLC 

DATE OF 	% 

CATEGORY 	 RELEASE RELEASE 

STREETS 

SIDEWALKS 	 ' 

STORM SEWER 
Original escrow 
established at 
90% of cost 

SAN. SEWER 
Original escroW established at 90% of cost 

DETENTION 

GRADING 

EROSION CONTROL 

SILTAT'N CONTROL 

MONUMENTS 

STREET LIGHTS 

STREET SIGNS 

WATER MAINS 

COMMON GR. SEED 

ORIGINAL 
BALANCE 

$349,890.97 

$3,724.60 

$504,384.41 

$126,613.29 

$18,177.60 

, $10,776.70 

$11,321.20 

$6,882.80 

$16,302.00 

$6,776.00 

$1,082.40 

$266,718.60 

$15,371.60 

' 

TOTAL 
RELEASED 

 $0.00 

. 	$0.00 
$0.00 

$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 

$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 

$0.00 
$0.00 

$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 

$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 

$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 

$0.00 
0.00 

$ 

$0.00 

$0.00 
$0.00 

$0.00 
$0.00 

$0.00 
$0.00 

$0.00 
$0.00 

$0.00 
$0.00 

TOTAL % 

RELEASED 

0 

0 

0 

.0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

CURRENT 
BALANCE 

$349,890.97 • 

$3,724.60 

$604,384.41 

$126,613.29 

$18,177.00 

$10,776.70 

$11,321.20 

$6,882.80 

$16,302.00 

$6,776.00 

$1,082.40 

$266,718.60 

$16,371.60 

REMAINING 

100 

100 

100 

100 

100 

100 

100 

100 

100 

100 

100 

, 	100 

100 

212012015 
PAGE 1 OF 2 



CONSTRUCTION DEPOSIT 

SUBDIVISION: Arbors at Kehrs MITI 
PLAT: 1 

DEVELOPER: Arbors at Kehrs MIII LLC 

ISLAND SODDING $1,960.20 $0.00 
$0.00 

0 $1,960.20, 100 

RETAINING WALL $15,780.00 $0.00 0 $15,785.00 100 

$0.00 

FENCE $2,248.40 $0.00 0 $2,248.40 100 

$0.00 

LOMR $13,750.00 $0.00 0 $13,760.00 100 

$0.00 

TOTALS $1,370,665.66 $0.00 / $1,370,665.66 100 

2/2012015 
	

PAGE 2 OF 2 



CI it *mt.  'kW Ls.,B 11 %I? 

City of Chesterfield 

MAR 1i 2015 

SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT MAINTENANCE DEPOSITOGREEMBNfrublic Services 

THIS MAINTENANCE DEPOSIT AGREEMENT made and entered into by 

Arbors at Kehrs Mill, LLC 
	, herein called DEVELOPER, 

Midwest Bank Centre 	
, herein called CREDIT 

HOLDER (strike through this party if cash depOsited with City), and the City of Chesterfield, 

Missouri, herein called CITY. 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, the DEVELOPER has submitted plans, information and data to the CITY 

for the creation and development of a subdivision to be known as 

The Arbors at Kehrs Mill (Plat 1) 	
in accordance with 

Ordinance No. 	, the governing ordinance for the subdivision, and the Subdivision 

Regulations of the City of Chesterfield, and has requested approval of same; and 

WHEREAS, the subdivision plans have been approved and the CITY has reasonably 

estimated and determined that the cost of maintenance of the required improvements, based on 

the cost of construction of said improvements, all in accordance with the provisions of said 

subdivision governing ordinance and Subdivision Regulations, as amended, will be in the sum 

One hundred forty-two thousand six hundred ninety-four dollars & fifty-three cents 
of 	 DOLLARS 

142,694.53 
($ 	  ), lawful money of the United States of America; and 

WHEREAS, the DEVELOPER is seeking approval from the CITY of the record plat of 

the aforesaid subdivision as the same is provided in said governing ordinance and Subdivision 

Regulations; and 



WHEREAS, the Subdivision Regulations provide inter alias that the commencement of 

said subdivision may be approved by the CITY upon the DEVELOPER submitting satisfactory 

construction and maintenance deposit agreements guaranteeing the construction and 

maintenance of the subdivision improvements in accordance with the approved plans, said 

governing ordinance and Subdivision Regulations. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the covenants, promises and agreement herein 

provided; 

IT IS HEREBY MUTUALLY AGREED: 

1. 	That the DEVELOPER has established a MAINTENANCE DEPOSIT in the 

amount of 
One hundred forty-two thousand six hundred ninety-four dollars & fifty-three cents 

DOLLARS ($ 
142,694.53 

(check one) 

), lawful money of the United States of America by: 

El Depositing cash with the City. 

Submitting a Letter of Credit in the form required by the CITY and issued by 

the CREDIT.  HOLDER. 

❑ Submitting a 	  (type of readily  

negotiable instrument acceptable to the CITY) endorsed to the City. 

Said deposit guarantees the DEVELOPER will perform his maintenance obligations regarding 

subdivision improvements, including, but not limited to; lots, streets, sidewalks, trees, common 

ground areas, erosion and siltation control, and storm drainage facilities, in 

The Arbors at Kehrs Mill (Plat 1) 
	  Subdivision, all in accordance with the 

approved plans, the governing ordinance for the subdivision and the Subdivision Regulations of 



the City of Chesterfield, which by reference are made a part hereof, and in accordance with all 

ordinances of the CITY regulating same. 

2. That the MAINTENANCE DEPOSIT will be held in escrow by the CITY or the 

CREDIT HOLDER, as applicable, until such time as releases are authorized by the Planning 

and Development Services Division. 

3. That the DEVELOPER shall be responsible for, and hereby guarantees, the 

maintenance of the subdivision improvements, including, but not limited to, lots, streets, 

sidewalks, trees, common ground areas, erosion and siltation control, and storm and drainage 

facilities, until (1) expiration of twelve (12) months after occupancy permits have been issued 

on eighty percent (80%) of all of the lots in the subdivision plat(s), or (2) twelve (12) months 

after completion of the subdivision and acceptance / approval of all required improvements by 

the CITY, whichever is longer. In the case of landscaping, the maintenance period shall be 

twenty-four (24) months after installation is approved by the CITY. Maintenance shall include 

repair or replacement of all defects, deficiencies and damage to the improvements that may 

exist or arise, abatement of nuisances caused by such improvements, removal of mud and 

debris from construction, erosion control, grass cutting, removal of construction materials 

(except materials to be used for construction on the lot or as permitted by site plan), and snow 

removal. All repairs and replacement shall comply with CITY specifications and standards. 

Any maintenance of improvements accepted by the CITY for public dedication shall be 

completed under the supervision of and with the prior written approval of the Planning and 

Development Services Director. The maintenance obligation for required improvements to 

existing public roads or other existing public infrastructure already maintained by a public 

governmental entity shall terminate on and after the date such improvements have been 



inspected and accepted by the appropriate governmental entity and the deposit for same shall be 

released. Irrespective of other continuing obligations, the developer's snow removal obligations 

shall terminate on the date a street is accepted by the CITY for public maintenance. 

4. That the maintenance deposit shall be retained by the CITY OR CREDIT 

HOLDER to guarantee maintenance of the required improvements and, in addition to being 

subject to the remedies of Section 1005.080 Subsection (G) and other remedies of the City 

Code, shall be subject to the immediate order of the Planning and Development Services 

• Director to defray or reimburse any cost to the CITY of maintenance or repair of improvements 

related to the subdivision which the developer fails or refuses to perform. Except in emergency 

circumstances or where action is otherwise required before written notice can be provided, the 

Planning and Development Services Director shall provide the developer with a written 

demand and opportunity to perform the maintenance before having such maintenance 

performed by the CITY, or its agents. The Planning and Development Services Director shall 

have the authority to require the maintenance deposit to be replaced or replenished by the 

developer, in any form permitted for an original deposit, where the amount remaining is 

determined to be insufficient or where the maintenance deposit was drawn upon by the CITY 

for maintenance. 

5. That in determining the amount of MAINTENANCE DEPOSIT that shall 

continue to be held, portions of the deposit amount that were attributable to improvements that 

have been accepted by any third-party governmental entity or utility legally responsible for the 

maintenance of the improvement may be released upon such acceptance of the improvement by 

the entity. The Planning and Development Services Director may approve such further releases 

if it is determined in his or her discretion, after inspection of the improvements, that the total 



maintenance amount retained is clearly in excess of the amount necessary for completion of the 

maintenance obligation, after all reasonable contingencies are considered. 

6. That in the event the CITY should determine that the MAINTENANCE 

DEPOSIT, or any line item thereon as herein provided, is insufficient, the CITY will so notify 

the DEVELOPER who shall, within thirty (30) days of said notice, deposit additional sums 

with the CITY or have the amount of the letter of credit or other banking instrument increased 

as will be required to maintain the said specific component of the improvement and said 

additional sum will be subject to the terms of this MAINTENANCE DEPOSIT AGREEMENT. 

Failure to provide said sum shall be cause for immediate cessation of all work on said 

subdivision until the additional amount is paid. 

7. That the CREDIT HOLDER, in accordance with paragraphs 2, 4 and 5 above, 

shall only release or disburse the MAINTENANCE DEPOSIT, or portion thereof, upon receipt 

and in the amount set forth in a written authorization from the said Planning and Development 

Services Division addressed to the Credit Holder, which authorization may be for payment, as 

provided in the Subdivision Regulations or governing ordinance for this subdivision. 

8. That upon expiration of the maintenance obligations established herein, the 

Planning and Development Services Director shall cause a final inspection to be made of the 

required improvements. Funds shall then be released if there are no defects or deficiencies 

found and all other obligations including payment of all sums due, are shown to be satisfied on 

inspection thereof, or at such time thereafter as any defects or deficiencies are cured with the 

permission of, and within the time allowed by, the Planning and Development Services 

Director. This release shall in no way be construed to indemnify or release any person from any 



civil liability that may exist for defects or damages caused by any construction, improvement or 

development for which any deposit has been released. 

9. That there shall be no assignment by DEVELOPER or CREDIT HOLDER 

under the terms of this agreement without written approval of the CITY. 

10. That if DEVELOPER is unable to meet its obligation hereunder or to provide 

additional sums to guarantee maintenance of the Subdivision improvements as may be 

determined by the CITY or if the DEVELOPER shall abandon the subdivision or go into 

receivership or file for bankruptcy protection, then in any such event the CITY may declare the 

DEVELOPER in default and may immediately order the payment of all remaining sums held in 

the MAINTENANCE DEPOSIT to be paid to the CITY without further legal process, to be 

used to complete and maintain the subdivision improvements as set out under the terms hereof. 

11. That the CREDIT HOLDER will immediately inform the City of any changes of 

address for CREDIT HOLDER or DEVELOPER (known to CREDIT HOLDER) during the 

period of this Agreement. Failure to do so shall result in a breach of this Agreement and the 

CITY may declare the DEVELOPER or CREDIT HOLDER (as the case may be) in default and 

may immediately order the payment of all remaining sums held by CREDIT HOLDER to be 

paid to the CITY without further legal process, to be used to maintain the subdivision 

improvements as set out under the terms hereof. 

12. That no forbearance on the part of the CITY in enforcing any of its rights under 

this agreement, nor any extension thereof by CITY, shall constitute a waiver of any terms of 

this Agreement or a forfeiture of any such rights. 

13. That the CITY hereby accepts this agreement as a satisfactory MAINTENACE 

DEPOSIT AGREEMENT under the provisions and requirements of the governing ordinance 



for this subdivision and any amendments or revisions thereto and the Subdivision Regulations 

of the CITY. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have hereunto set their hands and 

seals the 	day of 	 , 20 	A.D. 

BY: 

ATTEST: (SEAL) 

Type Name!-Al Hicks 
Title: Vmem ice,President of JHB Properties, Inc.; 

a 	per 

.t Kehrs MI I, L 

INN 
r

ra, Jr 
Properties, Inc.; 

DEVELOPER: Arb° 

Type Name: John 
Title: President of J 

a memoer 

Firm Address: 
5091 New Baumgartner Road 

St. Louis, MO 63129 

CREDIT HOLDER: Midwest Bank Centre 

BY: 	0144,-.  
Name: Che5 Rge  
Title:  thee. *dm+ 

Firm Address: 
2191 Lemay Ferry Road 

St. Louis, MO 63125 

CITY OF CHESTERFIELD, MISSOURI 

BY 	  
Planning and Development Services Director 

ATTEST: (SEAL) 	 APPROVED: 

City Clerk 	 Mayor 

NB: The signatures of the DEVELOPER and CREDIT HOLDER are to be acknowledged 
before a Notary Public. In the case of a partnership, all partners must sign. In the case of a 
corporation, the affidavits of the corporation act must be attached. 



Notary Public 

BANK OFFICIA•'S ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

STATE OF MISSOURI ) 
) SS 

COUNTY OF ST. LOUIS ) 

On this 	14% day of 	bettary 	, 20. IS , before me appeared 

Glnf )'s AG-  	,  to me personally known, who, being by me duly 

sworn, did say that he/she is the 	ce 	s f 	 (title) of 

Ni si  au) es* I - anr,kc 01-1- e 	(name of bank), a 

	 (corporation, etc.) organized and existing under the laws of the 

United States of America, and that the seal affixed to the foregoing instrument is the Corporate 

Seal of said bank, and that said instrument was signed and sealed on behalf of said bank by 

authority of its Board of Directors, and said 	r) 41-LC .er 	(title) 

acknowledged said instrument to be the free act and deed of said bank. 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal 
in County and State aforesaid, the day and year first above written. 

My Commission Expires: / 0  reo' Karen F. OlUtiti .  Notary Public. Notary Seal 
STATE OF MISSOURI 

•Jeflbrson County 
• My Commission Expires: October 18, 2018 

Commission #14427464  



LLC EXECUTING OFFICIAL'S ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

STATE OF MISSOURI ) 
) SS 

COUNTY OF ST. LOUIS ) 

On this 	a,3rd day of  A,4,-,4,), 	, 20 15 , before me appeared 

John H. Berra, Jr. 	 .  (name) to me personally known, who, being by 

me duly sworn, did say that he/she is the  President 	 (title or Executing 

Official) of  President of JHB Properties, Inc.; a member 	, a Missouri Limited Liability 

Corporation, and that he/she in fact has the authority to execute the foregoing agreement 

pursuant to the authority given him/her by the Limited Liability Corporation, and that said 

agreement was signed and sealed by him/her on behalf of the aforesaid L.L.C. by authority of 

its 	Members 	 , (President or title of chief officer), 

John H. Berra, Jr. 	(name) as  President of JHB Properties, Inc:  (title of 
a mernuer 

Executing Official) of said L.L.C. acknowledges said agreement to be the lawful, free act and 

deed of said L.L.C. 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I 'have hereunto set my hand and affixed my notarial 
seal, this 	Rs3  r (V  day of  Fiv,p,4,), 	, 20 /5'. 

*0* "in el 1 	"yr 41.71 

Notary Public 

My Commission Expires: 

May do, 0/0/4, 
SUSAN E. LAUMAN 

Notary Public • Notary Seal 
STATE OF MISSOURI 

St Louis County 
My Commission Expires: 05120/2018 

Commission # 12486954  



MAINTENANCE DEPOSIT 

SUBDIVISION: Arbors at Kehrs MIII 

	

PLAT: 	 1 

	

SUB CODE: 	 305 
DEVELOPER: Arbors at Kehrs MIII LLC 

NOTE: Deposit is adjusted to account for 10% of entire sewer coati, and 0% of LOMRIElev. Cart's, If any) 

ORIGINAL DATE OF • AMOUNT 
CATEGORY BALANCE RELEASE RELEASED 

STREETS $34,989.10 

SIDEWALKS $372.46 

STORM SEWER $56,037.11 

SAN. SEWER $14,055.63 

DETENTION $1,817.75 

GRADING $1,077.67 

EROSION CONTROL $1,132.12 

SILTAT'N CONTROL $588.28 

MONUMENTS $1,630.20 

STREET LIGHTS $677.60 

STREET SIGNS $108.24 

WATER MAINS $26,671.86 

COMMON GR. SEED $1,537.16 

ISLAND SODDING $196.02 

RETAINING WALL $1,578.50 

FENCE $224.84 

TOTALS $142,694.53 $0.00 

CURRENT 
BALANCE 

$34,989.10 

$372.46 

$56,037.11 

$14,056.63 

$1,817.75 

$1,077.67 

$1,132.12 

$508.28 

$1,630.20 

$677.60 

$108.24 

$26,671.86 

$1,537.16 

096.02 

$1,578.50 

'' )
$142,694.53 

• 	212012015 
	

PAGE 1 OF 1 



BILL NO.  NS  )' 	 ORDINANCE NO. 	  

AN ORDINANCE REPEALING CITY OF CHESTERFIELD ORDINANCE NUMBER 2849 
PROVIDING FOR THE APPROVAL OF A RECORD PLAT AND ESCROW AGREEMENTS FOR 
THE ARBORS AT KEHRS MILL PLAT 2, A 31.093 ACRE TRACT OF LAND ZONED "PUD" 
PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT LOCATED NORTH OF THE INTERSECTION OF 
STRECKER ROAD AND CHURCH ROAD. 

WHEREAS, The Sterling Company, on behalf of Arbors at Kehrs Mill, LLC., has submitted for 
review and approval a Record Plat for the Arbors at Kehrs Mill Plat 2; and, 

WHEREAS, the purpose of said Record Plat is to subdivide a 31.093 acre tract of land into 
eighteen (18) residential lots; and, 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission having reviewed the same and has recommended 
approval thereof; and, 

WHEREAS, the Department of Public Services has reviewed the Record Plat in accordance 
with the Unified Development Code of the City of Chesterfield and has found it to be in compliance 
with all applicable ordinances and has forwarded said Record Plat to the City Council; and, 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Chesterfield having considered the request, voted 
to approve said Record Plat. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
CHESTERFIED, ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. The Record Plat for the Arbors at Kehrs Mill Plat 2, which is made part hereof and 
attached hereto as "Exhibit 1" and Escrow Agreements, is hereby approved; provided, however, 
that nothing in this ordinance shall be construed or interpreted as an acceptance of the public 
utilities or public easement which are dedicated on the Record Plat. The owner is directed to 
record the plat with the St. Louis County Recorder of Deeds Office. 

Section 2. The Mayor and City Clerk are authorized and directed to evidence the approval of 
the said Record Plat by affixing their signatures and the official seal of the City of Chesterfield as 
required on the said document. 

Section 3. The Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and 
approval. 

Passed and approved this 	 day of 	 ,, 2015. 

MAYOR 
ATTEST: 

CITY CLERK 



Arbors at Kehl's - Plat 2 
TRACT OF LA AD 8E/NG LOT I 0E57: .111RrS/NST/77JTE LOTSPZ 

I RECORDED IN PLA TBOOK 355 P9CES .137AND138 OF 77IE SI 10175 COI/N72' ANSSOOR/ RECORDS. 
LYING B4RTLY/A,  CIS SORPEY /24 TOlIWSH/P,5 NORTH- R .INGE., ElSTAND 7721,PNSH/P.0 WORTH 124NOE E4ST. 

ZWIS SORPEYMANOARAC/70.VAL SE/ON TOWS///1,15 NORM IUSOEIE4J7 
07Y OFCHESTERIZELD Si LOO/S coavyx 41/550081 

:245.1f#272:tie-Fr 

17:1/2",T.0",47-----7g717'TP..7'1.-'70-7.111":"V:77•47:,,7-`r" 

4.37-4":.forriggEl-PS94174:7X-1'-17j!',''.2r-T-e7 

'(Nq'='A4'N0';€":'"["C":'"Ve4'R.CASR°LArf[:'"A„':F:g'=A'AS.L."''TA"eny:'TTi 

ansoCOuscas AND K.. Br Goan, w.TISTATITT OCCO RECO.. 	 Y OF 	 	 DAry 
	  va RIC St WATS OTAN/y  KONTOS 

throttErEF—ailiCEigt3YEES,F,L+151." 	'"1"1 
INTS 	 IS .LECT TO W.A., 	 AND USIRICINTTS KOUT. 	 ARBORS AT KOIRS 	 Dm... Or 
CORINous. CONOITICO5 	 .075.11ORS TILTO ON 7. 	 OAT Or 	  701 	 ImuY 

Sl. LOBS COAT RCOORDS 

A Puff or me OTAAT 0/7 Au.. 5+10■111U100 TROANKRCO ey 	 urn .A.1.01.1.7 	 RaTATZLICNT Cr NOTNIIA. OF TRUT 

AND RESTRollur ae 	 PuCe REC.= IR DECO BOOT 10.■ P.L S. Or TIE ST. LW* Muer RD.ROS 

MILO. unIS SNORT 0,4 7116 PLAT UT un0rUTAUSTI01 
171S 09.0y  CUTTUO OIAT MONO C.O■0111S A. NUNN 010. PLAT AS C, T. 7. T. DATT RUCRO. OT OAS PLAT. 

Otacos !TORS mu ALC 
neruTR1. 

ANn OESCRIPTIOR PI AT 2  00058I I I AND DESCRIPTION PI ADS I Pe 2  

f417,7p7fizs'qq:12.7.5'cLiwsFralqhz 
STATEMENT OF STAT, KANE COORDINATE TIE  

OTOTTOT . rOue 

oN no 	 DAY Or 	  

urn. Boro NC PAY S.. 00 Sur 	 IS 7. 13.2.0r 	 pRUFRTITA NO  A CORNUATIOR Or V( SUM Cr ussoule 

1.400, Or ARAMs AT AURs 	 LAU A obi.° mADAIIV CCAUTNY Or 7. STATE or le.01.01. APO Tut SATO 0ISIUNOIT 	 SILNED 

WULF.  or SAO CORPORATUT By  Aumorly  Or ITS Boum cA PRELIMS UO No0 	 SAO resTRuurAT TO . 

1. ARM ACT MC orto or SAO CORPORA.. A. ARUM WWI, COMPANY. 

N 	 IINERSOF. 1 RAU IIIROARTo UT WI NA. 	 AUITED 	 OnICIAL SEAL Ix T. Loom Aro slAlt ATMLSATD. INC Ohy  AND 

Um rosy  uovC 

NOTARY Tv.. 

PARTIN RFIFASE OF DFFR OF TRUST.  

rm.. 	  II 0:0) Or TOAST OA. 	  20$5 ARO RECORDTO . CCM BOCK 	  
PAM 	  OF 7. st. TORS MARTY RTOUDS OUNtrn 70 11. musla BURIN NALITO .1,01 REAL [STATE TO SLOARL I. 
Puna. CU CTRL.. Nur oR Nous To so 0.0 Duero. up, SCI.  KIT, Ama TAURUS Nur DUD or TRusT Aro roTC oR .rts rAs or 
Ruu Tu. Fru., p. Au, sArsuu, 

ROW T.RUOPC. T. TwOURTATT.T. TRUE. RCADER 	 VS. CARER TR sA0 MU Or MITS7 AND ROIE OR Nol£S.RIOy Awn N 

TO Nog A. To ..r) Luc InOT 	 ••■■Sell.O.S. T.RTTO Rae.. FREE MEM 	 OSOTARGTo Mem 	 INWTORANCI. Or SAO 

moms.. HAS MOTTO DIM MESETA'S ms 		 TOM 

Mu NA. ARO IITAT 

STATA IT6S.Cun 	 7 	 ray CFRTIFICATE. 
7SS. 

TrAs e surly TA. TA, nuoTo 	 u upon rous 	 pAAT ,rNs 
APPRO., BY IVIE 	 LCURCL FOR Ult Ory  Or OUSTO.0.10 By  Onuol. 

Or nu 	 Due TR 	  
71.S.By AuDIOTIMS 	 RICO.. Cr 7,16 RGXWO PUT INN nu :1"0: 

NR O  TU. By  . Our Sow. 00 Su KANT is T. 	  of 	 	 au.. 
ST. 00. COM, Ratoust or 0.06 

.S00.A.N. 	 TRA7 sNo .TRTAUNT RAS seCO AND SO.10 Or EloTur or soLl ASSOC.. A. SATO 	  
ACANOwto.0 SAO NSTRISTUT TO BE THE FRU. ACT mr. um of SAO .100Allat 

rTue nu. (Try  ono, 

rIfIrA ,  SIT  

SURVEYOR'S  

7.1RACT 0.TN. 	 MORE OT US, 

=fferreLM71110 gr rr,.-arIF....=zgg 

ring 	— 
"'“'gre'Pr.ro 	'7,:r=11V,“ 

4 

U 

S 
S 

rms:IFYr.f: 
,rg..mararre smr= sr=c 

Pm, mos ro°='Rgmriml: 

(tux. ',VI '1, K As - 
e TITE CuRAOTT roaNc. ousner.ON e p.u.o. - quo. ANU 

1...grz—A,Taa ,„—cre,g 

° srafXm =MIL 
F,747.,:,,P 

PRTOJFI'T/SITE RFNCHMARIK.  

TA 

LOCATION MAP 

f-ff GRAPHIC SCALE 

my  Mug.. UPPIM. 	  

RoTARY PuRIAT 

'" -9111.1i1, ° L-FJ 	 *tor' 

41= r9cr.—sor, 
SURVEYOR'S CFRTIFICATF  

V%..',Z =Mr:— 

AN .0 INrrurtr 

suT=1"Ar4 

Aro sTC OINUATowNT KAN RaoRtal 

Z4rfg?'"" ICC IV ED 

we, 

1s 

14-g.re,; 

k/ mg.= 	"•• 
r.-- 

R7.7 

DARTLy BY 



Arbors at Kehl's AM- Platt 
x52.5VICEE 

GRAPHIC SCALE 

.1,4-2X2 

MONUMENT NOTE' 

rif•32/iir2aj'' 
-------- 

SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATION:. 

•••,0 • , • r, 
--------- 

S52,5,8, 



___ ----------- 

°n 

DRAWN PREPARED.' EREPAPEOFOR 	REASARKDORIE 
REVISE PEROT' CCM.. 12.2,14 

151.T.G. 
THE Al@C° 

Arbors al tiehrs Mill, LLC 
SOSI New Saumsarlser Road 

REVISE DER CRP CCOUREDITS D22,5 
REVISE DER CLIENT CORVEMPS 02.15 

DESIGNED REVISE PER MP CORDPENTS (0-0DIS 
	 REVISE RER 	CCRDADDIS 019, 

ENGINEERS 	SURVEYORS 
5055NEW BAUMGARTNER DCAD 

PP LOUIS MISSOURI 63129 
SL Louis, Missouri 63129 

Pn 31.48,5617 CHECKED 

J.A.H. 
1310-48,014  FAX W.I. 

DARR! StaRDPOPERP.R.D.....' 
SHEER TOLE 1 

 PROJECT 

ARBORS AT ICk.HRS MILL 
PLA7 2 

REGOROPLAT 

/rf-fiRs 

11,076,, 
/ 15'040 ( 

■ PUeic) 



RECEWED 
City of Chesterfield 

MR 1 1 2015 

'SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT CONSTRUCTION D oPeOpSa7mAeGnitEt  ofErubNlicTservices 

THIS CONSTRUCTION DEPOSIT AGREEMENT made and entered into by 

Arbors at Kehrs MIII, LLC 
	 , herein called DEVELOPER, 

Midwest Bank Centre 
	 , herein called ESCROW 

HOLDER (strike through this party if cash deposited with City), and the City of Chesterfield, 

Missouri, herein called CITY. 

WrTNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, the DEVELOPER has submitted plans, information and data to the CITY 

for the creation and development of a subdivision to be known as 

The Arbors at Kehrs Mill (Plat 2) 	
in accordance with 

Ordinance No. 	, the governing ordinance for the subdivision, and the Subdivision 

Regulations of the City of Chesterfield, and has requested approval of same; and 

WHEREAS, the subdivision plans have been approved and the CITY has reasonably 

estimated and determined that the cost of construction, installation and completion of said 

improvements, all in accordance with the provisions of said governing ordinance and 

Subdivision 	Regulations, 	as 	amended, 	will 	be 	in 	the 	sum 	of 

One million three hundred fifty-three thousand seven hundred thirty-six dollars & sixty-six cents DOLLARS 

1,353,736.66 	
	), lawful money of the United States of America; and 

WHEREAS, the DEVELOPER is seeking approval from the CITY of the record plat of 

the aforesaid subdivision as the same is provided in said governing ordinance and Subdivision 

Regulations; and 

WHEREAS, the Subdivision Regulations provide inter alias that the commencement of 

said subdivision may be approved by the CITY upon the DEVELOPER submitting satisfactory 

construction and maintenance deposit agreements guaranteeing the construction and maintenance 



of the subdivision improvements in accordance with the approved plans, said governing 

ordinance and Subdivision Regulations. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the covenants, promises and agreement herein 

provided; 

IT IS HEREBY MUTUALLY AGREED: 

1. 	That the DEVELOPER has established a CONSTRUCTION DEPOSIT in the 

 amount of  fillEdrgilkirttnixhaVflgsf Myx-tigshtlaugand seven 	DOLLARS 

($ 
1,353,736.66 

) lawful money of the United States .  of America by: (check one) 

❑ Depositing cash with the City. 

Submitting a Letter of Credit in the form required by the CITY and issued 

by the ESCROW HOLDER. 

❑ Submitting a 	 (type of readily 

negotiable instrument acceptable to the CITY) endorsed to the City and 

issued by the ESCROW HOLDER. 

Said deposit guarantees the construction, installation and completion of the required subdivision 

The Arbors at Kehrs MIII (Plat 2) 
improvements in 	  Subdivision, all in accordance 

with the approved plans, the governing ordinance for the subdivision and the Subdivision 

Regulations of the City of Chesterfield, which are by reference made a part hereof, and in 

accordance with all ordinances of the CITY regulating same. A cost estimate thereof is attached 

hereto as "Exhibit A". 

2. That the CONSTRUCTION DEPOSIT will be held in escrow by the CITY or the 

ESCROW HOLDER, as applicable, until such time as releases are authorized by the Planning 

and Development Services Division. The CONSTRUCTION DEPOSIT may be subject to 

special audit of the CITY from time to time. 



3. That the CONSTRUCTION DEPOSIT guarantees the construction, installation 

and completion of the improvements in the aforesaid subdivision in accordance with the plans 

and specifications for the said subdivision which have been filed with the CITY, which are made 

a part hereof by reference as if set forth herein word for word. 

4. Pursuant to Revised Statutes of Missouri, 89.410, the amounts set out on Exhibit 

"A" are identified by separate line item and are subject to release of ninety five percent (95%) of 

said estimated costs within thirty (30) days of the completion of said specific component of work 

by DEVELOPER. The Developer shall notify CITY in writing when they consider the specific 

component ready for release of funds. Accordingly, the CITY may not allow for the reallocation 

of escrowed funds from one line item to another, without specific written agreement between the 

DEVELOPER and CITY indicating what specific component or components are being modified. 

ESCROW HOLDER shall not modify or expend funds from other than the identified line item 

component without written approval from CITY. Completion is when the particular item has had 

all documentation and certification filed in a complete and acceptable form and the specific items 

have been inspected and all identified deficiencies have been corrected and the work has been 

approved by the City. 

5. That in the event the CITY should determine that the ESCROW SUM or any line 

item thereon as herein provided, is insufficient to complete the said Subdivision Improvements, 

or the specific line item, the CITY will so notify the DEVELOPER who shall deposit within 

thirty (30) days of said notice with the ESCROW HOLDER that additional sum of lawful money 

of the United States of America that will be required to complete the said specific component of 

the improvement and said additional sum will be subject to the terms of this Escrow Agreement. 

Failure to provide said sum shall cause for immediate cessation of all work on said subdivision 

until the additional amount is paid. 



6. That the DEVELOPER guarantees that all required utilities and improvements 

will be installed, constructed and completed within two (2) years from the date of the approval of 

the said Subdivision Plat and the DEVELOPER shall certify the completion of all said 

improvements, along with the filing of all documentation and certification, all as provided in the 

governing ordinance for this subdivision and the Subdivision Regulations of the CITY. 

7. That the ESCROW HOLDER, in accordance with paragraph 4 above, shall only 

release or disburse the ESCROW SUM, or portion thereof, upon receipt and in the amount set 

forth in a written authorization from the Planning and Development Services Division addressed 

to the ESCROW HOLDER, which authorization may be for the payment of labor and materials 

used in the construction, installation and conipletion of the said improvements, as the work 

progresses, as provided in the Subdivision Regulations or governing ordinance for this 

subdivision. 

8. That in the event the DEVELOPER shall abandon the subdivision or fail to 

complete the subdivision improvements within two (2) years, from the date of the CITY'S 

approval of the said subdivision plat or subsequent extension period granted to this DEPOSIT 

AGREEMENT, whichever shall first occur, the CITY shall present to the ESCROW HOLDER a 

certified statement from the City Engineer estimating the cost for the completion of the 

subdivision improvements and require the ESCROW HOLDER to immediately perform on this 

agreement for completion of the specific components of the project or disburse said funds 

identified by the City Engineer's estimates directly to the CITY. The CITY may complete, or 

have completed by outside resources, the said improvements. The ESCROW HOLDER having 

disbursed the escrow sums therefore as ordered and directed by the CITY, and upon such 

disbursement shall be relieved of all liability under the terms of this agreement. 



9. That in the event of any legal actions taken by the CITY against DEVELOPER or 

ESCROW HOLDER to enforce the provision of this agreement, the parties agree to pay a 

reasonable attorney's fee in addition to any other sums due under this agreement 

10. That there shall be no assignment by DEVELOPER or ESCROW HOLDER 

under the terms of this agreement without written approval of the CITY. 

11. That if DEVELOPER is unable to meet its obligation hereunder or to provide 

additional sums to complete the Subdivision improvements as may be determined by the CITY 

or if the DEVELOPER or ESCROW HOLDER shall go into receivership or file for bankruptcy 

protection, then in any such event the CITY may declare the DEVELOPER or ESCROW 

HOLDER (as the case may be) in default and may immediately order the payment of all 

remaining sums held by ESCROW HOLDER to be paid to the CITY without further legal 

process, to be used to complete the subdivision improvements as set out under the terms hereof. 

12. That the ESCROW HOLDER will immediately inform the City of any changes of 

address for ESCROW HOLDER or DEVELOPER (known to ESCROW HOLDER) during the 

period of this Agreement. Failure to do so shall result in a breach of this Agreement and the 

CITY may declare the DEVELOPER or ESCROW HOLDER (as the case may be) in default and 

may immediately order the payment of all remaining sums held by ESCROW HOLDER to be 

paid to the CITY without further legal process, to be used to complete the subdivision 

improvements as set out under the terms hereof. 

13. That no forbearance on the part of the CITY in enforcing any of its rights under 

this agreement, nor any extension thereof by CITY, shall constitute a waiver of any terms of this 

Agreement or a forfeiture of any such rights. 

14. That the CITY hereby accepts this agreement as a satisfactory ESCROW 

AGREEMENT under the provisions and requirements of the governing ordinance for this 



Type Name: CO Vee 
Title: 	Oct Pre.eitvik 

BY: 

subdivision and any amendments or revisions thereto and the Subdivision Regulations of the 

CITY. 

1gFk.,fir 	 BY: 
Type

r 
 Namet Al Hi • s 

Title: ragroldent of JHB Properties, Inc.; 	 Title: President of JHB Properties, Inc.; a member 

Finn Address: 
5091 New Baumgartner Road 

St. Louis, MO 63129 

ATTEST: (SEAL) 
	

ESCROW HOLDER: Midwest Bank Centre 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have hereunto set their hands and 

seals the 	day of 	 , 20 

ATTEST: (SEAL) 	DEVELOPER: Arbors at Kehrs Mil , LC 

Type Name: John 	a, Jr 

Finn Address: 
2191 Lemay Ferry Road 

St. Louis, MO 63125 

CITY OF CHESTERFIELD, MISSOURI 

BY 	  
Planning and Development Services Director 

ATTEST: (SEAL) 	 APPROVED: 

City Clerk 	 Mayor 

NB: The signatures of the DEVELOPER and CREDIT HOLDER are to be acknowledged 
before a Notary Public. In the case of a partnership, all partners must sign. In the case of a 
corporation, the affidavits of the corporation act must be attached. 



Notary Public 

BANK OFFICIAL'S ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

STATE OF MISSOURI 	) 
) SS 

COUNTY OF ST. LOUIS ) 

On this 	a8`1'  day of  FaINA 	, 20 15 , before me appeared 

Gh ; . 	, to me personally known, who,. being by me duly sworn, did say 

that 	he/she 	is 	the 	U 'we_ Pre si j.e kit 	 (title) 	of 

—Ass, w e&sf 	rink Ce. vit 	(name of bank), a 

	  (corporation, etc.) organized and existing under the 

laws of the United States of America, and that the seal affixed to the foregoing instrument is the 

Corporate Seal of said bank, and that said instrument was signed and sealed on behalf of said 

	

bank by authority of its Board of Directors, and said 	04S4c,e r 
	

(title) 

acknowledged said instrument to be the free act and deed of said bank. 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal 
in County and State aforesaid, the day and year first above written. 

My Commission Expires: 	-4.0( IKaren F. Gilpin . 
Notary Public • Notary Seal 

STATE OF MISSOURI 
Jefferson County 

My Commission Expires: October 18, 2018 
Commission #14427464  



LLC EXECUTING OFFICIAL'S ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

STATE OF MISSOURI ) 
) SS 

COUNTY OF ST. LOUIS ) 

On •this 	613rd  day of riA ary 	, 20 15 , before me appeared 

	

John H. Berra, Jr. 	(name) to me personally known, who, being o by 

me duly sworn, did say that he/she is the  President 	(title  

Executing Official) of  JHB Properties, Inc.; a member of Arbors at Kehrs Mill, LLC .  , a 

Missouri Limited Liability Corporation, and that he/she in fact has the authority to execute the 

foregoing agreement pursuant to the authority given him/her by the Limited Liability 

Corporation, and that said agreement was signed and sealed by him/her on behalf of the aforesaid 

L.L.C. by authority of its  Members 	, (President or title of . 

chief 	officer), 	John H. Berra, Jr. 	(name) 	as 

:fiargrof JHB Properties, Inc.: 	(title of Executing Official) of said L.L.C. acknowledges 

said agreement to be the lawful, free act and deed of said L.L.C. 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my notarial seal, 
this  card  day of  FAjvc„,,y , 20 /5". 

de,Y1 111 ilWee ■rvi-r  
Notary Public 

My Commission Expires: 

May 02.0 1  AO /4) 

SUSAN E. LAUMAN 

Notary Public - Notary Seal 
STATE OF MISSOURI 

St. Louis County 
My CoMmission Expires: 05/20/2016 

Commission # 12486954 



EXHIBIT A 

Attach: 	Subdivision Deposit Spreadsheet 



CONSTRUCTION DEPOSIT 

SUBDIVISION: Arbors at Kehrs MIII 
PLAT: 2 

SUBDIVISION CODE: 305 
NO. LOTS: 44 

DATE OF PLAT APPROVAL: 

DEVELOPER: Arbors at Kehrs Mill LLC 

DATE OF 	% ORIGINAL TOTAL TOTAL % CURRENT % 
CATEGORY 	 RELEASE RELEASE BALANCE RELEASED RELEASED BALANCE REMAINING 

STREETS $401,093.00 $0.00 0 $401,093.00 100 
$0.00 
$0.00 

SIDEWALKS $27,067.15 $0.00 0 $27,087.15 100 
$0.00 
$0.00 

STORM SEWER $298,822.99 $0.00 0 $296,822.99 100 
Original escrow $0.00 
established at $0.00 
90% of cost 

SAN. SEWER $140,266.96 $0.00 0 $140,266.96 100 
Original escrow established at 90% of cost $0.00 

DETENTION $15,977.50 $0.00 0 $15,977.60 100 
$0.00 
$0.00 

GRADING $7,987.10 $0.00 0 $7,987.10 100 
$0.00 
$0.00 

EROSION CONTROL $8,047.60 $0.00 0 $8,047.60 100 
$0.00 
$0.00 

SILTAT'N CONTROL $4,492.40 $0.00 0 $4,492.40 100 
$0.00 
$0.00 

MONUMENTS $14,883.00 $0.00 0 $14,883.00 100 
$0.00 

STREET LIGHTS $6,776.00 $0.00 0 $6,776.00 100 
$0.00 

STREET SIGNS $641.20 $0.00 0 $641.20 100 
$0.00 

WATER MAINS $266,718.60 $0.00 0 $266,718.60 100 
$0.00 

COMMON GR. SEED $12,004.68 $0.00 0 $12,004.56 100 
$0.00 

212012015 	 PAGE 1 OF 2 



Arbors at Kehrs MIII LLC 

0 $1,306.80 

0 $101,114.20 

0 $7,387.60 

0 $41,260.00 

100 

100 

100 

100 

100 

SUBDIVISION: Arbors at Kehrs MIII 
PLAT: 2 

CONSTRUCTION DEPOSIT 

DEVELOPER: 

ISLAND SODDING $1,306.80 $0.00 
$0.00 

RETAINING WALL $101,114.20 $0.00 
$0.00 

FENCE $7,387.60 $0.00 
$0.00 

LOMR $41,260.00 $0.00 
$0.00 

TOTALS $1,353,736.66 $0.00 

2/2012016 
	

PAGE 2 OF 2 



RECEWED 
City of Chesterfield 

MAR' 1 2015 
SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT MAINTENANCE DEPO  T AGREEMENT 

Department of Public Services 

THIS MAINTENANCE DEPOSIT AGREEMENT made and entered into ' by 

Arbors at Kehrs Mill, LLC 

Midwest Bank Centre 

HOLDER (strike through this party if cash deposited with City), and the City of Chesterfield, 

Missouri, herein called CITY. 

WrINESSETH: 

WHEREAS, the DEVELOPER has submitted plans, information and data to the CITY 

for the creation and development of a subdivision to be known as 

The Arbors at Kehrs Mill (Plat 2) 	

in accordance with 

Ordinance No. 	, the governing ordinance for the subdivision, and the Subdivision 

Regulations of the City of Chesterfield, and has requested approval of same; and 

WHEREAS, the subdivision plans have been approved and the CITY has reasonably 

estimated and determined that the cost of maintenance of the required improvements, based on 

the cost of construction of said improvements, all in accordance with the provisions of said 

subdivision governing ordinance and Subdivision Regulations, as amended, will be in the sum 

One hundred thirty-six thousand one hundred dollars & thirty-six cents 
of 	 DOLLARS 

, herein called DEVELOPER, 

	, herein called CREDIT 

$ 	
136,100.36  

( ), lawful money of the United States of America; and 

WHEREAS, the DEVELOPER is seeking approval from the CITY of the record plat of 

the aforesaid subdivision as the same is provided in said governing ordinance and Subdivision 

Regulations; and 



DOLLARS ($ 	 ), lawful money of the United States of America by: 
136,100.36 

WHEREAS, the Subdivision Regulations provide inter alias that the commencement of 

said subdivision may be approved by the CITY upon the DEVELOPER submitting satisfactory 

construction and maintenance deposit agreements guaranteeing the construction and 

maintenance of the subdivision improvements in accordance with the approved plans, said 

governing ordinance and Subdivision Regulations. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the covenants, promises and agreement herein 

provided; 

IT IS HEREBY MUTUALLY AGREED: 

1. 	That the DEVELOPER has established a MAINTENANCE DEPOSIT in the 

amount of 
One hundred thirty-six thousand one hundred dollars & thirty-six cents 

(check one) 

❑ Depositing cash with the City. 

rsi Submitting a Letter of Credit in the form required by the CITY and issued by 

the CREDIT HOLDER. 

❑ Submitting a 	  (type of readily  

negotiable instrument acceptable to the CITY) endorsed to the City. 

Said deposit guarantees the DEVELOPER will perform his maintenance obligations regarding 

subdivision improvements, including, but not limited to; lots, streets, sidewalks, trees, common 

ground areas, erosion and siltation control, and storm drainage facilities, in 

The Arbors at Kehrs MIII (Plat 2) 

approved plans, the governing ordinance for the subdivision and the Subdivision Regulations of 

Subdivision, all in accordance with the 



the City of Chesterfield, which by reference are made a part hereof, and in accordance with all 

ordinances of the CITY regulating same. 

2. That the MAINTENANCE DEPOSIT will be held in escrow by the CITY or the 

CREDIT HOLDER, as applicable, until such time as releases are authorized by the Planning 

and Development Services Division. 

3. That the DEVELOPER shall be responsible for, and hereby guarantees, the 

maintenance of the subdivision improvements, including, but not limited to, lots, streets, 

sidewalks, trees, common ground areas, erosion and siltation control, and storm and drainage 

facilities, until (1) expiration of twelve (12) months after occupancy permits have been issued 

on eighty percent (80%) of all of the lots in the subdivision plat(s), or (2) twelve (12) months 

after completion of the subdivision and acceptance / approval of all required improvements by 

the CITY, whichever is longer. In the case of landscaping, the maintenance period shall be 

twenty-four (24) months after installation is approved by the CITY. Maintenance shall include 

repair or replacement of all defects, deficiencies and damage to the improvements that may 

exist or arise, abatement of nuisances caused by such improvements, removal of mud and 

debris from construction, erosion control, grass cutting, removal of construction materials 

(except materials to be used for construction on the lot or as permitted by site plan), and snow 

removal. All repairs and replacement shall Comply with CITY specifications and standards. 

Any maintenance of improvements accepted by the CITY for public dedication shall be 

completed under the supervision of and with the prior written approval of the Planning and 

Development Services Director. The maintenance obligation for required improvements to 

existing public roads or other existing public infrastructure already maintained by a public 

governmental entity shall terminate on and after the date such improvements have been 



inspected and accepted by the appropriate governmental entity and the deposit for same shall be 

released. Irrespective of other continuing obligations, the developer's snow removal obligations 

shall terminate on the date a street is accepted by the CITY for public maintenance. 

4. That the maintenance deposit shall be retained by the CITY OR CREDIT 

HOLDER to guarantee maintenance of the required improvements and, in addition to being 

subject to the remedies of Section 1005.080 Subsection (G) and other remedies of the City 

Code, shall be subject to the immediate order of the Planning and Development Services 

Director to defray or reimburse any cost to the CITY of maintenance or repair of improvements 

related to the subdivision which the developer fails or refuses to perform. Except in emergency 

circumstances or where action is otherwise required before written notice can be provided, the 

Planning and Development Services Director shall provide the developer with a written 

demand and opportunity to perform the maintenance before having such maintenance 

performed by the CITY, or its agents. The Planning and Development Services Director shall. 

have the authority to require the maintenance deposit to be replaced or replenished by the 

developer, in any form permitted for an original deposit, where the amount remaining is 

determined to be insufficient or where the maintenance deposit was drawn upon by the CITY 

for maintenance. 

5. That in determining the amount of MAINTENANCE DEPOSIT that shall 

continue to be held, portions of the deposit amount that were attributable to improvements that 

have been accepted by any third-party governmental entity or utility legally responsible for the 

maintenance of the improvement may be released upon such acceptance of the improvement by 

the entity. The Planning and Development Services Director may approve such further releases 

if it is determined in his or her discretion, after inspection of the improvements, that the total 



civil liability that may exist for defects or damages caused by any construction, improvement or 

development for which any deposit has been released. 

9. That there shall be no assignment by DEVELOPER or CREDIT HOLDER 

under the terms of this agreement without written approval of the CITY. 

10. That if DEVELOPER is unable to meet its obligation hereunder or to provide 

additional sums to guarantee maintenance of the Subdivision improvements as may be 

determined by the CITY or if the DEVELOPER shall abandon the subdivision or go into 

receivership or file for bankruptcy protection, then in any such event the CITY may declare the 

DEVELOPER in default and may immediately order the payment of all remaining sums held in 

the MAINTENANCE DEPOSIT to be paid to the CITY without further legal process, to be 

used to complete and maintain the subdivision improvements as set out under the terms hereof. 

11. That the CREDIT HOLDER will immediately inform the City of any changes of 

address for CREDIT HOLDER or DEVELOPER (known to CREDIT HOLDER) during the 

period of this Agreement. Failure to do so shall result in a breach of this Agreement and the 

CITY may declare the DEVELOPER or CREDIT HOLDER (as the case may be) in default and 

may immediately order the payment of all remaining sums held by CREDIT HOLDER to be 

paid to the CITY without further legal process, to be used to maintain the subdivision 

improvements as set out under the terms hereof. 

12. That no forbearance on the part of the CITY in enforcing'any of its rights under 

this agreement, nor any extension thereof by CITY, shall constitute a waiver of any terms of 

this Agreement or a forfeiture of any such rights. 

13. That the CITY hereby accepts this agreement as a satisfactory MAINTENACE 

DEPOSIT AGREEMENT under the provisions and requirements of the governing ordinance 



maintenance amount retained is clearly in excess of the amount necessary for completion of the 

maintenance obligation, after all reasonable contingencies are considered. 

6. That in the event the CITY should determine that the MAINTENANCE 

DEPOSIT, or any line item thereon as herein provided, is insufficient, the CITY will so notify 

the DEVELOPER who shall, within thirty (30) days of said notice, deposit additional sums 

with the CITY or have the amount of the letter of credit or other banking instrument increased 

as will be required to maintain the said specific component of the improvement and said 

additional sum will be subject to the terms of this MAINTENANCE DEPOSIT AGREEMENT. 

Failure to provide said sum shall be cause for immediate cessation of all work on said 

subdivision until the additional amount is paid. 

7. That the CREDIT HOLDER, in accordance with paragraphs 2, 4 and 5 above, 

shall only release or disburse the MAINTENANCE DEPOSIT, or portion thereof, upon receipt 

and in the amount set forth in a written authorization from the said Planning and Development 

Services Division addressed to the Credit Holder, which authorization may be for payment, as 

provided in the Subdivision Regulations or governing ordinance for this subdivision. 

8. That upon expiration of the maintenance obligations established herein, the 

Planning and Development Services Director shall cause a final inspection to be made of the 

required improvements. Funds shall then be released if there are no defects or deficiencies 

found and all other obligations including payment of all sums due, are shown to be satisfied on 

inspection thereof, or at such time thereafter as any defects or deficiencies are cured with the 

permission of, and within the time allowed by, the Planning and Development Services 

Director. This release shall in no way be construed to indemnify or release any person from any 



BANK OFFICIAL'S ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

STATE OF MISSOURI ) 
) SS 

COUNTY OF ST. LOUIS ) 

On this  „--3A--  	day of  Fe b (lea y 	, 20 )S, before me appeared 

ti' 	, to me personally known, who, being by me duly 

sworn, did say that he/she is the 	Vv. c .e 	csMe 0-1- 	(title) of 

Ai  z,4 e 	a. nkCeet-IN e 	(name of bank), a 

	 (corporation, etc.) organized and existing under the laws of the 

United States of America, and that the seal affixed to the foregoing instrument is the Corporate 

Seal of said bank, and that said instrument was signed and sealed on 'behalf of said bank by 

authority of its Board of Directors, and said 	 r  

acknowledged said instrument to be the free act and deed of said bank. 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal 
in County and State aforesaid, the day and year first above written. 

ttl‘e-4"-  
Notary Public 

My Commission Expires: /0 -I -c) 0 t e 
Karen F. Oiljunt 

Notary Public • Notary Seal S
TA773 OF MISSOURI 

Jefferson Coup  ty My Commission 
Evires: October 

Conmission #144274 18,X018 
 



LLC DEVELOPER: Arbors at Ke ATTEST: (SEAL) 

Type Name: Al Hicks 
Title:Vice-Pre

e
sident of JHB Properties, Inc.; 8 memu 

;F
eria, Jr 

B Properties, Inc.; 

e Name: j 
Title: Presiden 

a memoer 

BY.: 

BY: 	 
Name: 
Title: 	  

• 

1I e: 
r;;)(  

for this subdivision and any amendments or revisions thereto and the Subdivision Regulations 

of the CITY. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have hereunto set their hands and 

seals the 	day of 	 , 20 	A.D. 

Firm Address: 

5091 New Baumgartner Road 

St. Louis, MO 63129 

ATTEST: (SEAL) CREDIT HOLDER: Midwest Bank Centre 

Firm Address: 
2191 Lemay Feny Road 

St. Louis, MO 63125 

CITY OF CHESTERFIELD, MISSOURI 

BY 	  
Planning and Development Services Director 

ATTEST: (SEAL) 	 APPROVED: 

City Clerk 	 Mayor 

NB: The signatures of the DEVELOPER and CREDIT HOLDER are to be acknowledged 
before a Notary Public. In the case of a partnership, all partners must sign. In the case of a 
corporation, the affidavits of the corporation act must be attached. 



LLC EXECUTING OFFICIAL'S ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

STATE OF MISSOURI 	) 
) SS 

COUNTY OF ST. LOUIS ) 

On this 	Ord  day of 	 , 20 15 , before me appeared 

John H. Berra, Jr. 	(name) to me personally known, who, being by 

me duly sworn, did say that he/she is the  President 	 (title or Executing 

Official) of President of JHB Properties, Inc.; a member 	, a Missouri Limited Liability 

Corporation, and that he/she in fact has the authority to execute the foregoing agreement 

pursuant to the authority given him/her by the Limited Liability Corporation, and that said 

agreement was signed and sealed by him/her on behalf of the aforesaid L.L.C. by authority of 

its 	Members  

John H. Berra, Jr. 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my notarial 
seal, this 	ol3r-d  day of  Fehraary 	, 20 /5-  . 

, (President or title of chief officer), 

(name) as  grrufgrof  JHB Properties Inc .   (title of 

Executing Official) of said L.L.C. acknowledges said agreement to be the lawful, free act and 

deed of said L.L.C. 

My Commission Expires: 

Mity 020) 	//o 

SUSAN E. LAUMAN 
Notary Public -• Notary Seal 

STATE OF MISSOURI 
St, Louis County 

My Commission Er:fres: 05/20/2016 
Commis,:l 	'486954 



MAINTENANCE DEPOSIT 

SUBDIVISION: Arbors at Kehrs Mill 

	

PLAT: 	 2 

	

SUB CODE: 	 305 

DEVELOPER: Arbors at Kehrs MIII LLC 

NOTE: Deposit Is adjusted to account for 10% of entire sewer costs, and 0% of LONRIElev. Cori's, if any) 

ORIGINAL 	DATE OF 	AMOUNT 	CURRENT 

CATEGORY 	 BALANCE 	RELEASE 	RELEASED 	BALANCE 

STREETS 	 $40,109.30 	 $40,109.30 

SIDEWALKS 	 $2,706.72 	 $2,706.72 

STORM SEWER , 	 $32,977.03 	 $32,977.03 

SAN. SEWER 	 $15,583.66 	 $15,583.66 

DETENTION 	 $1,597.75 • 	 $1,597.75 

GRADING 	 $798.71 	
, 	 $798.71 

EROSION CONTROL 	 $804.76 	 $804.76 

SILTAT'N CONTROL 	 $449.24 	 $449.24 

MONUMENTS 	 $1,488.30 	 $1,488.30 

STREET LIGHTS 	 $677.60 	 $677.60 

STREET SIGNS 	 $54.12 	 $54.12 

WATER MAINS 	 $26,671.86 	 $26,671.86 

COMMON OR. SEED 	 $1,200.46 	 $1,200.46 

ISLAND SODDING 	 $130.08 	 $130.68 

RETAINING WALL 	 $10,111.42 	 $10,111.42 

PENCE 	 $738.76 	 3 78 

TOTALS 	 $136,100.36 	 $0.00 $136,100.36 

2/2012015 
	

PAGE 1 OF 1 



FS City of 
Chesterfield 

NEWSLETTER - CITY COUNCIL MEETING  

AGENDA REVIEW — Monday, August 17 — 6:30PM 

Please note that an AGENDA REVIEW meeting has been scheduled for 6:30pm, on Monday, August 17, 2015. 
The enclosed AGENDA contains a list of those items to be discussed, by City Council, at this meeting. 

As always, if you have any questions regarding any of the items contained within said AGENDA, please let me 
know. Additionally, if there is anything that you would like ADDED to said AGENDA, please contact either 
Mayor Nation, or me, prior to Monday's meeting. 

UPCOMING MEETINGS/EVENTS 

Monday, August 17 	 HAPPY BIRTHDAY COUNCILMEMBER MIKE CASEY! 

Thursday, August 20 	 Planning & Public Works Committee (5:30pm) 

Monday, August 24 	 Planning Commission (7pm) 

Monday, September 7 	 LABOR DAY (CITY HALL CLOSED) 

Wednesday, September 9 	Next City Council meeting (7pm) 

APPOINTMENT 

As detailed in the enclosed MEMO, prepared by City Clerk Vickie Hass, Mayor Nation has confirmed his intent 
to nominate the following individual to serve as a member of the Architectural Review Board (ARB): 

Doug DeLong - 2-year term, expiring 8-17-17 

If you have any questions, please contact Mayor Nation prior to Monday's meeting. 

RECOMMENDATIONS — PLANNING/PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE (P/PW) 

As detailed in the enclosed MINUTES, prepared by Mike Geisel, Director of Public Services, the P/PW 
Committee met on Thursday, August 6, 2015. 

The following is a list of those items discussed/acted upon, by this Committee, which are being forwarded to 
City Council for consideration/action at Monday's meeting: 

HIA. Bill No. 3049 - P.Z. 04-2015 Arbors at Wilmas Farm (17508 Wild Horse Creek Road) (FIRST 
READING) 



IIIB. Bill No. 3050 - P.Z. 05-2015 Arbors at Wilmas Farm (17508 Wild Horse Creek Road) (FIRST 
READING) 

Bill No. 3045 — Authorizes Grant of Easement to Monarch-Chesterfield Levee District (SECOND 
READING) 

Bill No. 3047 — Approves Amendments to Stop/Yield Control Schedules — Model Traffic Ordinance 
(SECOND READING) 

Bill No. 3048 — Approves Boundary Adjustment Plat re: Upper Kehrs Mill (SECOND READING) 

Bill No. 3051 — Approves Record Plat - Arbors at Kehrs Mill - Plat 1 (FIRST AND SECOND 
READINGS) 

Bill No. 3052 - Approves Record Plat - Arbors at Kehrs Mill - Plat 2 (FIRST AND SECOND 
READINGS) 

Bill No. 3053 - Approves Fire Hydrant - High Croft Elementary School (FIRST AND SECOND 
READINGS) 

Next meeting - Thursday, August 20 (5:30pm) 

As is always the case, please contact Chairperson Connie Fults, any other member of this Committee, Mike 
Geisel or me, PRIOR to Monday's meeting, if you have any questions. 

LEGISLATION 

BILL NO. 3045 — AUTHORIZES THE GRANT OF A PERMANENT EASEMENT TO THE MONARCH- 
CHESTERFIELD LEVEE DISTRICT (SECOND READING; PLANNING/PUBLIC WORKS 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDS APPROVAL) 

BILL NO. 3047 — REPEALS AND REPLACES SCHEDULE VI, INTERSECTION STOPS, AND 
SCHEDULE VII, YIELD INTERSECTIONS, OF THE CITY OF CHESTERFIELD CODE OF 
ORDINANCES (SECOND READING; PLANNING/PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE RECOMMENDS 
APPROVAL) 

BILL NO. 3053 — APPROVES THE INSTALLATION OF A FIRE HYDRANT AT HIGHCROFT RIDGE 
ELEMENTARY SCHOOL, WITHIN THE CITY OF CHESTERFIELD (FIRST AND SECOND 
READINGS; PLANNING/PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE) 

LEGISLATION - PLANNING COMMISSION 

BILL NO. 3048 — PROVIDES FOR THE APPROVAL OF A BOUNDARY ADJUSTMENT PLAT FOR 
LOTS 1 AND 2 OF 1600 KEHRS MILL ROAD FOR A 10.3 ACRE TRACT OF LAND ZONED "NU", NON- 
URBAN DISTRICT, AND LOCATED EAST OF KEHRS MILL ROAD AND NORTH OF STRECKER 
ROAD (19U530446) (SECOND READING; DEPT. OF PUBLIC SERVICES RECOMMENDS 
APPROVAL) 



BILL NO. 3049 - AMENDS THE ZONING ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF 
CHESTERFIELD BY CHANGING THE BOUNDARIES OF AN "NU" NON URBAN 
DISTRICT TO AN "E-1" ESTATE ONE ACRE DISTRICT FOR A 50.5279 ACRE 
TRACT OF LAND LOCATED ON THE SOUTH SIDE OF WILD HORSE CREEK 
ROAD WEST OF ITS INTERSECTION WITH LONG ROAD AND EAST OF ITS 
INTERSECTION WITH ARBOR GROVE COURT. (P.Z. 04-2015 ARBORS AT 
WILMAS FARM {17508 WILD HORSE CREEK ROAD} 18V330035) (FIRST READING; PLANNING 
COMMISSION RECOMMENDS APPROVAL) 

BILL NO. 3050 -AMENDS THE ZONING ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF CHESTERFIELD BY 
CHANGING THE BOUNDARIES OF AN "E-1" ESTATE ONE ACRE DISTRICT TO A "PUD" PLANNED 
UNIT DEVELOPMENT FOR A 50.5279 ACRE TRACT OF LAND LOCATED ON THE SOUTH SIDE OF 
WILD HORSE CREEK ROAD WEST OF ITS INTERSECTION WITH LONG ROAD AND EAST OF ITS 
INTERSECTION WITH ARBOR GROVE COURT. (P.Z. 05-2015 
ARBORS AT WILMAS FARM {17508 WILD HORSE CREEK ROAD} 18V330035) (FIRST READING; 
PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDS APPROVAL) 

BILL NO. 3051 - REPEALS CITY OF CHESTERFIELD ORDINANCE NUMBER 2848 
PROVIDING FOR THE APPROVAL OF A RECORD PLAT AND ESCROW AGREEMENTS FOR THE 
ARBORS AT KEHRS MILL PLAT 1, A 27.055 ACRE TRACT OF LAND ZONED "PUD" 
PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT LOCATED NORTH OF THE INTERSECTION OF 
STRECKER ROAD AND CHURCH ROAD (FIRST AND SECOND READINGS; PLANNING 
COMMISSION RECOMMENDS APPROVAL) 

BILL NO. 3052 - REPEALS CITY OF CHESTERFIELD ORDINANCE NUMBER 2849 
PROVIDING FOR THE APPROVAL OF A RECORD PLAT AND ESCROW AGREEMENTS FOR 
THE ARBORS AT KEHRS MILL PLAT 2, A 31.093 ACRE TRACT OF LAND ZONED "PUD" 
PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT LOCATED NORTH OF THE INTERSECTION OF 
STRECKER ROAD AND CHURCH ROAD (FIRST AND SECOND READINGS; PLANNING 
COMMISSION RECOMMENDS APPROVAL) 


	AGENDA REVIEW
	Page 2

	AGENDA
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4

	AGENDA REVIEW PARAGRAPH
	UPCOMING MTGS/EVENTS
	MINUTES
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7

	APPOINTMENT
	Page 2

	REC. P/PW COMM.
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7
	Page 8
	Page 9
	Page 10
	Page 11
	Page 12
	Page 13

	LEGISLATION
	BILL NO. 3045
	BILL NO. 3047
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7
	Page 8
	Page 9
	Page 10
	Page 11
	Page 12
	Page 13
	Page 14
	Page 15
	Page 16
	Page 17

	BILL NO. 3053
	LEG. PC
	BILL NO. 3048
	Page 2

	BILL NO. 3049
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5

	BILL NO. 3050
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7
	Page 8
	Page 9
	Page 10
	Page 11
	Page 12
	Page 13
	Page 14
	Page 15
	Page 16
	Page 17
	Page 18
	Page 19
	Page 20
	Page 21
	Page 22
	Page 23
	Page 24
	Page 25

	BILL NO. 3051
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7
	Page 8
	Page 9
	Page 10
	Page 11
	Page 12
	Page 13
	Page 14
	Page 15
	Page 16
	Page 17
	Page 18
	Page 19
	Page 20
	Page 21
	Page 22
	Page 23
	Page 24

	BILL NO. 3052
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7
	Page 8
	Page 9
	Page 10
	Page 11
	Page 12
	Page 13
	Page 14
	Page 15
	Page 16
	Page 17
	Page 18
	Page 19
	Page 20
	Page 21
	Page 22
	Page 23
	Page 24
	Page 25

	NEWSLETTER
	Page 2
	Page 3


